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Financial Highlights

MEHE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=+t—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’million HKS$’million Change
ER- 39 BEAT b2
Operating Results -
Revenue Il ogs 390.6 382.8 2.0%
— e-print segment — e-prints & 314.4 331.0 (5.0%)
— e-banner segment — e-banner; & 76.2 51.8 47.1%
Operating profit before other losses K&t AH Mt EE 2
— net RBNA — BEE 22.2 29.7 (25.3%)
— e-print segment — e-prints & 36.6 40.1 (8.7%)
— e-banner segment — e-banners;' & (14.4) (10.4) 38.5%
Other losses — net HiMEE — F5 (7.8) (6.6) 18.2%
— e-print segment — e-prints & (7.7) (6.8) 13.2%
— e-banner segment — e-banner; & (0.1) 0.2 150.0%
Operating profit I8 s A 14.4 23.1 (37.7%)
— e-print segment — e-print & 28.9 33.3 (13.2%)
— e-banner segment — e-banners &l (14.5) (10.2) 42.2%
Profit for the year attributable to: LA T~ & B RE(E & R A -
— equity holders of the Company — AR F#EZEEAE A 17.3 26.1 (33.7%)
— non-controlling interests — FFIE R A (8.1) (4.2) 92.9%
Net profit margin % (Attributable to  #5 F| & % (KA &l #E
equity holders of the Company) A AEWNG) 4.4% 6.8%
Gross profit margin % EFE% 35.7% 35.3%
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) &R E A ZF (GB1l) 3.15 4.90 (35.7%)

As at 31 March
R=A=+—H

Financial Position
Total assets
Total equity

Cash and cash equivalents

BERE
R 4R EE
ReMHeFEER

2017

—E—tF
HK$’million
BERBTT

312.8
207.5
68.2

2016
—E—RF
HKS$’ million

BEBTT

299.2
206.8
90.3

4.5%
0.3%
(24.5%)
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Operating Results

For the year ended 31 March 2017, eprint Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”), recorded a revenue of approximately HK$390.6 million,
representing an increase of 2.0% as compared to last year; and a
net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$17.3
million for the year, representing a decrease of 33.7% as compared
to last year.

Gross profit margin of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017
increased from 35.3% of last year to 35.7%; while the net profit
margin recorded a decrease from 6.8% of last year to 4.4%. The
decrease in net profit was mainly attributable to the lack of one-
off income from software sale in the last year and the net loss on
disposal of financial assets and machines and equipment for the
year ended 31 March 2017. In addition, the paper printing segment
(e-print) recorded a revenue of HK$314.4 million, representing a
decrease of 5.0% as compared to last year; and an operating profit
of approximately HK$36.6 million, representing a decrease of 8.7%
as compared to last year. The banner printing segment (e-banner)
which was owned as to 51% by the Group recorded a revenue of
HK$76.2 million, representing an increase of 47.1% as compared to
the same period of last year; and an operating loss of increased to
HK$14.5 million, representing an increase of 42.2% as compared to
the same period of last year.

Although the paper printing segment (e-print) of the Group recorded
a slight drop in its revenue, the profit also decreased due to several
one-off losses during the year. The banner printing segment
(e-banner) developed by the Group two years ago will become the
key business because its proportion to the Group’s total revenue
has increased from 13.5% to 19.5%. The Group now has 12 stores
in Hong Kong to simultaneously operate e-print and e-banner
brands, and the banner printing segment has been successfully
introduced to all customers in the recent two years. According to
Alexa, e-print ranked top 700 in Hong Kong while e-banner rose to
top 1,500 in Hong Kong.

In terms of business development in Malaysia and Australia, the
Group has suspended the development program in Australia and
strictly controlled banner printing cost in Malaysia to relieve its
capital demand under the impact of higher US interest rate and cost
inflation of overseas business, especially the pricing of most raw
materials in USD.

Chairman’s Statement

ERERE

EEXE

BHE-_ZT—+HF=A=+—BILFE "
eprintse B AR R Al ([A R A1) K E M
BRARIATHBIAER] /K ZED
306B&EBIL  LEF EFA2.0% @+ KNF
EARARREZHBEABGLEF173HE
BT REF M A33.7% ©

HE T +HE=ZA=+—HILtFE "
AEBRNENEHREFHNIBINLEFAZE
35.7% : # A KA B EFHNEENTBFEE
44% - HFRIB LT ERAREE-Z
—+tEF=ZA=+—HULEFE BRI LF
EHRERGHEEZ XK RFH
ESREERTIERBRBENEBER
SHEE o BN (e-print)ak fn B Rl Z 7% £k 15
344BEE T KWE  BEFRBRLD
5.0% @ =& & A AR E=36.6BEE T
WEFRBRMA87% c REBEAE51%
&) 1 = £ Il ¥ e-bannerfl| 4 15762 H &
BTN E  REFREAE IN47.1% @ &8
EEENE14588E T RWEFR HH
hna2.2% o

& A 7N & B 4K an ED il 3 e-printlll 25 £% 15
BETHE MERNTBEBERE —XEE
BERRNEMTRE AMAEERM
FRIE R 2 8 E H R ¥ He-bannerfh &
B 48U B R13.5%F £19.5% K K #§
EXNAEEEMEBERIM -RES
EREBEFHBI2R - BRL Ee-printk
e-banner® 2 - RIBE2FERIILER
LECEEORNERHEETEER, R
BAlexadd uh BE Ze-printd@ uh BE B R EFEN 2
7008 A - Me-banner@ it I E A&
21,5008 A °

ERESRANEBERFE  ANE
EPNCEA TN TN T 1 N
BRBHEASAETEE  AEED
CERANEESE PABREERE
TEEEOREHRA  UREY EEE
AER -
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Chairman’s-Statement
FREHE

Prospects

In terms of paper printing segment, the Group expects to constantly
improve system applications and maintain its leading status in
commercial printing industry in Hong Kong. In addition, due to the
increase in local cost and shortage of technical staff, the Group has
outsourced more jobs to domestic printing companies, so as to
reorganize its existing plants and human resources in Hong Kong.

Looking ahead, while Hong Kong as a major economic and trading
city in Asia is not immune from the uncertainties about the global
economies, the Group will strive for developing more potential
businesses to capture existing opportunities and further enhance
its leading status in the industry by virtue of its established regional
store network and popularity.

Appreciation

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of the Company, | would like to extend our sincere gratitude to our
shareholders, customers and business partners for their persistent
support throughout the year. In addition, | would also like to take
this opportunity to thank all colleagues and staff for their persistent
contribution to the Group.

On behalf of the Board

She Siu Kee William
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

The Board presents to its shareholders the results of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2017. The Group’s revenue amounted to
HK$390.6 million, an increase of 2.0% compared with that of the
corresponding year ended 31 March 2016. Gross profit margin was
35.7% which was 0.4% higher than the corresponding year ended
31 March 2016. The Group’s audited profit attributable to equity
holders for the year ended 31 March 2017 was HK$17.3 million,
representing a decrease of 33.7% as compared with that of the
corresponding year ended 31 March 2016.

The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in operating profit of
the two segments, decrease in finance income from fixed deposits,
increase in share of losses of associates and increase in income
tax expense due to the increase in taxable receipts from disposal of
machinery.

As for the Group’s paper printing segment, there is a drop of
revenue from external customers of HK$16.6 million or 5.0% from
HK$331.0 million to HK$314.4 million. The drop of revenue is mainly
due to the deterioration in the Hong Kong market during the year.
The cost of sales represented 63.2% and 63.7% of the revenue for
the year ended 31 March 2017 and 2016 respectively. The decrease
is mainly because of the Group’s downsized production capacity
due to more subcontracting to manufacturers in China to achieve
lower average cost, while the aforesaid arrangement was transitional
for the year ended 31 March 2016. Besides, the paper printing
segment’s operating profit decreased by HK$4.4 million, which is
mainly due to the loss on disposal of financial asset during the year,
the increase in loss on disposal of machines and equipment as
well as the absence of one-time |.T. license fee income which was
earned for the year ended 31 March 2016, offset by the decrease in
net exchange loss and administrative expenses.

As for the Group’s banner printing segment, there is a significant
growth in revenue from external customers of 47.1% from HK$51.8
million to HK$76.2 million. The increase in revenue is mainly due
to both the increase in average selling price and number of order
from the Hong Kong market. Despite the growth in revenue, the
banner printing segment’s operating loss increased by HK$4.3
million, which is mainly due to the increase of operating loss made
by its business in Malaysia by HK$2.7 million from HK$2.6 million
to HK$5.3 million, the HK$2.9 million of operating loss made by its
business in Australia which was newly operated in August 2016
and the HK$2.6 million of operating loss made by its App Solutions
Business which was newly operated in December 2015, offset by
the decrease in operating loss of its Hong Kong business by HK$2.3
million from HK$7.0 million to HK$4.7 million.

BEEFNmRE DM

EBOE

EZgnMREREAEEEEZE T —+
FZAZT+T - HULEFENEE A5 H
I 25 A 390,600,000/ T WEZE T
—RNFZAZ= +—H¢$HF¢F # 0
2.0% ° EFRAB3ET7% > KEE T — X

FZA=ZT—HIEBEFEEMN0L% -

( E T+ F=A=+T—-BHILFE"
AEBENEZFEARGEERLEZN R

17,300,000 0 - EE T —R<F=A
=+—BIEHEEFERAD33.7% -

FRARXBEIZ2dHR ﬁlﬂl"*ﬁﬁ’]aL/ gl
A REE Hﬁﬁ B B E U AR A
FEIGEE AR BRI INIA K AR &
Tk A5 TR 3 N 28 BRR 15 TR B S A AN A
B o

E¢t$$@25ﬁuu5ﬂf:”““5ﬁﬁm HNER B
F U 25 F1331,000,00078 7T 8 216,600,000
78 7T 805.0% %2 314,400,000 7T - W T
RETZHRFRAEEMEBRE HEZ
T—+HFR_FE-—RF=ZA=+—HI1
FE - HERAD BIME WK ZE A63.2%K&
63.7% B EERRMERER » TR
ELZTEDBTHBNRERANERE
BOFHEA  MBE_ZT—NF=A
Tt HLEFEZEAZHEEBEM
F oo b o 4 EDRI 9 BF 2 & B i F R
14,400,000 T  TEZERFALES
MEEBE HEMRZEBBEEZNR
ﬂz@i T_/\E )EJ + HHZEE
Ez—REBABREHFATEWRA - HWE
EJ&%E;‘%%&&GE&Eﬂsﬁi@@ﬁﬂmﬁ o

EMS%EZHE%EDFIJ/UEW SR =
NEBREFPZWREZMBAEE R A
51,800,000 # 7T # & 47.1%% 76,200,000
BT o W3 \i‘EIEEEEM?ﬂEF&X
BEEEMBENTEHELN - BE K=
MEHEE BEBENR DIz EIEEIEHY
hn4,300,0008 70 T EHREFRA:
¥ E £ 2 % & E 18 12,600,000/ 7T 18
Hn2,700,000# 7T & 5,300,000/8 7t © — &
—RNENARBNFTELEEBELEZE
EE5E2,900008 T hRER-_ZT—F
F+_AFEENERABEABATRE
% E £ & & 18 2,600,000 78 7T BT &
B 1 B & B 2 7% i 7,000,000 7T
2,300,0007% JT & 4,700,0007%8 7T 2 & & &5
BATIKH -
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Management Discussion-and Analysis
EIRE T wm MO

Business Review (continvea)

On 27 June 2016, the Group signed two respective provisional
sale and purchase agreements with CTP Limited, a connected
person of the Group, for the purchase of two properties. These two
properties were originally rented by the Group as its retail outlets.
The aggregate consideration excluding the related transaction
costs was HK$62.0 million. The acquisitions of the properties were
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company on 15
August 2016 and the transactions were completed on 31 October
2016. The Board considers the acquisitions provide an excellent
opportunity for the Group to reduce ongoing rental payments,
eliminate the potential risks to the operation of the Group in the
event that the previous tenancy agreements could not be renewed
upon its expiry, avoid the possible increase in rents for the properties
upon the expiry of the previous tenancy agreements, and to receive
rental income from the leasing of the properties when appropriate.

On 1 January 2016, e-print Trading Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement to invest in
Giant State Limited (“Giant State”) with an independent third party.
Giant State is the immediate holding company of Fitness World
Group Limited (“Fitness World”), which is principally engaged in
fitness and beauty services in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). Fitness World has commenced its operation in January
2017 and has been generating revenue during the year. The Board
considers that this investment enables the Group to diversify its
business by utilising its reputation and system technology.

Outlook

The operating environment in Hong Kong is expected to remain
challenging for the foreseeable future. Nevertheless, the Group
will continue to strive for diversifying its business, including but not
limited to expanding banner business in Hong Kong and Malaysia,
reinforcing internal controls and streamlining factory operation,
production outsourcing in order to achieve stable revenue growth
for the group. Meanwhile, the Group will look for new business
opportunities from time to time to strengthen its market share.
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Outlook (Continued)

Under the leadership of the Board, the management of the Group
has formed a broad consensus in response to the key improvement
areas in the existing business operation and market expansion in
order to further enhance the Group’s overall competitiveness. The
Group will continue to strengthen its market position and increase
the market share by making use of the following competitive
advantages:

o Well-positioned to seize enormous online market potential

o Comprehensive information technology infrastructure and
unique e-print system which is automatically operated

° Well-recognised local brand
Financial Review

Revenue

Income from the provision of printing and other services increased
by HK$7.8 million or 2.0% from HK$382.8 million for the year ended
31 March 2016 to HK$390.6 million for the year ended 31 March
2017. Such increase was primarily due to the increase of average
monthly orders and selling price of banner printing service. The
following table sets forth a breakdown of the revenue by service
category and their respective percentage of the total revenue for the
years indicated.

Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE stam M oA

B 2w

HEFENEET AXEENEEER
JE%TE%%?%@VE&FD%TEFE’JEEE&
U ERE S S BLE— B8
$$@E’J¥’ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ KEBBEES
i@ﬂﬁﬁu—l—?ﬁﬁ%% 2 E H W5 A #
1IN 35 10 &

o REMZBEANEHMAETSEN

e Z2EMEAMMEEMERINE —&
—H 8 #1te-printR 4

° rim—fmzﬁﬂﬂuuﬁiﬂr
Bt % [0 B8
Wy

i

REER R EMBREAES K ARE
E T RNRF=ZA=Z1+—"HILFEB
382,800,000 7 Jt # A0 7,800,000 & T =k
20%E2HE T — ‘tﬁ_ﬂ_"f’ =Nl
4 & #9390,600,00078 7T ° A B Wz L F+
TEEARFHESATERES R R
MEBEMATE - N XRET LR LE R
B EAARESELERAITIEE

WBRZBE DL °

2017

—E—+tF

HK$’000

FHE T
Advertising printing BE R 131,854 33.8% 136,845 35.8%
Bound book printing fE 5B = Bl 84,581 21.6% 93,015 24.3%
Stationery printing X B EN Rl 85,500 21.9% 89,024 23.3%
Banner printing === =il 68,646 17.6% 49,815 13.0%
Other services H b Bk 7% 20,057 5.1% 14,069 3.6%
Total st 390,638 100.0% 382,768 100.0%
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Management Discussion-and Analysis
EIRE R AT

Financial Review (coniinueq)

Revenue (Continued)

The contribution to the sales mix by the banner printing category
increased from 13.0% of total revenue for the year ended 31 March
2016 to 17.6% of total revenue for the year ended 31 March 2017,
while advertising printing remained our primary printing service that
accounted for 33.8% and 35.8% of our total revenue for year ended
31 March 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Bf %% O B8 =)
W & =)

BEEORENYHERAAGZERBES
TE-AREZAZt—HIEFEMHBERK
HEH1IB0REREEHE T —+tF = A
Zt—HIFEERAREZEN176%  ME
ERIDABRMOEENRRSE - &
EZE—+ERZFE—RNRFZRA=Z1+—
HIEFE - 2 Bl 58 K& H33.8%%
35.8% °

2017 2016

—B—tfF b VA

Sales Channels HK$’000 HK$’000

HERE THET TAETT
Stores [0S 96,517 24.7% 109,119 28.5%
Websites Auh 169,930 43.5% 164,555 43.0%
Others (Note) HAth (B 5E) 124,191 31.8% 109,094 28.5%
Total #Et 390,638 100.0% 382,768 100.0%

Note:  “Others” refers to revenue derived from orders received over the telephone, et [HAMFERBES BE - e-printi e E AR

through e-mail, e-print mobile application and “Photobook” program.

Websites sales channel contributed 43.5% of total revenue for the
year ended 31 March 2017, which accounted for 3.3% increase
as compared with that of the year ended 31 March 2016. Such
increase was primarily due to the continuous improvement in our
online self-service ordering platform. The contribution from other
channels increased from 28.5% of total revenue for the year ended
31 March 2016, to 31.8% of total revenue for the year ended 31
March 2017. Such increase was primarily due to the Group’s banner
business relying more on sales team receiving customer orders via
phone call and e-mail.

10  eprint Group Limited Annual Report 2016/17
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Financial Review (continueq)

Other income

Other income primarily comprises interest income from
held-to-maturity investments, sales of scrap materials, such as
used zinc printing plates and paper scrap, equipment rental income
and license fee income received from the Group’s joint venture and
associate. The decrease in amount during the year ended 31 March
2017 compared to that of the year ended 31 March 2016 was
primarily due to the absence of a one-off license fee income from an
associate of HK$4.6 million earned during the year ended 31 March
2016, and a decrease in sales of scrap materials of HK$2.3 million
by more outsourced productions.

Details of the held-to-maturity investments (the “HTM") are as
follows:
As at 31 March 2016

Details of the HTM
S Z I HIFE

Investment date

RERM

11 May 2015

Subscribed for unsecured notes issued by Finsoft

Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE stam M oA

B 7% 2] B8 o)
Hug A

HMBRAFZRERZINHRENT L
WA - 85 E RER (B 40 B 3 A &9 8 EN Rl AR
MER) [REASBRARBAEELSE
NAIREERFIWEB AT EUWA - &
E-E—+H=A=+—HBILtEE %
BRHE-_ZE—R"F-ZA=+—H8HItHF
EEMRLEERAREBE-Z— X F
A=+ —HLEFER —BBE QR K
LAY — X 1 7F AT & U A 4,600,000 7T I
RWE - UARBBEZHNIINBEEER
£ & FERHR 22,300,000 JT AT ©

FEIMRE(H22HDFBEOT

R=B-AF=A=+—F

Amount

Ko

HK$10,000,000

Corporation Limited (stock code: 8018)

—F-hAFAA+T—H
BERER

19 May 2015

RBEM SRR EZRERAF (RMOHA : 8018) #HITH

Subscribed for unsecured notes issued by Grand Peace

10,000,0007% 7T

HK$10,000,000

Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8108)

—E-—RFRA+NH

RER

10 July 2015 Subscribed for unsecured notes issued by GET Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8100)

—E-RFtATH REESHIERER AT (RHARSE - 8100) BITHEERE

=

3 August 2015
Group (stock code: 3337)
—E-RAFNA=H

REREEEZRER QA (RMOAS : 8108) HITHEE

Purchased senior notes issued by Anton Qilfield Services

BEZRHARBEEE (BRI 3337) BITHELRE

10,000,0007% 7T

HK$10,000,000

10,000,0007% 7T

US$1,251,000

1,251,000% 7T
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Management Discussion-and Analysis

B DT

Financial Review (coniinueq)

Other income (continued)

As at 31 March 2017

Details of the HTM
BEZ3HEHE

Investment date

RERM

Bf %% B B8 =)
Hu A @)
R-E—t®=H=+-8

Amount

g

HK$10,000,000

19 May 2015 Subscribed for unsecured notes issued by Grand Peace
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8108)
—RFARA+NAB REREEEZERER AR (RHMRIE - 8108) HITHI &

ERER

20 October 2016

Subscribed for bonds issued by National Arts

10,000,0007% 7T

HK$5,000,000

Entertainment and Culture Group Limited (stock code:

8228)
—E-RE+A=+H
) 1& 25

11 November 2016
Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 913)
—F-"Ft+t—At+—H

Details of the movements of the HTM during the year ended 31
March 2017 are set out in Note 22 to the financial statements.

In view of the sufficiency of the Group’s liquidity, the Group had
diversified to invest in notes/bonds issued by the listed companies
on the Stock Exchange for the purpose of capital preservation and a
relative high interest return accruing when compared with the bank
interest income. During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group
had not recorded any default nor interests delinquency. The Group’s
future investment options will depend on the Group’s liquidity
position and other cash planning.

Other losses — net

Other losses — net primarily comprises net loss on disposal of
property, plant and equipment, loss on disposal of financial assets
and equipment and net foreign exchange gain or loss. The increase
in amount during the year ended 31 March 2017 compared to that
of the year ended 31 March 2016 was primarily due to the increase
in net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment resulting
from restructuring the production facilities and the loss on a one-off
disposal of financial assets during the year, offset by the decrease in
net foreign exchange loss.
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Financial Review (continueq)

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of distribution
costs, handling charges for electronic payments received, and store
rentals as well as advertising and marketing expenses. Selling and
distribution expenses represent 10.9% and 9.5% of the revenue
for the year ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, respectively. Such an
increase was primarily due to the additional staff costs of the sales
team and rental expenses for retail outlets from the banner business.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses primarily comprise directors’ fees, staff
costs, outsourced customer support expenses, information
technology support services expenses, office rental and utilities,
depreciation, internet and telephone expenses, professional
expenses and other miscellaneous administrative expenses.
Administrative expenses represent 20.6% and 21.5% of the total
revenue for the year ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, respectively,
while the amount of it decreased from HK$82.4 million for the year
ended 31 March 2016 to HK$80.5 million for the year ended 31
March 2017. The decrease in administrative expenses was primarily
due to the decrease in legal and profession expenses of HK$1.1
million and the outsourced customer support expenses of HK$1.2
million during the year.

Finance income

Finance income primarily consists of unwinding of discounts on
held-to-maturity investments and interest income from cash and
cash equivalents.

Finance costs

Finance costs primarily consist of interest expenses on bank
borrowings and finance charges on obligations under finance lease.

Share of profit of joint venture

Share of profit of joint venture represents the share of losses or
profits of the Group’s joint venture in each year using equity method
of accounting. During the year ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, the
Company had one jointly controlled entity in Malaysia.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion-and Analysis
EIRE T wm MO

Financial Review (coniinueq)

Share of losses of associates

Share of losses of associates represents the share of losses of the
Group’s associates in each year using equity method of accounting.
During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company had three
associates operating in the PRC (one of which had been disposed
of on 1 August 2016).

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company

Profit decreased by HK$8.8 million or 33.7%, from HK$26.1 million
for the year ended 31 March 2016 to HK$17.3 million for the year
ended 31 March 2017. Net profit margin also decreased from 6.8%
for the year ended 31 March 2016 to 4.4% for the year ended 31
March 2017. The decreases in net profit and net profit margin were
primarily due to the one-off loss on disposal of financial asset of
HK$1.8 million during the year being absent for the year ended
31 March 2016, the increase in loss on disposal of machines and
equipment by HK$2.6 million, and the absence of one-time I.T.
license fee income of HK$4.6 million which was earned for the year
ended 31 March 2016.
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Financial Review (continueq)

Liquidity and Financial Information

As at 31 March 2017, the total amount of bank balances and cash
of the Group was HK$68.2 million, a decrease of HK$22.1 million as
compared with that as at 31 March 2016. The decrease was mainly
arising from the purchase of property, plant and equipment. As at
31 March 2017, the financial ratios of the Group were as follows:

Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE stam M oA

B 7% 2] B8 o)
RBEERBBKEER

R-B—+EFE=A=+—H AX&£EIE
1T#5 % IR € 48 %8 568,200,000 7T 0 8
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HERHM N —_E—+E=RA=+—
H AEBFBLERDOT -

As at
31 March 2016

As at
31 March 2017

R=B—tF R-F-~%

=A=+—8B =A
Current ratio TRE) RO 1.2 1.6
Gearing ratio @ BEEREL R 25.3% 17.3%
Notes: Bt -
(1) Current ratio is calculated based on total current assets divided by total (1) EEth R DR @RS EER AL RB B Gt
current liabilities. (=4
@) Gearing ratio is calculated based on total bank overdraft, borrowings and  (2) ZBEGGBHEXDRARTESY EELRE

obligation under finance leases divided by total equity and multiplied by 100%.
Borrowings

The Group had bank borrowings as at 31 March 2017 and 31
March 2016 in the sum of HK$38.3 million and HK$17.8 million,
respectively. All bank borrowings were made from banks in Hong
Kong and were repayable within three years, except a mortgage loan
of HK$22.8 million obtained during the year for the acquisition of two
properties, which was repayable within twenty years. No financial
instruments were used for hedging purposes, nor were there any
foreign currency net investments hedged by current borrowings
and/or other hedging instruments. The weighted average interest
rates (per annum) were 3.1% and 3.9% for the year ended 31 March
2017 and 31 March 20186, respectively.

FAEIH T (B DA 2 4058 A 100%5T B -
B8

R_EBE—+tHF=ZA=+—BKZZE
—RNEFEZAZ+—B  AEBHBEE
38,300,000 7T & 17,800,000 7T 38 17 &
B -FBRITEEHHBBNRITRME
WER=ZFREE TEEVREMEY
F N F A TS B B 5£22,800,000%
T ZERER-_TFREE -BES
BT ERBAESS  TEEAINEREF
HEEBAMNEER/SKEMEFTAEY
e BHEFE—+tF=ZA=ZF+—B K=
TE—RXFZAZ+—HLEFE  MEF
HEFED R AE3.1%%3.9% °
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Management Discussion-and Analysis
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Financial Review (coniinueq)

Treasury Policies

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the year. The Board closely monitors the
Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of
the Group’s assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet
its funding requirements from time to time. Surplus cash will be
invested to meet the Group’s cash need in support of the Group’s
business strategies from time to time.

Capital Structure

The capital of the Company comprises ordinary shares and other
reserves. The shares of the Company have been listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 3 December 2013. On 10 August 2015,
the Company issued and allotted 50,000,000 new ordinary shares
at HK$1.122 per share. As at 31 March 2017, the total number of
issued ordinary shares of the Company was 550,000,000 shares.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had capital commitments totaling
HK$4.5 million for investment in an associate and purchase of
computer equipment. As at 31 March 2016, the Group had capital
commitments totaling HK$7.2 million for investment in an associate
and purchase of computer equipment, a machine and leasehold
improvement.

Significant Investments Held
Except for the investments in subsidiaries, joint venture and
associates, the Group did not hold any significant investment in

equity interest in any other company during the year.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital
Assets

Except for the aforesaid capital commitment to the investment
in an associate, the Group did not have other plans for material
investments and capital assets.
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Financial Review (continueq)

Material Acquisitions

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of
associates, joint ventures or subsidiaries during the year ended 31
March 2017.

Exposure to Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group operates principally in Hong Kong and its business is
supported by an information technology support services centre
located in the PRC. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
mainly arising from the exposure of Renminbi against Hong Kong
dollars. The Group does not hedge its foreign exchange risk as its
exposure to foreign exchange risk is low as the Group’s cash flows
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Charge of Assets

As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group pledged the plant and
machinery with a carrying value of HK$23.8 million and HK$50.9
million respectively, as collaterals to secure the Group’s obligations
under finance leases. As at 31 March 2017, the Group pledged two
properties with a carrying value of HK$66.9 million as collaterals to
secure the Group’s mortgage loan.

Use of Proceeds

The Company’s shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on 3
December 2013 and raised a net proceed from its initial public
offering of HK$66.5 million. During the period between the listing
date and 31 March 2017, HK$55.7 million of the net proceed from
the listing was utilised in accordance with the proposed applications
set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds”
in the prospectus of the Company dated 20 November 2013. The
unused proceeds were deposited in licensed banks in Hong Kong.

Capital Expenditure

During the year, the Group invested HK$76.5 million in property,
plant and equipment, represented a significant increase of 2.4 times
of the capital expenditure of last year, primarily due to the acquisition
of properties during the year. The respective amount for the year
ended 31 March 2016 of HK$22.8 million excluded the property,
plant and equipment acquired in the business combination.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Employees and Emolument Policies

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had 367 full time employees. There
is no significant change in the Group’s emolument policies. On top
of basic salaries, bonuses may be paid by reference to the Group’s
performance as well as individual’s performance. Other staff benefits
include contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme in Hong Kong, the provision of pension funds,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance and other relevant
insurance for employees who are employed by the Group pursuant
to the PRC rules and regulations and the prevailing regulatory
requirements of the PRC, and the Employees Provident Fund and
contributions to Social Security Organization for employees who
are employed by the Group pursuant to the Malaysian rules and
regulations and the prevailing regulatory requirements of Malaysia.

Dividends

The Board resolved not to declare an interim dividend for the six
months ended 30 September 2016 to its shareholders (2015:
HK$2.40 cents per ordinary share, totaling HK$13,200,000). On 23
June 2017, the Board recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK$1.60 cents per ordinary share, totaling HK$8,800,000 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on Tuesday, 15 August 2017 (2016: HK$2.30 cents
per ordinary share, totaling HK$12,650,000).
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate
governance standard and procedures to ensure the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure in order to enhance the
shareholders’ value.

Corporate Governance Practice

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate governance.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company was in
compliance with the code provisions set out in the CG Code except
for the deviation as explained below.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of
the chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual. The Company
does not at present separate the roles of the chairman and chief
executive officer. Mr. She Siu Kee William is the chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company. The Board believes that vesting
the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer in the same
person has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within the
Group and enables more effective and efficient overall strategic
planning for the Group. The Board further believes that the balance
of power and authority for the present arrangement will not be
impaired and is adequately ensured by the current Board which
comprises experienced and high calibre individuals with sufficient
number thereof being non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors.

Save as the aforesaid and in the opinion of the Directors, the
Company had met all code provisions set out in the CG Code during
the year ended 31 March 2017.

The Board will continue to review and further improve the
Company’s corporate governance practices and standards, so as
to ensure its business activities and decision-making processes are
regulated in a proper and prudent manner.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors
had complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2017.
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Corporate Governance-Report
rEERWE

Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company, and is responsible for setting up the overall strategy as
well as reviewing the operation and financial performance of the
Group. The Board reserved for its decision or consideration matters
covering overall Group strategy, major acquisitions and disposals,
annual budgets, annual and interim results, recommendations on
Directors’ appointment or re-appointment, approval of major capital
transactions and other significant operational and financial matters.
The management was delegated the authority and responsibility
by the Board for the daily management of the Group. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board
committees. Further details of these committees are set out in this
report.

The Board currently consists of eight Directors including two
executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. She Siu Kee William (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lam Shing Kai

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki

Mr. Leung Wai Ming

Mr. Deng Xiaen

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Poon Chun Wai

Mr. Fu Chung
Mr. Ma Siu Kit
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Board of Directors (continuea)

Mr. She Siu Kee William, Mr. Lam Shing Kai, Mr. Leung Wai
Ming, Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki and Mr. Leung Yat Pang (a former
non-executive Director resigned on 28 May 2015) entered into a
deed of confirmation dated 2 July 2013 confirming the existence of
their acting in concert arrangement to jointly control their respective
interest in the Company held through eprint Limited. Save as
aforesaid, the Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced
board composition is formed to ensure strong independence
exists across the Board. The composition of the Board reflects
the balanced skills and experience for effective leadership. The
biographical information of the Directors are set out on pages 59 to
61 under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report.

The Board decides on corporate strategies, approves overall
business plans and evaluates the Group’s financial performance
and management. Specific tasks that the Board delegates to the
Group’s management include the implementation of strategies
approved by the Board, the monitoring of operating budgets, the
implementation of internal control procedures, and the ensuring of
compliance with relevant statutory requirements and other rules and
regulations.

Board Meetings

During the year ended 31 March 2017, 8 Board meetings were held.
All Directors were given an opportunity to include any matters in the
agenda for regular Board meetings, and were also given sufficient
time to review documents and information relating to matters to be
discussed in Board meetings in advance.
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Number of

attendance

Name of Director HERE
Mr. She Siu Kee William REBETE 8/8
Mr. Lam Shing Kai MORIESLE 8/8
Mr. Fung Hong Keung (Note 1) S FEoR St A (MYsE1) 4/4
Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki HEHELAE 7/8
Mr. Leung Wai Ming REREE 7/8
Mr. Deng Xiaen HERLELE 6/8
Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah (Note 2) B ER L (MisE2) 3/3
Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen SR S A 8/8
Ms. Luk Mei Yan (Note 3) B 3= B 2z + (M 7E3) 77
Mr. Poon Chung Wai (Note 4) EIRE T E (M 5E4) 5/5
Mr. Fu Chung (Note 5) B BEE (HMFs) N/A
i A

Mr. Ma Siu Kit (Note 6) B A (MH5E6) 11
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Board of Directors (continuea)

Board Meetings (continued)

Notes:

1.

Mr. Fung Hong Keung resigned as an executive Director on 30 September
2016, 4 Board meetings were held before his resignation.

Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah retired as an independent non-executive Director on 15
August 2016, 3 Board meetings were held before his retirement.

Ms. Luk Mei Yan resigned as an independent non-executive Director on 30
December 2016, 7 Board meetings were held before her resignation.

Mr. Poon Chung Wai was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 15 August 2016, 5 Board meetings were held during his tenure of office for
the year ended 31 March 2017.

Mr. Fu Chung was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 8
March 2017, no Board meeting was held during his tenure of office for the year
ended 31 March 2017.

Mr. Ma Siu Kit was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 30
December 2016, 1 Board meeting was held during his tenure of office during
the year ended 31 March 2017.

Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection by the Directors. Every Board member is entitled to have
access to Board papers and related materials, and has unrestricted
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, and
has the liberty to seek external professional advice if so required.
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Board of Directors (continuea)

General Meeting

During the year ended 31 March 2017, 2 general meetings were
held, being the 2016 annual general meeting and the extraordinary

general meeting of the Company both held on 15 August 2016. =z —
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Name of Director

Number of
attendance

H R B

Mr. She Siu Kee William RIBEFSE

Mr. Lam Shing Kai MAEE S A&

Mr. Fung Hong Keung Vil ke

Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki HEHEEA

Mr. Leung Wai Ming REAEE

Mr. Deng Xiaen HEBRLESE

Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah (Note 1) BEEEE LT (M5E1)

Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen B ST A

Ms. Luk Mei Yan BB 2+

Mr. Poon Chung Wai (Note 2) EIRE T E (M 5E2)

Mr. Fu Chung (Note 3) 5 AR5 AE (HE3)

Mr. Ma Siu Kit (Note 4) BIRANFLE (H5E4)
Notes: B EE
1. Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah retired as an independent non-executive Director on 15 1.

August 2016, 1 general meeting was held before his retirement.

2. Mr. Poon Chung Wai was appointed as an independent non-executive Director 2.
on 15 August 2016, no general meeting was held during his tenure of office for
the year ended 31 March 2017.

3. Mr. Fu Chung was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 8 3.
March 2017, no general meeting was held during his tenure of office for the
year ended 31 March 2017.

4. Mr. Ma Siu Kit was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 30 4.
December 2016, no general meeting was held during his tenure of office for the
year ended 31 March 2017.

2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2
0/2
1/1
2/2
2/2
N/A
& A
N/A
TiE A
N/A
TiE A
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Board of Directors (continuea)

General Meeting (continued)

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, uses annual general meetings or
other general meetings to communicate with them and encourage
their participation. The Board notes that the Chairman of the Board
and the chairmen or, in their absence, other members of the audit
committee (“Audit Committee”), nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) and remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) of the Company should attend the annual general
meeting to answer questions and collect views of shareholders.

Directors’ Training

According to code provision A.68.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by way of attending seminars relating to their role as a
Director of the Company.

The individual training record of each Director received for the year
ended 31 March 2017 is set out below:

Name of Director

Mr. She Siu Kee William RIBERE
Mr. Lam Shing Kai MAEERE
Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki HEHEA
Mr. Leung Wai Ming RERTE
Mr. Deng Xiaen HERLLE
Mr. Poon Chung Wai EIRE T E
Mr. Fu Chung B BkaE
Mr. Ma Siu Kit IR E
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. She Siu Kee William, the Chairman of the Company, was also
appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive
officer in the same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent
leadership within the Group and enables more effective and efficient
overall strategic planning for the Group. The Board further believes
that the balance of power and authority for the present arrangement
will not be impaired and is adequately ensured by current Board
which comprises experienced and high calibre individuals with
sufficient number thereof being non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors.

Independent non-executive Directors and
non-executive Directors

The three independent non-executive Directors are persons of
high calibre, with working experience, academic and professional
qualifications in the fields of accounting, company secretaryship,
printing or management. With their experience gained from various
sectors, they provide strong support towards the effective discharge
of the duties and responsibilities of the Board. Each independent
non-executive Director gives an annual confirmation of his/her
independence to the Company, and the Company considers each
of them to be independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for a specific term and are subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association
of the Company (the “Articles”).

Nomination Committee

In considering the nomination of new Directors, the Board will take
into account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership
and professional ethics of the candidates, especially their experience
in the printing business and/or other professional area.

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 13
November 2013 with written terms of reference, which was aligned
with the CG Code. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is currently made available on the Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company’s website.
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Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Nomination Committee consists of two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Fu Chung (as chairman) and
Mr. Poon Chung Wai, and an executive Director, namely Mr. She
Siu Kee William. The functions of the Nomination Committee are
to review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Group’s strategy; to identify
qualified individuals to become members of the Board; to assess
the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and
to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors,
in particular the Chairman and the chief executive officer. The
Board adopted on 13 November 2013 the board diversity policy
(the “Policy”) and delegated certain duties under the Policy to the
Nomination Committee. The Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. The Company will also take into consideration its own
business model and specific needs from time to time in determining
the optimum composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the necessity for setting
measurable objectives for implementing the Policy from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Nomination Committee
held 5 meetings for (1) reviewing the Board composition, (2)
reviewing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors, (3) assessing the necessity to set measurable objectives
for implementing the Policy, (4) considering the re-election of retiring
Directors and (5) considering the nomination of Directors and
re-designation of Director.
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Number of

attendance

Nomination Committee member HE R E
Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen SR S A 5/5
Mr. Fu Chung (Note 1) 1\ BkE (M) N/A
i@ A

Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah (Note 2) BEEEE LT (fF2) 2/2
Mr. Poon Chun Wai (Note 3) EIRE T E (M 5E3) 3/3
Mr. She Siu Kee William SEBESLE 5/5
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Nomination Committee (coninued)

Notes:

1. Mr. Fu Chung was appointed as a member on 8 March 2017, no meeting was
held during his tenure of office for the year ended 31 March 2017.

2. Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah ceased as a member on 15 August 2016, 2 meetings
were held before his cessation.

3. Mr. Poon Chun Wai was appointed as a member on 15 August 2016, 3
meetings were held after his appointment during his tenure of office for the year
ended 31 March 2017.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 13
November 2013 with written terms of reference, which was aligned
with the CG Code. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is currently made available on the Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee consists of two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Poon Chung Wai (as chairman)
and Mr. Fu Chung and one executive Director, namely Mr. She Siu
Kee William.

The functions of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure on the remuneration packages for all Directors’ and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy. The
model of Remuneration Committee described in code provision
B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code has been adopted by the Remuneration
Committee, which to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive directors and
senior management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment.
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Remuneration Committee (continvea)

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Remuneration Committee
held 5 meetings for (1) reviewing the remuneration structure for the
executive Directors and senior management and the remuneration
proposals for the year 2016/2017 and (2) making recommending on
the remuneration of the new Directors and senior management.

FMEES

REE_ZE—+tF=A=+—"HILFE
N HFHEZEESRTRANSE \(1)%55
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Number of
attendance
Remuneration Committee member R
Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah (Note 1) e EE LT (M) 2/2
Mr. Poon Chung Wai (Note 2) EIRE & (MFEE2) 3/3
Mr. She Siu Kee William RIBELE 5/5
Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen SRR S A 5/5
Mr. Fu Chung (Note 3) B BEE (M3 N/A
i@
Notes: B2
1. Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah ceased as a member on 15 August 2016, 2 mesetings 1. R-ZZE—XR"FENATHB EEFEFHLEE
were held before his cessation. YNZEEGKRE REFEEN FMEEQ
TR
2. Mr. Poon Chun Wai was appointed as a member on 15 August 2016, 3 2, RZE—XNENA+HAB  BRELLEES
meetings were held during his tenure of office for the year ended 31 March ETAFMEZE €K E CHBHE-_Z—+F=A
2017. =t+—RLEFE REEBRYHE FMEE
@gf—}: w B AR
3. Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen ceased as a member on 8 March 2017, 5 meetings 3, i t FE=AN\B XL E BT
were held before his cessation. ; = @ B REETH FHEZE SR
TEREE -
4. Mr. Fu Chung was appointed as a member on 8 March 2017, no meeting was 4, R-ZZE—+E=AN\B BLEEEEZF
held during his tenure of office for the year ended 31 March 2017. BN EEeXKE HE-_Z—+tFE=AH4
—t+—BLEFE RECBSAHE HMHEE
BUWEBITEE -

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 13 November
20183. The purpose of the share option scheme is to recognize and
acknowledge the contributions of the eligible participants to motivate
them and to optimize their performance and efficiency for the
benefit of the Group and to attract or retain or otherwise maintain
on-going business relationships with the eligible participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of
the Group. Details of the share option scheme are set out in the
Directors’ Report.

The emolument payable to Directors will depend on their respective
contractual terms under employment contracts or service contracts,
if any, and will be fixed by the Board based on the recommendation
of the Remuneration Committee, the performance of the Group and
the prevailing marketing conditions. Details of the Directors and
senior management’s emoluments for the year ended 31 March
2017 are set out in Note 38 to the financial statements.
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Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee with written terms
of reference on 13 November 2013, which was revised on 22 April
2016 to be aligned with the code provisions under the CG Code.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is currently made
available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ma Siu Kit (as chairman), Mr. Poon Chun Wai
and Mr. Fu Chung.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions
of resignation or dismissal of such auditor; reviewing the interim
and annual reports and accounts of the Group; and overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting system (including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff in charge
of the Company'’s financial reporting function and their training
arrangement and budget) and supervising the risk management and
the internal control systems.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss
any area of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee reviews
the interim and annual reports before submission to the Board. The
Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal requirements
in the review of the Company’s interim and annual reports.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Audit Committee held 2
meetings.
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Number of

attendance

Name of Director HERE
Ms. Luk Mei Yan X B2+ 2/2
Mr. Ma Siu Kit (Note 1) BIRARLE (HFFET) N/A
i A

Mr. Lung Cheuk Wah (Note 2) EEEELT (fiF2) 11
Mr. Poon Chun Wai (Note 3) E IR A L& (M 5E3) 1/1
Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen o SBR SEAE 2/2
Mr. Fu Chung (Note 4) o RS AE (HiEs) N/A
TiEH
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Audit Committee (continueq)

Notes:

1. Mr. Ma Siu Kit was appointed as a member on 30 December 2016, no meeting
was held during his tenure of office for the year ended 31 March 2017.

2. Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah ceased as a member on 15 August 2016, 1 meeting was
held before his cessation.

3. Mr. Poon Chun Wai was appointed as a member on 15 August 2016, 1 meeting
was held during his tenure of office for the year ended 31 March 2017.

4. Mr. Fu Chung was appointed as a member on 8 March 2017, no meeting was
held during his tenure of office for the year ended 31 March 2017.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Audit Committee
reviewed, among others, the annual and interim results of the
Group, which were in the opinion of the Audit Committee that the
preparation of such consolidated financial statements and results
complied with the applicable accounting standards and the Listing
Rules.

The Audit Committee noted the existing risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and also noted that review of
the same shall be carried out annually.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Company’s corporate governance functions are carried out
by the Board pursuant to the code provisions as set out in the CG
code.

The corporate governance functions currently performed by the
Board are to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance to comply with the CG Code and
other legal or regulatory requirements; to oversee the Company’s
orientation program for new Directors; to review and monitor the
training and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management; to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and to review the Company’s disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Board held 1 meeting
for reviewing the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and reviewing the Company’s
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended to 31 March 2017, the remuneration payable or
paid to the Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), is
as follows:
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HK$’000
TRERT

Services rendered RRER
— Audit services — EE R 1,521
— Non-audit services (Note) — FEEAT R (BIE) 198

Note: The non-audit services provided by PwC include tax services and other related
services.

Company Secretary

Mr. Mok Chun Wa (“Mr. Mok”) was appointed as the company
secretary on 30 September 2016. The biographical details of Mr.
Mok are set out under the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management”.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules,
Mr. Mok had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Shareholders’ Rights

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year
and at the place as may be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be called an
extraordinary general meeting.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continueq)

Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

According to the Articles of the Company, extraordinary general
meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the company secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Putting enquiries by shareholders to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong. The relevant address is as follows:

Flat A3, 1st Floor, Phase 3
Kwun Tong Industrial Centre
448-458 Kwun Tong Road
Kwun Tong, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Procedures for putting forward proposals by
shareholders at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders should follow the procedures set out in the
sub-section headed “Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting” above for putting forward proposals for discussion
at general meetings.

Voting by Poll

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll except
where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be
voted on by a show of hands. As such, all the resolutions to be set
out in the notice of 2017 annual general meeting will be voted by
poll.
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Investor Relations

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and reasonable disclosure of information to its
shareholders.

Information of the Company is disseminated to the shareholders in
the following manner:

° Delivery of annual and interim results and reports to all
shareholders;

o Publication of announcements on the annual and interim
results on the Stock Exchange’s website, and issue of other
announcements and shareholders’ circulars in accordance
with the continuing disclosure obligations under the Listing
Rules; and

o The general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and shareholders.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Company’s consolidated financial statements for each financial year
which give a true and fair view of financial position of the Group and
the Group’s financial performance and cash flows for that period. In
preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2017, the Board has selected suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently; made judgments and estimates that
are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the accounts on a
going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and
necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated
financial statements.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for monitoring the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group on
an ongoing basis and review their effectiveness. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted an annual
review of both design and implementation effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2017, covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, with a view to
ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions are adequate. In this respect, the
Audit Committee communicates any material issues to the Board.

The Directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit function
and are of the view that in light of the size, nature and complexity of
the business of the Group, it would be more cost effective to appoint
external independent professionals to perform internal audit function
for the Group in order to meet its needs.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group appointed Baker
Tilly Hong Kong Risk Assurance Limited (“Baker Tilly”) to:

° assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of workshops and interviews; and

° independently perform internal control review and assess
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management measures
as recommended by Baker Tilly to enhance the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and mitigate risks of
the Group were adopted by the Board. Based on the findings and
recommendations of Baker Tilly as well as the comments of the
Audit Committee, the Board considered the internal control and risk
management systems effective and adequate.
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Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group established its enterprise risk management framework in
the year. While the Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that
sound and effective internal controls are maintained, management
is responsible for designing and implementing an internal control
system to manage all kinds of risks faced by the Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritized and allocated treatments. The
Group’s risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise
Risk Management — Integrated Framework, which allows the Board
and management to manage the risks of the Group effectively. The
Board receives regular reports through the Audit Committee that
oversees risk management and internal audit functions.

Principal Risks

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the following principal risks
of the Group were identified and classified into strategic risks,
operational risks, financial risks and compliance risks.

Risk Areas Principal Risks
[ Bz B 45 FERMK

Strategic Risks
5B L
Operational Risks

No significant risk identified

RERENAR

2ERR RA R L B IRE
Financial Risks No significant risk identified
B 75 A B REREXNER
Compliance Risks

&R ER THEBBRBRERD
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Risk Control Mechanism

The Group adopts a “three-layer” corporate governance structure
with operational management and controls performed by operations
management, coupled with risk management monitoring carried out
by the finance team and independent internal audit outsourced to
and conducted by Baker Tilly. The Group maintains a risk register to
keep track of all identified major risks of the Group. The risk register
provides the Board, the Audit Committee, and management with a
profile of its major risks and records management’s actions taken
to mitigate the relevant risks. Each risk is evaluated at least annually
based on its likelihood of occurrence and potential impact upon
the Group. The risk register is updated by management as the risk
owners with addition of new risks and/or removal of existing risks,
if applicable, at least annually, after the annual risk evaluation has
been performed. This review process can ensure that the Group
proactively manages the risks faced by it in the sense that all risk
owners have access to the risk register and are aware of and alert to
those risks in their area of responsibility so that they can take follow-
up actions in an efficient manner.

The Group’s risk management activities are performed by
management on an ongoing process. The Company has adopted
risk management policy and procedures (the “Risk Management
Policy”). The effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
framework will be evaluated at least annually, and periodic
management meeting is held to update the progress of risk
monitoring efforts. Management is committed to ensure that risk
management forms part of the daily business operation processes in
order to align risk management with corporate goals in an effective
manner.

The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group’s system of internal controls and
risk management annually to further enhance the Group’s internal
control and risk management systems as appropriate.
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Handling and Dissemination of Inside
Information

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information according to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” published by the Securities and Future Commission
in June 2012 to ensure inside information remains confidential
until the disclosure of such information is appropriately approved,
and the dissemination of such information is efficiently and
consistently made. The Company regularly reminds the Directors
and employees about due compliance with all policies regarding
the inside information. Also, the Company keeps Directors, senior
management and employees appraised of the latest regulatory
updates. The Company shall prepare or update appropriate
guidelines or policies to ensure the compliance with regulatory
requirements.

Constitutional Documents

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 March 2017.
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Approach

eprint Group Limited (hereafter called the “Company”) is committed
to promoting transparency of the Company’s operations and
its impact on the environment and society in which it operates,
and also communication with its stakeholders. The results of the
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) review shown in this
report demonstrate the importance of environmental protection we
place on top of our business development target, and explain how
we seek to continually improve our ESG strategy in line with global
standards. This report also illustrates the focus of our resources
utilized for our core operations in order for the Company to become
the leading printing company for creating a highly efficient and
balanced business profile.

With both integrity and purpose, we look at issues that may have a
reputational impact on, or that may pose a risk to, the Group in the
short-, medium- or long-term period. Issues that are important to
our stakeholders, including but not limited to, our customers and
employees, as well as non-governmental organizations (NGOs), are
also crucial to us. We are positive in developing opportunities with a
focus on work ethics to ensure that the Group’s success in business
development is sustainable with the benefits which pass on to our
employees, customers and the environment.

The integration of sustainability into our business strategy as well
as daily operations is seen and pursued as a must in our business
model. To deal with the ESG issues effectively, understanding
of, and interaction with, our employees, customers and other
stakeholders are of the highest priority. We believe that thoughtful
management of ESG issues is an essential part of long-term
success in a rapidly changing world. With thorough understanding of
the ESG risks and opportunities, the Group will be better positioned
in allocating its resources to diminish and recycle different kinds
of waste, while increased demand for higher standards of waste
treatment is expected by regulators. Thus, greater challenges are
expected to come up. In addition, we believe that our expertise,
capabilities, and ownership model can be part of the solutions
to some of the challenges that organizations around the world
are already facing. We are confident that as part of the business
decision-making process, whenever the Group can properly monitor
the EGS issues with all relevant stakeholders involved in the ESG
management process, the long-term success of the Company will
be guaranteed.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Approach (continued)

Finally, our sustainability strategy in the following aspects is applied
to all the work streams:

1. To contribute to the environmental sustainability;
2. To attract, retain and support employees;

3. Toengage with stakeholders;

4.  To sustain local community;

5. To strengthen community relations; and

6. To grow a supplier commitment.
About this report

Report Profile

This year’s ESG report (“Report”) is Group’s first step in
environmental, social and governance reporting and mainly focuses
on its Hong Kong office and its branches in the PRC and Malaysia (i.e.
the main operations of the Group). It describes Group’s progress
in its way towards creating sustainable value for its shareholders
and other stakeholders. During the process of preparing this ESG
report, we have conducted thorough review and evaluation of the
existing ESG practices of the Group with the aim of achieving better
performance results in the future. The ESG reporting period is
consistent with our financial year.

Report Scope and Boundary

This Report contains information that is material to understand
the Group’s ESG practices in its daily operations in Hong Kong,
PRC and Malaysia.

With the internal factors such as our organizational core values,
strategy and competency that contribute to our sustainable
development, taken into account we have also considered the ESG
challenges as reported by other market players so as to decide and
prioritize material topics within this Report for communication with
the stakeholders.
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About this report continuea)

Report Scope and Boundary (continued)

The material ESG issues are considered as those which have or may
have a significant impact on:

° the various branches of the Group in Hong Kong, PRC and
Malaysia;

° the current and the future environment and/or society;
° our financial and/or operational performance;
° our stakeholders’ assessments, decisions and actions.

This Report is prepared in accordance with the Stock Exchange’s
ESG Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

A feedback hotline has been created to enable readers of our ESG
report to provide their comments or recommend improvements
on our ESG reporting. Although there were no specific programs
to engage stakeholders outside of the Group when this Report
was being prepared, we have included the key issues which are
of different stakeholder groups’ concerns, based on our continual
communication with them. Comments and suggestions regarding
our ESG performance are always welcome and can be sent to
Mr. Mok via mail.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Our Stakeholders

The Group is actively searching for every opportunity to understand
and engage our stakeholders to ensure that improvement can be
implemented to our products and services. We strongly believe that
our stakeholders play a crucial role in sustaining the success of our
business.

Stakeholders Possible concerned issues

B A BENMBERRE

HKEXx Compliance of listing rules, timely and
accurate announcements.

BEBRGF BT EWARR RGEEEL DM o

Government Compliance of laws and regulations,

preventing tax evasion, and social welfare.

B BREBER  BRUABREERER -

Suppliers Payment schedule, stable demand.

HrER NHRE - RBERBK -

Investors Corporate governance system, business
strategies and performance, investment
returns.

KREHE PEEREBR EBRBELRE KRED
?F:ﬁ o

Media & Public  Corporate governance, environmental
protection, human right.

HEEAR hEER RR AR
Customers Product quality, delivery times, reasonable

prices, service value, labour protection and
work safety.

LS EmEEx R AHER - RBEME-
BTRERTIELS -
Employees Rights and benefits, employee

compensation, training and development,
work hours, working environment.

(== ERRER  EEFHM - EIIRER T
e &R ~ TIEIRIR o
Community Community environment, employment and

community development, social welfare.

it HEBRE ERIRERER LGB -

R @ MERATME

B A

AEEEGESKE - EAERAZE#EDR
AMEE - EARERERPINERER
BoRMBEREAERERMNSGE
BT HREEZERER -

Communication and responses

BREKEE

Meetings, training, workshops, programs,

website updates and announcements.

@ 12y e 22 SBUERK

7,
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Interaction and visits, government
inspections, tax returns and other
information.

BEPRMRE BARE HRELHEME
H o

Site visits.

RIEAS -

Organizing and participating in seminars,
interviews, shareholders’ meetings, financial
reports or operation reports for investors,
media and analysts.

MBI 2HEPTE  FK BRAE B
BREE  HREONEIRHEM GRS L

ey

Issue of newsletters on the Company’s web
site.

RARB BB MmEE -

Site visits, after-sales services.

I3

BE#HE SRR -

Conducting union activities, trainings,
interviews, internal memos, employees’
suggestion boxes.

BRERCES - 13| - @k
EREITERM o

Developing community activities, employee

BEREE

okt

&5

voluntary activities and community welfare

subsidies and donations.

MRTREE EESHEEZDRERRE
MEB)EBK -
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Environmental

Overview

At the Group, we understand that the foundation for economic
progress and well-being of the society is a healthy environment and
thus, our priority is to protect the environment and our target is to
minimize adverse impact on the environment.

The Group has established a set of management policies and
measures regarding environmental protection to help to ensure
sustainable development and operation of the Group. The Group
strives to enhance the efficiency in the usage of energy, water
and materials, and also complies with relevant local environmental
regulations and international general practices, with an aim to
reduce the use of natural resources and protect the environment.

We aim at striking a balance between sustainable corporate
development and environmental protection, we closely monitor
greenhouse gas emission and resource consumption rate to
minimize our impact on the environment and natural resources.

Compliance and Grievance

As far as the Company concerned, there was no definitive
non-compliance incidents or grievances which were noted by the
Group in relation to environmental aspects during the year.

Emissions

We have established the “Environmental and Use of Resources
Policy & Procedures” by which we pay full attention to environmental
standards and guidelines to help fulfill our commitment to
environmental protection and efficient use of resources.

The Group has implemented a number of internal environmental
measures, with appropriate equipment installed to help reduce the
adverse impact brought to the environment. At the same time, we
are committed to achieving environmental protection and energy
conservation by cooperating with other environmental units and by
promoting it to the public.
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Environmental continvea)

Emissions (continued)

In order to achieve the above objectives, we have adopted the

following working principles:

To comply with the regulations.

The Group ensures that internal guidelines and procedures
are in place for all its business operations in the working
environment for complying with the relevant laws and
regulations.

To prevent pollution.

The Group does its best to avoid, reduce and control
environmental pollution caused by its daily operations.

To reduce the wastes.

The Group has installed an automatic wastewater treatment
system to ensure that any effluent discharged to the drainage
complies with the relevant regulatory requirements in Hong
Kong. The Group also engages external agencies to perform
waste discharge testing annually to ensure that the pH value
of the liquid discharge fulfils the environmental standard set by
the Government.

Besides, the Group closely cooperates with qualified
environmental recyclers to recycle solid wastes produced
during the production process (including, but not limited to,
waste paper, waste zinc, and waste plastic materials, etc.).

To reduce consumption of resources.

The Group aims to implement convenient and cost-effective
waste management arrangements; and uphold sustainable
development by reducing consumption of resources, reducing
manufacturing waste, as well as reusing and recycling of
reusable wastes.

R @ MERATME

RERELEBE  RASKMA T TE

e BIHRHE

AEBRERRIERETFNAEE
BRE2GHERGESI REF - #®
8T AEBARAR -

. EBER

AEBEFENER RIOREHAE
REELNREFEGR -

s ROEW

AEBELZE-EBRKEHRER
B ERPFEAFKEGENSKTE
EEHBEERE AKBETZE
SNER AR IR B 4 1T RE D BE ORI
HE (R HF UR B8 WIpHE T & BT R 7€
MIRBIRE o

BEAN - AN B A B AR IR R B R
EREF BREMEEBRERE
TEREY (BRENRNER -
BEEHLRBEREBHYE) -

o RBOLERHER
AEBEEEHRTERAKANY S
MEMER LB RLGARERR -

BEROERBR RO EEREY
ERFOWAEEERNEY

2016/17F#K eprint EEERAT 43



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE e REBHRE

Environmental coninvea)

Emissions (Continued)

° To improve the Group’s performance.

Based on the changes in internal and external factors,
management reviews the goals and objectives relating to
environmental protection, use of resources, and sustainable
development and operations of the Group in order to
continuously improve the Group’s performance.

Besides, the Group has obtained a Discharge Licence (Licence No.
WT00016373-2013) which is valid until 30 June 2018), in relation to
the Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358). The Group has
also been granted with the Registration of Waste Producer (Producer
No.: 3422-295-.2807-01) under the Waste Disposal (Chemical
Waste) (General) Regulation (Cap. 354C).

Total Hazardous Wastes and Non-Hazardous Wastes
& Results Achieved by Mitigating Emissions

During the year, we produced hazardous wastes that contain
materials like printing ink and printing blanket. Although we might
also have produced some non-hazardous wastes like blank paper,
we classify the other wastes as hazardous ones, as we cannot
differentiate them from the hazardous ones.

In order to mitigate the emission of wastes, we have configured the
wastewater recycling system and have engaged qualified recyclers
to recycle wastes (waste paper, waste zinc, and solvents pots, etc.).

Use of resources

We have established the “Environmental and Use of Resources
Policy & Procedures” to ensure that the concept of environmental
sustainability is integrated into every part of our daily business
operations by complying with all environmental protection policies,
practices and initiatives.

The Group complies with the policies in the efficient use of
resources, including energy, water and raw materials.

It is very important to monitor water quality and air quality, and
strengthen the investigation, assessment and reporting on the
ecosystem of production, in order to prevent any environmental
accidents from happening.
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Environmental continvea)

Direct/Indirect usage of electricity/water and raw
materials

The practices that help us to reduce the use of resources include:

Energy:

° Support the “Indoor Temperature Savings Charter” program to e

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - g REBRE
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BER -

XFEBIERNAEMEZRZIFE  #

maintain the average indoor temperature range from 24 to 26
degrees Celsius.

Use compact fluorescent lamps, T5, T8 light tubes or LED
lights.

Turn off the electrical appliances (e.g. air conditioners, lights,
and computers, etc.), when they are not used (e.g. during non-
office hours, and lunch time).

Turn off lights and air conditioners in the office/production
plant when not all members of staff are in the office/production
plant (e.g. Saturday afternoon).

Ensure that all power supplies that are not in use are turned off
properly when the last colleague leaves the office.

Water:

Report matters related to dripping of water to the
Administration Department for follow-up.

Turn off the water source after use.

Use recycled water instead of running water for rinsing zinc
plates.

Install filter to printing machines to recycle water.

Configure a wastewater treatment system which helps to
dilute the wastewater produced during the pre-press stage
of production to ensure that the pH value of the wastewater
meets the required standard before discharge.
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Environmental coninvea)

Direct/Indirect usage of electricity/water and raw
materials (Continued)

Raw materials:
° Use non-alcoholic printing to reduce air pollution.
° Use environment-friendly paper for photocopiers/printers.

° Provide FSC (Forest Certification) paper as one of the choices
from which the customers can choose.

° Clean regularly the parts of the production machine
contaminated with dirt of colour ink to reduce cases of reprint.

° If some parts can still be reused after they have been taken out
from the machine, they will be reserved for spare parts.

° Use kraft paper instead of carton packaging for some of the
packaging.

° Encourage customers to bring their own shopping bags
(BYOB).

° Use the printing ink in the production process that is made of
soybeans.

° Hand over most of the wastes produced in the production
process to the qualified recyclers for recycling.

Packaging materials used for finished products

To reduce the carbon footprint and contribute to save the planet, the
Group encourages our customers to minimize the usage of plastic
bags. We suggest our customers to bring their own shopping bags.
Besides, the majority of the packaging materials used by the Group
is recyclable and biodegradable.

Social

Workplace

The key to our success depends on a strong and well-organized
team of qualified experienced talents. We focus on assisting our
staff to achieve their career goals and self-development. We provide
training through seminars and forums, and encourage our staff to
grow with the Group together.
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Social (continuea)

The Group’s team profile

As at 31 March 2017, we had 343 employees in total.

The Group has maintained an Employees’ Handbook which
stipulates the policies of recruitment, dismissal, promotion,
remuneration and benefits of employees. Every employee gets a
copy of the Employees’ Handbook to make sure that all employees
are aware of their rights and responsibilities. The Group signs an
“employment contract” with every new employee, setting out the
rights and responsibilities of both parties in order to safeguard the
interests of both parties.

Besides, “Human Resources Operation Procedures” has been
established by the Human Resources Department as the guidelines in
relation to monitoring of human resources of the Group. The “Human
Resources Operation Procedures” help management to comply with
labour laws and relevant regulations that have significant impact
on our internal procedures relating to recruitment and promotion,
working hours, and holidays, etc. For example, employees should
normally work for 8-9 hours per day and staff can apply for
overtime claims or compensation leave, subject to the approval of
department supervisors. Besides, employees are entitled to have
annual leave according to their grades and the departments which
they belong to. For instance, staff of managerial grade are entitled to
have 14 days of annual leave per year, while staff of the officer grade
are entitled to have 11 days of annual leave per year. Furthermore,
all our employees are entitled to 5 days’ marriage leave and 2 days’
funeral leave for their close family members (e.g. parents/children/
spouse/grandparents).

In addition, the Group has been observing the relevant laws related
to employment and labour practices as below:

1. The Group is in compliance with the local laws and regulations,
such as enforcing the terms of employment under the
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57) during recruitment, and
providing reasonable working conditions.

2. We provide MPF benefits to our staff in accordance with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

3. In determining the remuneration of our employees, we comply
with the “Minimum Wage Ordinance” (Chapter 608).
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Social (Continued)

The Group’s team profile (continued)

4.  For both recruitment and dismissal, the Group prohibits
practice of discrimination by complying with the Sex
Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 480), the Disability
Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 481) and Race
Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 602).

5. We follow the “Employees’ Compensation Ordinance” (Chapter
282) in regard to the work injury of employees.

Injuries

In the Financial Year 2016/2017, there were no work-related fatalities
during the reporting period.

Indicators BE
Number of reportable injuries ARETIEHE
Number of man-hour losses BRTEH

Protecting Health and Safety

At our Group, we focus our efforts on providing a safe and enjoyable
working environment for all of our employees. We signed a “Health
and Safety Policy” statement in 2013 to emphasize that occupational
safety is the first priority of our Group. We encourage our employees
to attend relevant training and we also provide sufficient guidance
and supervision to the employees in relation to occupational safety.

The Group has also established “Internal Safety Rules” and “Safety
and Health Management Policies and Procedures” as guidelines to
standardize the occupational safety procedures adopted by various
departments of the Group, with an aim to protect employees from
occupational hazards.

In case if an employee encounters an industrial accident, the Group
will make appropriate compensation to the relevant employee
in accordance with the guidelines stipulated in the Employees’
Compensation Ordinance.

Furthermore, a Safety Committee has been established to
meet regularly and supervise the occupational safety of various
departments of the Group, and coordinate and conduct training on
occupational safety for the employees of the Group.
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Social (continuea)

Development and Training

We believe, that our staff are the valuable assets of the organization
and by investing in employees we improve the service quality of the
Group. We also believe that by organizing training through seminars
and forums for our employees, job satisfaction would be promoted
and staff motivation would be increased, thereby lowering staff
turnover rate.

In this respect, training would be arranged for the new employees
during probation period with regard to the skills required for
that particular position. For example, the Customer Service
Department shares the knowledge about the product specifications,
technology for production, work flows of order placement, and
customer service technique, etc. with the responsible staff.
Before the end of the probation period, management assesses
the performance of the new employees in order to ensure that the
new employees are equipped with the required job knowledge and
skills. The assessment criteria include, but not limited to, sense of
responsibility, interpersonal skills and work attitude, etc.

We also encourage our employees to enhance their knowledge and
skills through pursuing continued education. Employees who have
been employed over 1 year are entitled to “Continuing Education
Assistance” if they enroll courses which are relevant to the job
knowledge or industry expertise. In order to increase flexibility,
there is no pre-defined list for restricting the courses to be chosen,
and so, our employees can select the most suitable courses by
themselves.

The Group also arranges external-training for our staff. For example,
in May 2016, we invited staff of the Independent Commission
Against Corruption (“ICAC”) to educate the management staff on
“integrity management and prevention of corruption”. We believe
that integrity and ethics are both important traits for the avoidance
of corruption by the Group’s staff.

Zero Tolerance

At the Group, we have developed an “Anti-discrimination Policy”
to ensure that all our employees understand that harassment
and discrimination are not tolerated by the Group. Our Group
is committed to providing a fair working environment where all
employees are treated equally. All employees are assessed based
on their ability, performance and contribution, irrespective of their
nationality, race, religion, gender, age or family status.
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Social (continuea)

Zero Tolerance (continued)

The Group has adopted the following three measures to
avoid recruiting child labour and forced labour during the
recruitment process:

A.  During the recruitment process, the recruitment advertisements
published by the Group sets out the job responsibilities for
candidates’ reference in order to avoid potential disputes
arising from the job duties. Also, the Group generally does
not select any persons aged under 16 during the stage of
candidates’ shortlisting.

B. Candidates are required to fill in a job application form before
the interview and provide identity documents to ensure that
the applicants can be legally employed in Hong Kong.

C. At the time of employment, the Group enters into an
“Employment Contract” with the new employee, prescribing
the terms of the employment, including basic salary,
working hours, days of annual leave, overtime allowance,
meal allowance, etc., for preventing future disputes over
employment.

According to the Employees’ Handbook issued by the Group,
employees who are in breach of rules, or commit serious dereliction
of duty, malpractice or criminal offence would be immediately
dismissed. In addition, according to the “Human Resources
Operation Procedures” issued by the Human Resources Department
of the Group, the following steps would be taken for the employees
who are dismissed:

A. The department manager or the Human Resources
Department informs the employee directly of the dismissal,
explains the reasons for the dismissal, and completes the
“Employee Termination Form”;

B. Before the relevant employee leaves the Group, the Human
Resources Department collects the items which are the
Group’s assets, such as mobile phone, laptop, business
cards, chops, and locker key, etc.;

C. Arrangement of the last salary payment to the employee within
one week after the employee leaves the Group.
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Social (continuea)

Complaints

The “Human Resources Operations Procedures” issued by the
Human Resources Department of the Group stipulates that the
Group provides employees with a number of channels of lodging
complaints. For example, when a staff member encounters
unreasonable treatment, he/she can report to management of the
department and Human Resources Department of the Group.

Cultural activities

In order to promote work-life balance for our staff, various kinds of
recreational and volunteering activities are provided so as to let our
employees to enrich their lives and also contribute to the society.

For example, the Group has established a basketball team and a
football team. Sports training is provided each month, with an aim to
increase the bonding among employees.

Education

Our Group is in good relationship with Hong Kong Design Institute
(*HKDI"), Pro-Act Training and Development Centre of Vocational
Training Council, CO1 School of Visual Arts and other tertiary
institutions, and invites them from time to time to visit our printing
production lines to educate the students on the basic knowledge of
the printing industry.

In addition, the Group provides scholarships to students with
outstanding performance every year, and also organizes different
competitions to promote the development of local talents.
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Social (continuea)

Cultural activities (continued)
Environment

In addition to having a number of environmental certifications, the
Group has been awarded ISO 14001:2004, and has participated in
various environmental programmes, such as the “Carbon Smart”
program organized by the Hong Kong Productivity Council, the
“Green Office Label” organized by the World Green Organization,
and “BOCHK Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards”, etc.

We also participate in various types of environmental activities such
as the “Red Packets Recycling Program 2016” organized by the
Greeners Action, the “Konica Minolta Green Concert and Power
Triathlon”, the “International Million Trees (Forest) Project — Trees
Conservation and Planting Day”, and the “Hong Kong International
Coastal Cleanup 2016” organized by the Green Council.

The Group also supports various environmental activities, such as
sponsorship for the “Environmental Education Creative Competition”
organized by the Graphic Arts Association of Hong Kong, donating
to “Caritas Computer Workshop” computers.

Labour demand

The Group supports and hires disadvantaged groups and is
awarded the “Partner Employer Award” this year. Moreover, the
Group has close contacts and co-operation with Employees
Retraining Board (“ERB”) for providing different kinds of training to
staff, as well as offering job opportunities to ERB students, and has
won the “ERB Manpower Developer Award Scheme”.

Aiming for more suppliers complying with our Code
of Conduct

The Group has set criteria for assessing suppliers such as price,
quality, working relationship, stability of goods supply, delivery time,

payment terms, etc.

Every year, the Purchasing Department assesses the primary
suppliers of raw materials.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Social (continuea)

Aiming for more suppliers complying with our Code
of Conduct (Continued)

By filling in an evaluation report, the assessment criteria include, but
not limited to, incidents of goods returns, price fluctuation, delivery
time, company background, stability of goods supply, etc. Besides,
The Group has maintained an approved vendor list to include all
qualified suppliers. For each procurement, the Group selects the
suppliers on the approved vendor list and would look for two to
three suppliers for price quoting.

In addition, the Group also requires the suppliers to declare if there
is any close personal or business relationship with the Group’s
directors, employees or agents. If any suppliers and contractors
are found guilty in breaching any legal requirements, the Group has
the right to terminate all outstanding contracts with the relevant
suppliers or contractors immediately, while the relevant suppliers or
contractor is not able to recover any compensation or claim for loss.

Product Responsibility

In the Group, we have established procedures in relation to
monitoring and protection of intellectual property rights.

For the orders placed by the customers at the retail shop or the
self-service platform or through the customer service hotline, the
Customer Service Department is responsible for checking the files
against infringement of intellectual property rights or other issues.

If the file to be printed is suspected of possible infringement of
intellectual property rights, the Group would not start printing unless
the customer can provide the authorization proof of the intellectual
property for verification. In case the customer fails to provide such
authorization/proof, the Group has the right to reject the order. The
Group reserves the rights to any claims or litigation in respect of
infringement of intellectual property rights arising from printing of the
documents provided by the customers.
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Social (continuea)

Product Responsibility (continued)

In order to safeguard the product safety, the printing ink used in the
production process is made of non-hazardous substance such as
soybean, and vegetable oil, and therefore, is free of toxic chemicals
like lead. Test reports which list out the composition of the
ingredients of printing ink are obtained from the ink manufacturers
for our reference. The test reports show that no hazardous
components are contained in the printing ink.

If customers are not satisfied with the quality of the products
delivered, the staff of the retail shops have to conduct preliminary
assessment, and will pass the products to the Quality Control
Department for further checking if necessary.

If reprinting, discount or refund is arisen due to quality control issue,
the retail shop will recall part of the products and send them to the
Quality Control Department for quality checking. A report will then
prepared with information such as checking result, responsible
department and recommendations for rectification clearly listed.

Privacy Matters

Due to the business nature of the Group, the Group has to collect
personal information from customers such as customers’ name,
address, and telephone number, etc.

Nevertheless, all the personal information collected by the Group is
strictly used in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.

The Group has also implemented controls and measures for
protecting the personal data collected. For example, staff are
required to sign non-disclosure agreement upon employment
to state that they are not allowed to disclose any information to
authorized third parties. Besides, when the Group collects personal
data via the Group’s website (e.g. when customers perform order
placement through self-service platform), encryption technology is
adopted to protect the personal data from potential leakage. Firewall
is also set up in the Group’s website to prevent unauthorized access
and abuse by third parties.
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Social (continuea)

Anti-corruption

As stated in our “Anti-fraud Policy” every employee should promptly
report any suspected fraud cases, whether or not he/she is aware of
any suspected persons. Employees may report the suspected fraud
cases to their immediate supervisor or department manager. The
reports can be made verbally (e.g. telephone) or formally in written
form (e.g. letter/email). Full support from the senior management will
be given to the employees reporting fraudulent cases.

After deducting the potential fraudulent cases, investigation will
be conducted with due care and the investigation process will be
kept confidential. For the proven fraud, the management will take
corrective action immediately.

During the past two years, the Group arranged ICAC to provide
training course about “Trust management and prevention of
corruption” for the Group’s directors and staff of officer grade or
above.

Furthermore, the Group has implemented a guideline on gift receipt
to make it clear for employees to prevent bribery. Upon receipt of gift,
an employee has to make declaration to the Group within 3 working
days.

In the Financial Year 2016/2017, no corruption case was noted
and/or reported.

Whistle-blowing policy

We have our own whistle-blowing policy which states that
employees can report their concerns of any suspected misconduct,
malpractice or irregularity within the Group.

In our workplace, in order to maintain a high standard of integrity
and impartiality, we encourage our employees to whistle-blow any
suspected corruption incidents and the whistle-blowers will remain
as anonymous after the report is made.
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Social (continuea)

Communication channel

We have our internal staff complaint procedures to ensure that
proper channels are in place for employees to file their complaints.
If an employee would like to lodge a complaint, he/she can report
directly to his/her department head, if he/she is dissatisfied with the
results, he/she can file complaints further to the Human Resources
Department.

Human Resources Department

At our Company, we have established “Complaint Handling
Procedures” which stipulate the procedures for handling complaints
received from customers. Complaints received must be recorded
in the internal system and addressed to senior staff or Customer
Service Department for follow-up.

Under normal circumstances, the Company should reply to
the complainant within 3 working days. If more than 3 days of
investigation is required, the Company should at least make an
interim reply to the complainant. Furthermore, a final reply should
be made to the complainant within 7 days after the first interim
reply. However, in exceptional cases, if the investigation is still in
progress, the Company, should update the complainant about the
investigation status once a week.

In order to enhance the service quality of various departments,
Customer Service Department reports the details of the complaint
to relevant departments for follow-up during the business review
meeting with Marketing and Production Department.
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Social (continuea)

Community Contribution

Our goal is to establish long-term relationship with groups that have
the same philosophy with us and that are willing to bring social
development to the community based on their mutual assistance,
respect and integrity.

Through cooperating with different bodies in the community,
employee voluntary service and strategic donation of the Group, the
Group is committed to establish positive impact in the following four
areas:

Environmental education:

We work together with different agencies in order to reduce the
damage to the environment caused by the business operations of
the Company. We are also committed to improve the awareness
of employees about carbon reduction, and to supporting and
sponsoring relevant institutions with initiatives to promote
environmental education.

On 10 September 2016, the Company participated in the
“International Coastal Cleanup 2016 Hong Kong” hosted by Green
Council held at Stanley Main Beach. In the event, our staff volunteers
removed trash and debris from the beach.
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Social (continuea)

Community Contribution (continued)
Assistance to the disadvantaged groups:

We believe that everyone is equal. The spirit of mutual help and
mutual love is to make society harmonious and help the economy
to develop. We collect donations from employees and business
partners through various activities to meet the needs of the
disadvantaged and improve the quality of their lives. We also provide
job opportunities to the underprivileged groups.

During 2016, the Group co-organized with SC Storage, Bamboos
Member Service Centre, Mega Toys Discount Outlet and Caritas
Community Centre — Ngau Tau Kok to launch a toys and
stationaries donation scheme, at which the items collected were
donated to children of low-income families.

Also, the Group participated in a charity event “Calbee Charity
Run 2017” which was organized by Hong Kong Employment
Development Service (“EDS”), an approved charity body, on 12
March 2017. EDS aims to support young probationers and inmates,
young people with learning difficulties, ethnic minorities as well as
newly immigrant women. The Group was the printing sponsor of the
event. 20 of our staff and their family members also participated in
the charity run.

Cultivation of cultural creation:

Culture is an important milestone in the heritage of mankind and
a key part of historical testimony. Creation can inspire us to learn
from each other, leading to a more innovative thinking. With respect
to this, we support different colleges to organize different design
contest in order to expand the student’s creative horizons. During
the year, we co-organized a “Post Card Design” competition with
Pro-Act which aimed at encouragement and promotion of creative
ideas of the students by means of postcard design with a theme of
Hong Kong's special.

Furthermore, we cooperated with NGOs and tertiary institutions to
organize different activities such as flags selling, tree planting, blood
donation, red packets recycling, design competition, etc. in order to
raise awareness of social responsibility in our community.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors

Mr. She Siu Kee William (5= 45 &), aged 54, is the Chairman, executive
Director and chief executive officer. He is the founder of the Group
and has participated in the management of the Group since October
2001. Mr. She is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group and
a member of each of the remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. She is primarily responsible for the
overall management, development and planning of the Group and
has more than 20 years of experience in the printing industry.

Mr. Lam Shing Kai (#k & {£), aged 44, joined the Group in 2008.
He was appointed as a non-executive Director on 13 November
2013 and has been re-designated to an executive Director on 18
November 2016. He is the sales and quality control director of the
Group and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Lam
has approximately 20 years of experience in the printing industry.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki (3 = ), aged 52, is a non-executive Director.
He joined the Group in 2005. He has approximately 10 years of
experience in corporate management.

Mr. Chong was awarded a diploma in marketing from the Chartered
Institute of Marketing for fulfilling the requirements of the institute’s
examiners at the diploma examination held in June 1991. He also
obtained a certificate in marketing from Vocational Training Council
in June 1989 and a higher certificate in electronic engineering
from Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known as the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) in November 1987.

Mr. Leung Wai Ming (3 & B8), aged 45, is a non-executive Director.
He joined the Group in 2008. Mr. WM Leung has approximately 10
years of experience in the marketing field.

Mr. Deng Xiaen (88 E &), aged 40, is a non-executive Director. He
joined the Group in 2014. He holds a postgraduate degree of master
in law awarded by Fudan University. He served in the legal affair
department of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Shantou
branch from 1999 to 2002. He was the practicing lawyer in the legal
aid centre of Jinyuan District Shantou City from 2002 to 2003. He
was the practicing lawyer and deputy chief of Guangdong Zhongda
Lawyer Office from 2003 to 2010. He is currently the vice president
of Tung Fung Investment Group Holdings Limited.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Chun Wai (B#&&), aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 15 August 2016. He is also
the chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of each
of the audit committee and nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Poon has over 30 years of experience in printing. He has served
several large-scale companies in printing solutions industry.

Mr. Fu Chung (& &), aged 48, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 8 March 2017. He is also the chairman
of the nomination committee and a member of each of the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Fu
has more than 25 years of experience in the printing industry. He
was an executive committee member of the Chamber of Commerce
for The Hong Kong Printers Association from 2009 to 2016. Mr. Fu
was a sales manager of Kodak (China) Limited from 2000 to 2003,
and in which he was also a sales director from 2003 to 2016.

Mr. Ma Siu Kit (5 Jk %), aged 47, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 December 2016. He is also the
chairman of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Ma had
obtained a bachelor’s degree in business (accountancy) from
Queensland University of Technology, Australia in 1993. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Ma is currently the company secretary of China Flavors and
Fragrances Company Limited (“China Flavors and Fragrances”), a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ma
has over 20 years of accounting related experience from accounting
firms and international companies.

Senior Management

Mr. Mok Chun Wa (E{£%£), aged 31, is the company secretary and
chief financial officer. He joined the Group in 2012. Mr. Mok has over
7 years of experience in accounting, audit and corporate finance and
is responsible for the financial planning, management, internal control
and company secretarial matters of the Group. He had obtained a
bachelor’s degree in business (accountancy) from Hong Kong Baptist
University in 2010, and now he is a student of master of corporate
governance programme in Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr.
Mok is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Chan Wai Keung (FR{&38), aged 49, is the general manger.
Mr. Chan joined the Group in December 2011. Mr. Chan is primarily
responsible for formulating the corporate strategies and planning the
business development of the Group. Mr. Chan has over 10 years
of experience in the printing industry. Mr. Chan served as a sales
manager in Wilson Printing Equipment Limited from August 2001 to
July 2009.

Mr. Tsui Pak Wai (#&4H4&), aged 49, is the chief administrative
officer. He joined the Group in 2006. Mr. Tsui is primarily responsible
for the internal control, formulating the corporate policy and workflow,
monitoring the daily operation of the human resources department
and administrative department and participating in brand building
activities of the Group. Mr. Tsui has over 10 years of experience in the
corporate administration and management. He has been a member
of the Industry & Technology Committee of Hong Kong General
Chamber of Commerce since July 2015, a member of Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute since January 2015. Mr. Tsui was
awarded the graduate executive diploma in Finance and Corporate
Accounting from the University of Hong Kong School of Professional
and Continuing Education in March 2016 and the graduate executive
diploma in PRC corporate governance from the University of Hong
Kong School of Professional and Continuing Education in November
2014 and bachelor of arts from Fu Jen Catholic University in June
1997.

Mr. Cheang Ngai Wang (E83 %), aged 54, is the information
technology director. Mr. Cheang joined the Group in December 2004.
Mr. Cheang has over 10 years of experience in the printing industry.
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Report of the Directors

ESEHRE

The Board is pleased to submit their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Use of Proceeds

The Company’s shares were listed (the “Listing”) on the Stock
Exchange since 3 December 2013 and raised a net proceed from
its initial public offering of approximately HK$66.5 million. Up to
31 March 2017, approximately HK$55.7 million of the net proceed
from the Listing were utilised in accordance with the proposed
applications set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” in the Prospectus. The unused proceeds were deposited
in licensed banks in Hong Kong.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment company and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the provision of printing services and solutions
on advertisement, bound books and stationeries, to a diversified
customer base in Hong Kong.

Business Review

The business review, analysis using financial key performance
indicators and future development in the Company’s business of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 are discussed under
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis”. Such discussion forms an integrate part
of this report.

Environmental Policy and Performance

The environmental policies and performance of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2017 is set out in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 38 to 58
of this annual report.
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Business Review (continuea)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Report of the Directors
BEEgRE
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Compliance Risk

L]
r;:.é

Risk Description

Non-compliance to the Environmental Protection
Ordinances in Hong Kong

The Hong Kong-based production facilities and printing process of
the Group would produce noise and discharge various hazardous
and non-hazardous wastes. The primary wastes produced in the
production process include the used paper, used zinc printing
plates, chemicals and sewage. Accordingly, it has obtained
a Discharge License according to the Water Pollution Control
Ordinance (Cap. 358) and has been granted a Registration of
Waste Producer under the Waste Disposal (Chemical Waste)
(General) Regulation (Cap. 354C).

However, if the Group fails to handle the waste properly, it
would cause environmental pollution and may be subject to
non-compliance to the environmental protection rules and
regulations, including the following:

1)  Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap 354, Laws of Hong Kong)
The Group will be liable to a fine not exceeding HKD200,000
and imprisonment not exceeding 6 months and be liable
to a fine of HKD10,000 for each day on which the offence
continues.

2)  Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap 358, Laws of Hong

Kong)

If the Group discharges any poisonous or noxious matter into
a communal sewer or communal drain, it is liable to for a first
offence, a fine of HKD400,000 and imprisonment for 1 year;
for a second or subsequent offence, a fine of HKD1,000,000
and imprisonment for 2 years, and in addition, if the offence is
a continuing offence, to a fine of HKD40,000 for each day.

Also, the director, manager, secretary or other person concerned
in the management of the body corporate also commits the
offence.
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Business Review (continuea)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)

Risk Response

¥ O
FERRBRERTEERZ @)

[ Bz FE

The Group has implemented several measures to handle the waste
produced during the manufacturing process, including:

1)

64

Waste water

The Group has an automatic wastewater treatment system to
discharge any effluent to the drainage. The waste discharge
testing is performed annually by external agencies to ensure
the pH value of the discharge fulfils the environmental
standard set by the government.

Solid waste

The solid waste (e.g. used paper, used zinc) is sold to
qualified waste collector who has an authorized environmental
license for waste disposal.

Noise

Testing on the noise level would be performed by the Group.
The Group may then adopt any preventative measures based
on the testing data.
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Business Review (continuea)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)
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Financial Risk

Risk Description

81 %5 BB
2 B 4 3

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk

Currently, the Group operates principally in Hong Kong while IT/
Accounting support services centre is located in PRC. Therefore,
the Group may be exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
the exposure of RMB against HKD, although the amounts are not
significant.

Also, the Group is expanding its business to overseas market (e.g.
Malaysia). As such, the Group’s future business transactions (e.g.
receipts for provision of services, operating fund transfer) may be
denominated in an additional foreign currency.

In this respect, the volatility of foreign currency exchange rate
against HKD may create substantial foreign exchange risk.
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Risk Response

The financial team keeps close monitoring of the fluctuation of
foreign currencies.

Although almost half of the printing production has been
outsourced to the subcontractor located in PRC and the customer
call centre service has also been outsourced to PRC as well, the
operating fund transfer may incur the exchange loss. Nevertheless,
the management does not consider performing hedging as the
exposure to foreign exchange risk is immaterial.

For the business in Malaysia, the exchange rate risk exposure is
also insignificant as it is still in the development stage.
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Business Review (continuea)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)

Operational Risk

Risk Description

Increase in labour cost

In PRC, according to the statistics reported by the National
Bureau of Statistics of PRC, the wages in manufacturing has
been increased to RMB55,324/year on average in 2015 from
RMB51,369/year on average in 2014. Therefore, the increase
in labor cost may upsurge indirectly the subcontracting cost of
the Group since the call centre service and over 50% printing
production has been outsourced to the enterprises in PRC.

At Hong Kong side, the labor cost increases when increasing store
locations may request for more headcounts working in the stores in
Hong Kong and giving high pay to retain the competent youngsters
who are generally less willing to enter into the manufacturing/
production/printing industry.

As a result, the potential risk of an increase in labor cost in both
regions cannot be minimized.

Risk Response

The management monitors the labor cost of the Group regularly
and also forecasts that the rise in labour cost can be compensated
by the depreciation of RMB and the automated production in both
Hong Kong production base and the subcontracted factory.

With the inception of the advanced printing technologies, the
Group has almost replaced the labor-intensive manufacturing
with the high automation and simultaneously, the company has
recruited over 25 IT talents to ensure its printing technology can be
ongoing developed.

Therefore, the Group considered the risk of the labor shortage
did not have any significant impact on the operating results of the
Group.
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Business Review (continuea)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)

Strategic Risk

SRS L B

Risk Description [ B 3 uft

Reduction of market demand mEERRD

Other than traditional mediums used by businesses, for example B EKFEHRERENN  WHREES
newspapers advertising, radio advertising, television advertising EEES ETHEESLEELH  B%

and telemarketing, the Web becomes a must-use daily medium
today.

RAE T UEERDN EI %‘ﬁ%u °

Various inexpensive advertising mediums have grown by leaps & 1& B {8 1) & & & 42 %B FARER
and bounds, including pay-per-click advertising; online banner B EHENEES S 2B REF F
advertising that entails the display of a graphical advertising unit, S EEREBEBES S U LH X EE

etc., and social media advertising such as Youtube, Twitter,
Facebook, LinkedIn that are the other kind of media to promote
the customer relationship.

F = ZZIJYO utube -~ Twitter + Facebook &
Llnkedln SR RBERERFPBEEME

7o

Also, there is a trend on widely used paperless office and online [tk 9h » E R BB =R H - T iR F B
paperless portals in a time of the global economic recession. BACBRAREFEEAFML,E 15 X 58
B o
=3
In this regard, the output of printing industry in Hong Kong has Gttt - 3T F R BB EIRIFTE B E 2 T &

been declining in recent years and the Group might face the risk of T > NEE S EEEHEXRBETEN
unfavorable sales performance. B B o

2, B FE

=
3
g

Risk Response

Although the market demand on traditional printing has been

BEMBHUERNRBIEZFLEA —E

declining to a certain extent, the breakthrough of printing f2E /) T - 18 ED R lT 59 22 54 (F 15 5]
technology flourishes printing business and the market demand il 3 7% ?ﬂ%?& mAmSEERREA
on business communication materials for example brochures, rack — #1 %} - 204 & B K H b # E I 62 &9/ it

cards and catalogs for exhibition or other promotional functions are
still dominant.

Currently, the Group keeps monitoring the change of customer
behaviour and builds up a customer relationship management by
way of such as customer loyalty and advocacy marketing, including
VIP membership, one-stop shop, etc. Also, the Group provides
various kinds of service in and outside Hong Kong such as the
offset printing products, digital printing products and e-banner to
meet the requirement of the customer, other than the traditional
printing service.

In addition, the marketing department had started to explore other
possible product lines to diversify the types of services offered.
Examples include variables printing, promotion gifts market, leaflet
distribution services, etc.
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Business Review (continuea)

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

During the year under review, as far as the Board and management
are aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a
significant impact on the businesses and operation of the Group.

Key Relationships with Employees and Customers

The key relationships with the Group’s employees and customers
are discussed under section headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 38 to 58 of this annual report.

Key Relationships with Suppliers

The Group understands sustainable supply of quality products is
indispensable for long-term business development. In view of this,
the Group has adopted a supplier management policy to ensure
quality and sustainability of product supply. The Group selects its
suppliers prudently. The suppliers need to fulfill certain assessment
criteria of the Group, including meeting the Group’s standards for
the quality of raw materials, reputation, environmental friendliness,
production capacity, financial capability and experience. We view
our suppliers as partners who make important contribution to our
business success.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 100 to 101.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK1.60
cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31 March 2017 to be
payable to the shareholders on Tuesday, 29 August 2017 to those

shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on
Tuesday, 15 August 2017.

Donations

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group made
HK$166,111 charitable and other donations (2016: HK$171,886).

Annual General Meeting

The 2017 annual general meeting of the Company (“2017 AGM”) will
be held on Tuesday, 8 August 2017.
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Closure of Register of Members

For the purpose of determining the identity of the shareholders
entitled to attend and vote at the 2017 AGM, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 2 August
2017 to Tuesday, 8 August 2017, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. All transfer of shares
accompanied by the relevant certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s transfer office and share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Tuesday, 1 August 2017.

For determining the entitlement of the shareholders to the proposed
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Monday, 14 August 2017 to Tuesday, 15 August 2017,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
transfer of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 11 August 2017.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital for the
year ended 31 March 2017 are set out in Note 25 to the financial
Statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association (“Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
being the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”).

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company nor its subsidiary purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 March 2017.
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Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2017, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) (“Companies Law”) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately HK$143,956,000, of which HK$8,800,000 dividend
has been proposed for the year. Under the Companies Law,
the share premium account of the Company of approximately
HK$132,921,000 as of 31 March 2017 is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend, if any, is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.
The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the
Directors as required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) when the Report of the
Board of the Directors prepared by the Directors is approved in
accordance with section 391(1) (a) of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong).

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 216.

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. She Siu Kee William
Mr. Lam Shing Kai (re-designated from a non-executive
Director to an executive Director

on 18 November 2016)

Mr. Fung Hong Keung (resigned on 30 September 2016)
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Directors (continued)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki
Mr. Leung Wai Ming
Mr. Deng Xiaen

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah (retired on 15 August 2076)

Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen  (resigned on 8 March 2017)

Ms. Luk Mei Yan (resigned on 30 December 2016)

Mr. Poon Chun Wai (appointed on 15 August 2016)

Mr. Fu Chung (appointed on 8 March 2017)

Mr. Ma Siu Kit (appointed on 30 December 2016)

In accordance with Article 112, Mr. Poon Chun Wai, Mr. Fu Chung
and Mr. Ma Siu Kit, who were appointed as Directors of the
Company after the 2016 annual general meeting, are subject to
re-election at the 2017 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

In accordance with Article 108(a), Mr. She Siu Kee William, Mr. Lam
Shing Kai and Mr. Leung Wai Ming shall retire by rotation at the
2017 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Independence Confirmation

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Shares

As at 31 March 2017, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”)) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules, are set out below:

Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company or its
associated corporation

() The Company

Long position/
short position

Name of Director Nature of interest

EspsR

EattE

Interest of controlled
corporation (Note 1)
SEtEEERE(ME) g8

Mr. She Siu Kee William

Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki Interest of controlled
corporation (Note 1)

Interest of spouse (Note 2)

HEBEE REysrEEs (ME1) 58
A8 #E = (M 5E2) LSy

Interest of controlled
corporation (Note 1)
ZEHEEER ()

Mr. Lam Shing Kai

MoAEE L E e

Interest of controlled
corporation (Note 1)

ZEsEEER ()

Mr. Leung Wai Ming

R FA
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(i) A7
Approximate
Number of percentage of
ordinary shareholding
shares held in the Company
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313,125,000 56.93%
313,125,000 56.93%
1,592,000 0.29%
313,125,000 56.93%
313,125,000 56.93%
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interestsin EZERTETHAENKRGOE
Shares (Continued) ?&(@)

Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying RAEXATRRHEEFMEBE EZER G -
Shares and Debentures of the Company or its HERAREFNERRAR @
associated corporation (continued)

(i) The Company (Continued) (i) &7

Notes: M 5T

1. 313,125,000 Shares are held by eprint Limited. eprint Limited is held as 1. eprint Limited#§ A 313,125,000 A A {7 °
to 21.62%, 21.62%, 21.62%, 21.62% and 13.52% by Mr. She Siu Kee eprint Limited R R AR ESE A (TREAE )
William (“Mr. She”), Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki (“Mr. Chong”), Mr. Lam Shing HeEEEE(HLEE]D  MEELE
Kai (“Mr. Lam”), Mr. Leung Wai Ming (“Mr. WM Leung”) and Mr. Leung (HREE]D RERAEE(TREHRLE
Yat Pang (“Mr. YP Leung”) (collectively, the “Concerted Shareholders”) EDRR-IBEETR-IBEED (B
respectively. Pursuant to a deed of confirmation dated 2 July 2013 and HWI—BTeRE]) D RFHF21.62% -
entered into by them confirming the existence of their acting in concert 21.62% * 21.62% ~ 21.62%% 13.52% ° i
arrangement, each of Mr. She, Mr. Chong, Mr. Lam, Mr. WM Leung and BHEREEYZANA-ST—=FtA
Mr. YP Leung has agreed to jointly control their respective interests in “HIZBRREZBBRIFEZ —BITHR
the Company. Accordingly, eprint Limited shall be accustomed to act B REE HRE  MEE - REH
in accordance with joint instructions of the Concerted Shareholders. EERR—BAEESERELBIES
Hence, each of the Concerted Shareholders is deemed to be interested KEZXBRARANER - Bt - eprint
in all the Shares held by eprint Limited by virtue of the SFO. Limited 8 & R 18 — BT8R R LA 5 R

TE A RBEFHFRAEEG &
—B1T B AR A48 A Feprint Limited T 3%
BRBERGFHEE R

2. Mr. Chong is interested in 1,592,000 Shares held by his spouse, Ms. Yip 2. HEEREEBERZIBAED
Fei. 1,592,0000% A% 17 #E A f = o
(ii) Associated corporation — eprint Limited (i) #EH% L B — eprint Limited

Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
shares held in shareholding in
the Associated the Associated

Name of Director Nature of interest Corporation Corporation
RAEEELIE RNEEIESR
EEHR ZEREE MO B DL
Mr. She BenechiaI owner 2,162 21.62%
REE En#EA A
Mr. Chong Beneficial owner 2,162 21.62%
HoeE EmEAE A
Mr. Lam Beneficial owner 2,162 21.62%
M E ExnEBA
Mr. WM Leung Beneficial owner 2,162 21.62%
RERATE EnlEAA
Note: The disclosed interest represents the interests in eprint Limited, the e ERBEREEERLAE - HAE - M
controlling shareholder of the Company, which is owned by Mr. She, £ REPREERZR-BEERAEAR
Mr. Chong, Mr. Lam, Mr. WM Leung and Mr. YP Leung in the respective A) 15 B B Heprint LimitedZ # &= @ &
proportions of 21.62%, 21.62%, 21.62%, 21.62% and 13.52%. B FTi5 Bl 5l 221.62% ~ 21.62% -

21.62% ~ 21.62%5:13.52% -
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Shares (Continued)

Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company or its
associated corporation (continued)

(ii) Associated corporation — eprint Limited (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executives
of the Company and/or any of their respective associates had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as at 31 March 2016 as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Interests in Share Options

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
on 13 November 2013 pursuant to the written resolutions of the
shareholders passed on 13 November 2013. The Scheme is a
share incentive scheme and was established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions of the Eligible Participants (as
defined in the Prospectus) have had or may have made to the
Group. Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion,
offer to grant an option to subscribe new Shares in aggregate not
exceeding 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

The principal terms of the Scheme are summarised as follows:

(1)  The limit on the total number of shares of the Company
(“Shares”) which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme and any other scheme(s) of any member of the
Group must not exceed 10% of the nominal amount of all the
issued share capital of the Company as at the Listing Date
(which shall be 50,000,000 Shares) unless approval of the
shareholders of the Company has been obtained, and which
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from
time to time. As at the date of this report, the total number of
Shares available for issue under the Scheme is 50,000,000
Shares, which represents 9.09% of the issued Shares as at the
date of this report.
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Interests in Share Options (continueq)

Share Option Scheme (continuea)

@

©)

The total number of Shares issued and which may be issued
upon exercise of all options (whether exercised, cancelled
or outstanding) granted to any Eligible Participant in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1%
of the issued Shares as at the date of grant.

The subscription price for the Shares under the options to
be granted under the Scheme will be a price determined by
the Board at the time of grant of the options, and will be not
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the
date of grant which must be a business day; (i) the average
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme at any time during a period to be notified by
the Board to each Participant who accepts the grant of any
options, which must not be more than 10 years from the date
of the grant (subject to acceptance) of the option.

HK$1.00 is payable by the Participant who accepts the grant
of an option in accordance with the terms of the Scheme on
acceptance of the grant of an option.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on the Listing Date, i.e. 3 December 2013.

Other details of the Scheme are set out in the Prospectus.

No share option under the Scheme has been granted by the
Company since its adoption and up to the date of this report.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Save as disclosed above in the section headed “Share Option

Scheme”,

no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the

Group, or existed during the year ended 31 March 2017.
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Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons’
Interests in Shares

As at 31 March 2017, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than the Directors and the chief executives
of the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares
and underlying Shares of the Company which were required to be
notified to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO.

Interests or short positions in shares and underlying
shares of the Company

TERRRAMATZREE

R-ZE—tHF=RA=+—RB BEEM
HATALTTEBEARAEEREE
TTHAB)EARR R & AEE D+ #
BEAREBESZ KRB ERGFXVEE2 %3
DEHAMEARANBHOREBEES RBME K
51 55 336 16k #8 7 5 17 /Y & AC ffft P A0 &% RO

34— A
BIAR o

2D T IR AD B A BE AR 10 A9 B 5 =K
-}

Number of Approximate
ordinary shares/ percentage of
Long position/ underlying shareholding in

Nature of interest short position shares held the Company

BRAZER - RAEIARR

EatE "R/ KA
eprint Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner Long position
eprint Limited (M 5£1) ExnEAA e
Ms. Lo Suet Yee (Note 2)  Interest of spouse Long position
EE Rzt (ff2) i (B 4 & wa
Ms. Yip Fei (Note 3) Beneficial owner Long position

Interest of spouse Long position
ER L (M E3) EmlAA HE

fic 48 42 = A
Ms. Yu Siu Ping (Note 4) Interest of spouse Long position
a1 ¥ £ (i E4) i (5 # & HE
Ms. Chau Fung Kiu (Note 5) Interest of spouse Long position
BB 3 2 £ (M 5E5) i "R
Mr. Huang Xiaopeng Interest of controlled Long position

(Note 6) corporation
T I8 5 4 (9 EE6) X A B a
Mr. Huang Xiaojia (Note 6) Interest of controlled Long position
corporation
T 1 5 A4 (9 EE6) X A B R a
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1,592,000 0.29%
313,125,000 56.93%
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61,875,000 11.25%
61,875,000 11.25%
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Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons’ FERERHMWA T 2RO E

N2z

Interests in Shares (continvea) = (4)

Interests or short positions in shares and underlying 7 2 5 iR 0 % 485 B8 IR 17 B9 2 5 =0 3%
shares of the Company (continuea) B

Number of Approximate
ordinary shares/ percentage of

Long position/ underlying shareholding in
Nature of interest short position shares held the Company
BFEZER S RE2IER
EmME P HEROHAE BRYBADHL
Mr. Huang Bingwen Interest of controlled Long position 61,875,000 11.25%
(Note 6) corporation
| R 35 A& (T EE6) A E R "R
Hong Kong Tung Fung Interest of controlled Long position 61,875,000 11.25%
Investment Company corporation
Limited (Note 6)
EERERE RESEEER "R
BR QA (H5E6)
Shantou Dongfeng Printing  Interest of controlled Long position 61,875,000 11.25%
Co., Ltd. (Note 6) corporation
Il S8 5 &L EN R AR 15 RESEEER "R
BR QA (M 5E6)
Hong Kong Luck Beneficial owner Long position 61,875,000 11.25%

Investment Company
Limited (Note 6)

EERNIRE EHERA HE
B R~ a (i FEe)
Mr. YP Leung Interest of controlled Long position 313,125,000 56.93%
corporation (Note 7)
25kt REHLEEER (M7 e
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Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons’
Interests in Shares (coninuea)

Interests or short positions in shares and underlying
shares of the Company (continued)

Notes:
1. eprint Limited is directly interested in approximately 56.93% in the Company.

2. Ms. Lo Suet Yee is the spouse of Mr. She. Under the SFO, Ms. Lo Suet Yee
is taken to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. She is
interested.

3. Ms. Yip Fei is the spouse of Mr. Chong. Under the SFO, Ms. Yip Fei is taken to
be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Chong is interested.

4, Ms. Yu Siu Ping is the spouse of Mr. Lam. Under the SFO, Ms. Yu Siu Ping
is taken to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Lam is
interested.

5. Ms. Chau Fung Kiu is the spouse of Mr. WM Leung. Under the SFO, Ms. Chau
Fung Kiu is taken to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr.
WM Leung is interested.

6. These 61,875,000 Shares are held by Hong Kong Luck Investment Company
Limited, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shantou Dongfeng, an A
share company listed on the main board of the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
Shantou Dongfeng is 54.40% held by Hong Kong Tung Fung Investment
Company Limited and 1.11% held by Mr. Huang Xiaojia. Hong Kong Tung
Fung Investment Company is owned as to 34% by Mr. Huang Xiaopeng, 33%
by Mr. Huang Xiaojia and 33% by Mr. Huang Bingwen. Under the SFO, each
of Shantou Dongfeng, Hong Kong Tung Fung Investment Company Limited,
Mr. Huang Xiaopeng, Mr. Huang Xiaojia and Mr. Huang Bingwen is taken to be
interested in the same number of Shares in which Hong Kong Luck Investment
Company Limited is interested.

7. These 313,125,000 shares are held through eprint Limited, a company is
beneficially owned as to 13.52% by Mr. YP Leung.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other
persons who have interests or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of Mr. She and Mr. Lam, executive Directors, has entered into
a service agreement dated 13 November 2013 with the Company
for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from 3 December
2013 and expired on 3 December 2016. On 18 November 2016,
each of them entered into a new service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years with effect from 3 December
2016. Each of the executive Directors may receive a discretionary
bonus, the amount of which will be determined by reference to the
comments of the remuneration committee of the Company.

Mr. Deng Xiaen has signed a letter of appointment as a
non-executive Director of the Company on 19 November 2014 for
a term of three years commencing from 1 December 2014. Each of
the other non-executive Directors has signed a letter of appointment
dated 13 November 2016 with the Company for an initial fixed term
of three years commencing from 3 December 2016 and expired on
3 December 2016. On 18 November 2016, each of them signed
a new letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years with effect from 3 December 2016.

Mr. Poon Chun Wai has signed a letter of appointment as an
independent non-executive Director issued by the Company on 15
August 2016 for a term of three years commencing from 15 August
2016.

Mr. Fu Chung has signed a letter of appointment as an independent
non-executive Director issued by the Company on 8 March 2017 for
a term of three years commencing from 8 March 2017.
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Directors’ Service Contracts (continved)

Mr. Ma Siu Kit has signed a letter of appointment as an independent
non-executive Director issued by the Company on 30 December
2016 for a term of three years commencing from 30 December
2016.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

Other than those disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transactions” below and “Related Party Transactions” in note 36
to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017, no
significant transaction, arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly subsisted at the year-end or at
any time during the year.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all
Directors had complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the year.

80  eprint Group Limited Annual Report 2016/17

BERBEN =

SHERNELEEBRIUARRAR T —RF
T A=1TB#ELZEEBIIFNTE
EEER - BZE-RFTZA=TH
ERE=%F -

RAFIHERERREIEETHORRE
FREIBMEEBEENEFITILEMD
AR—FANAARAKIEMBEAELR
BOEERERINHRB AL

EERXRE  REFLEHTH

BRTITXREXZ I RBE-_T—tF=
AZT—RUEFENT B RERK 6
BHRGIMBEEIN KRR EEHE
RARRREAEMM B ARG MALEA
SEXEBBEANANRFRIFAETMAE
BINABRNERNRS  ZRHEIAHF
EERREEAEEEAER -

L
¥

ESETRESFRBNE

ARRERMINB N ZAESF LR
AT EmARRDM S+ EMETAES
ETEFXZHEESTA([FR2ESTA)
EREFETESFXHZNTA/TH - K
REAKAEBEEFLFEERKER
MBEERNEFAYEETHRESTRIMR
PIE IR IR o



Connected Transactions

The Group had entered into a number of transactions with parties
who, upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange, became connected persons of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Connected Persons

1. CTP Limited (“CTP”)

CTP is principally engaged in the business of property
investment, and is beneficially owned as to 25% by Mr. She,
25% by Mr. Chong, 25% by Mr. Lam and 25% by Mr. WM
Leung, respectively.

2. Promise Properties Limited (R 55 R £ B R A 7))
(“Promise Properties”)

Promise Properties is principally engaged in the business
of property investment, and is beneficially owned as to
approximately 21.62% by Mr. She, 21.62% by Mr. Chong,
21.62% by Mr. Lam, 13.52% by Mr. YP Leung, 10.81% by Ms.
Chau Fung Kiu, the wife of Mr. WM Leung and 10.81% by an
independent third party.

3. VVV Limited (“VVV”)

VVV is principally engaged in the business of property
investment, and is beneficially owned as to approximately
21.62% by Mr. She, 21.62% by Mr. Chong, 21.62% by Mr.
Lam, 21.62% by Mr. WM Leung and 13.52% by Mr. YP Leung,
respectively.

4. Profit More Rich Limited (B E % & [R 2 7)) (“Profit
More”)

Profit More is principally engaged in the business of property
investment, and is wholly owned by CTP.

5. King Profit International Limited (Z F| B B & R 2 7))
(“King Profit”)

King Profit is principally engaged in the business of property
investment, and is beneficially owned as to approximately 70%
by VWV and 30% by Mr. Yip Chi Man.
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Connected Transactions (continved)

Connected Persons (continued)

6.

Wilson Printing Equipment Limited (& 1= El Fl 5% 8 & R
A B]) (“Wilson Printing”)

Wilson Printing is principally engaged in the business of trading
of printing equipment and printing materials, and is beneficially
owned as to 100% by Mr. Lam Shing Tai (“Mr. Lam ST”), the
brother of Mr. Lam, one of the Controlling Shareholders and
executive Directors.

Wilson (Hong Kong) Limited (&2 (& &) B R 2 7))
(“Wilson HK”)

Wilson (HK) is principally engaged in the business of trading of
printing machineries and spare parts, and is beneficially owned
as to 65% by Mr. Lam ST.

Mr. She, Mr. Chong, Mr. Lam and Mr. WM Leung are the Directors
and Mr. YP Leung is a substantial shareholder of the Company
and they are Controlling Shareholders. The above companies are
associates of Mr. She, Mr. Chong, Mr. Lam, Mr. WM Leung and Mr.
YP Leung, and hence they are considered as connected persons of
the Group under Rule 14A.12 of the Listing Rules.

82

Shenzhen Yi Yun Hu Wang Tong Technology
Company Limited (R BEEERBRFZER 2 T
(“Yiyun Technology”)

Yiyun Technology is owned as to 70% by Shantou Dongfeng
Printing Co., Ltd., a substantial shareholder of the Company,
and 30% by the Company, and its principal activities include
internet printing technology, design, development and
consultancy of computer software and hardware technology,
design and development of printing packaging products,
design of internet gifts etc. Yiyun Technology is regarded as an
associate of Shantou Dongfeng Printing Co., Ltd. and hence a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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Connected Transactions (continueq)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions

The following connected transactions constitute non-exempt
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

1. Tenancy agreements

Background

(@)

Tenancy agreements relating to CTP

On 14 December 2015, nineteen tenancy agreements
were entered into between CTP, as landlord, and Lucky
Gainer Limited (“Lucky Gainer”), Promise Network
Printing Limited (“Promise Network”) and e-banner
Limited (“e-banner”) as tenants, under which CTP agreed
to lease a number of properties located in Kwun Tong
Industrial Centre to Lucky Gainer, Promise Network and
e-banner, with a total saleable area of 29,217 square
feet for use as offices, workshops, stores and car parks.
The monthly rentals payable to CTP for the three years
ending 31 March 2019 are approximately HK$607,800,
HK$668,600 and HK$734,000 respectively (exclusive of
government rent, management fees and other utilities
outgoings which are payable by the relevant tenant).
The aggregate rentals paid to CTP for the year ended 31
March 2017 was approximately HK$5,971,258.
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Connected Transactions (continved)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions

(Continued)

1.

84

Tenancy agreements (Continued)

Background (Continued)

(b)

Tenancy agreements relating to Promise Properties

On 14 December 2015, five tenancy agreements were
entered into between Promise Properties, as landlord,
and Lucky Gainer, as tenant, under which Promise
Properties agreed to lease a number of properties
located in Kwun Tong Industrial Centre to Lucky Gainer
with a total saleable area of 8,280 square feet for use
as workshops. The monthly rentals payable to Promise
Properties for the three years ending 31 March 2019
are approximately HK$137,800, HK$151,400 and
HK$167,300 respectively (exclusive of government rent,
management fees and other utilities outgoings which are
payable by the tenant). The aggregate rentals paid to
Promise Properties for the year ended 31 March 2017
was approximately HK$1,653,600.

Tenancy agreements relating to VVV

On 14 December 2015, six tenancy agreements were
entered into between VVV, as landlord, Lucky Gainer
and Promise Network, as tenants, under which VVV
agreed to lease a number of properties located in
Kwun Tong Industrial Centre to Lucky Gainer for use
as workshops and a car park and one property in Chai
Wan to Promise Network for use as a store, with a total
saleable area of 11,865 square feet. The monthly rentals
payable to VVV for the three years ending 31 March
2019 are approximately HK$233,600, HK$258,100 and
HK$285,200 respectively (exclusive of government rent,
management fees and other ultilities outgoings which are
payable by the relevant tenant). The aggregate rentals
paid to VVV for the year ended 31 March 2017 was
approximately HK$2,401,023.
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Connected Transactions (continueq)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions
(Continued)

1. Tenancy agreements (Continued)

Background (Continued)
(d) Tenancy agreement relating to Profit More

On 14 December 2015, a tenancy agreement was
entered into between Profit More, as landlord, and Lucky
Gainer, as tenant, under which Profit More agreed to
lease a property located in Kwun Tong Industrial Centre
to Lucky Gainer with a saleable area of 2,895 square feet
for use as a workshop. The monthly rentals payable to
Profit More for the three years ending 31 March 2019 are
approximately HK$50,000, HK$55,000 and HK$60,000
respectively (exclusive of government rent, management
fees and other utilities outgoings which are payable by
the tenant). The aggregate rentals paid to Profit More
for the year ended 31 March 2017 was approximately
HK$600,000.

(e) Tenancy agreement relating to King Profit

On 14 December 2015, a tenancy agreement entered
into between King Profit, as landlord, and Lucky Gainer
and Promise Network, as tenants, under which King
Profit agreed to lease a property and a car park located
in Kwun Tong Industrial Centre to the tenants with a
total saleable area of 1,820 square feet for use as a
workshop and car park. The monthly rentals payable to
King Profit for the three years ending 31 March 2019 are
approximately HK$33,000, HK$36,600 and HK$40,500
respectively (exclusive of government rent, management
fees and other utilities outgoings which are payable by
the tenant). The aggregate rentals paid to King Profit
for the year ended 31 March 2017 was approximately
HK$396,000.

(collectively, the “Tenancy Agreements”).

The annual caps for the leases under the Tenancy Agreements
for the year ended 31 March 2017 is HK$12,746,000. The
actual rental paid under the Tenancy Agreements for the year
ended 31 March 2017 was approximately HK$11,021,881.
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Connected Transactions (continved)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions

(Continued)
2. Master Supply Agreement
Background

On 14 December 2015, Wilson Printing and Wilson HK
and the Company entered into a master supply agreement
(the “Master Supply Agreement”) for a term of three years
commenced from 1 April 2016 and ending on 31 March 2019,
pursuant to which Wilson Printing and Wilson HK agreed to
supply the ink products, zinc printing plates, printing solutions,
consumables of printing machines and printing machine spare
parts (the “Products”) and provide the provision of printing
machine maintenance services (the “Services”) to the Group
for production and operation of the printing business of the
Group. Pursuant to the Master Supply Agreement, the price of
the Products and the Services shall be based on the prevailing
market prices of similar products or services; or the prices
agreed between the Group and the Sellers from time to time
after arm’s length negotiation and are comparable to market
prices of similar products and services.

The annual cap amounts of the fees to be paid by the Group
for the supply of the Products and the Services under the
Master Supply Agreement for the year ended 31 March 2017
is approximately HK$20,485,000. The actual fees paid/payable
by the Group under the Master Supply Agreement for the year
ended 31 March 2017 was HK$11,578,955.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

1.

86

in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business;

on normal commercial terms or better; and

have been carried out in accordance with the terms of the
agreements governing such transactions that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.
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Connected Transactions (continueq)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions
(Continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing
the findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided
by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Fully-exempt continuing connected transaction

On 30 August 2016, a tenancy agreement (the “Agreement”) was
entered into between CTP, as landlord, and Appone Esolution
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, as tenant, under which CTP
agreed to lease a property located in Kwun Tong Industrial Centre
to Appone Esolution Limited for a term of 31 months commenced
from 1 September 2016 and ending on 31 March 2019. The monthly
rentals payable to CTP for the 7 months ended 31 March 2017, and
for two years ending 31 March 2019 are approximately HK$27,000,
HK$29,700 and HK$32,600 respectively (exclusive of government
rent, management fees and other utilities outgoings which are
payable by the tenant). The aggregate rentals paid to CTP for the 7
months ended 31 March 2017 was HK$189,500.

The transaction under the Agreement constituted continuing
connected transaction of the Company but was fully exempted from
notification, announcement, circular and shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Connected Transactions (continved)

Licence agreement

On 30 April 2016, Da Jin Lai Technology (Shenzhen) Company
Limited* (K € 2K B £ (R 3I|) A BR 2 7))(“Da Jin Lai Technology”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Yiyun Technology
entered into the supplemental licence agreement to revise the
licence fee for the Exclusive Rights (defined below) under the licence
agreement (“Licence Agreement”) entered into by the parties on 20
March 2016 from RMB2,500,000 to RMB3,750,000.

Pursuant to the Licence Agreement, Da Jin Lai Technology
as licensor granted to Yiyun Technology as licensee the
non-transferrable, exclusive operating rights in the PRC of four
internet platform technology systems, namely e-print, design-easy,
E-invoice and photobook1010 (the “Exclusive Rights”), Yiyun
Technology paid the licence fee for the Exclusive Rights.

The licence fee for the Exclusive Rights was determined on an
arm’s length basis between the parties to the Licence Agreement
with reference to the valuation on the licence fee prepared by an
independent professional valuer.

Acquisition of properties
On 27 June 2016:

(1) eprint Investments Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, has entered into the provisional agreement
with CTP, pursuant to which eprint Investments Limited
conditionally agreed to acquire, and CTP conditionally agreed
to sell the property located at Unit A4 on Ground Floor of Block
4, Kwun Tong Industrial Centre, Nos. 436-446 Kwun Tong
Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong at the consideration
of HK$30,000,000; and

(2)  eprint Property Investments Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, has entered into the provisional agreement
with CTP, pursuant to which eprint Property Investments
Limited conditionally agreed to acquire, and CTP conditionally
agreed to sell the property located at Unit B4 on Ground
Floor of Block 4, Kwun Tong Industrial Centre, Nos. 436-446
Kwun Tong Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong at the
consideration of HK$32,000,000.
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Acquisition of properties (continueq)

The properties were leased by the Group under the Tenancy
Agreements, which will expire on 31 March 2019.

The Consideration was determined between the parties after arm’s
length negotiations and on normal commercial terms, taking into
account the valuation of the properties as at 31 May 2016.

2016 Printing Services Agreement

Reference are made to the announcement of the Company dated 14
December 2015 and the circular of the Company dated 1 February
2016 in relation to, among others, a printing services agreement (the
“2016 Printing Services Agreement”) entered into between Promise
Network, and Dongguan Runxing Chengpin Printing Company
Limited (“Runxing”) on 14 December 2015. Pursuant to the 2016
Printing Services Agreement, Runxing agreed to provide certain
printing services to Promise Network for a term of three years
commenced from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2019. The Company
was informed by Mr. Lam ST that he has entered into an agreement
to acquire the entire interest of Runxing. Upon completion of such
acquisition, Runxing would become a connected person of the
Company and hence, the transaction contemplated under the 2016
Printing Services Agreement would constitute continuing transaction
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As at 31
March 2017, the acquisition has not been completed. As such,
the transaction under the 2016 Printing Services Agreement didn’t
constitute any continuing connected transaction of the Company.

Save for the above and those related party transactions as set out
in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements. There was no
connected transactions carried out during the year ended 31 March
2017.

The Directors (including the independent executive Directors) believe
that the related party transactions set out in the Note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements were carried out in the ordinary
course of business of the Company and were on normal commercial
terms.

Other than the aforementioned continuing connected transactions,
the related party transactions disclosed in Note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements are either exempted connected
continuing transactions or non-exempt continuing connected
transactions which are in compliance with the requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Non-Compete Undertakings

eprint Limited, Mr. She, Mr. Chong, Mr. Lam, Mr. WM Leung and
Mr. YP Leung (together, the “Covenantors”) entered into the deed
of non-competition in favour of the Company on 13 November 2013
(the “NCU”), pursuant to which the Covenantors have undertaken to
the Company (for itself and for the benefit of each of the members of
the Group) that, with effect from the date of listing (i.e. 3 December
2013) and for as long as the shares of the Company remain so
listed on the Stock Exchange and the Controlling Shareholders are
individually or collectively with any of his/its associates interested
directly or indirectly in not less than 30% of the issued ordinary share
capital of our Company (the “Restricted Period”), the Covenantors or
their respective associates shall not, (i) directly or indirectly engage
in, participate or hold any right or interest in or render any services
to or otherwise be involved in any business (whether as owner,
director, operator, licensor, licensee, partner, shareholder, joint
venturer, employee, consultant or otherwise) in competition with or
likely to be in competition with the existing business carried on by
the Group (the “Restricted Business”); and (ii) directly or indirectly
take any action which constitutes an interference with or a disruption
of the Restricted Business including, but not limited to, solicitation
of our Group’s customers, suppliers or personnel of any member of
the Group.

The Covenantors have confirmed to the Company the compliance
with the non-compete undertaking during the year ended 31 March
2017. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the NCU and confirmed the compliance with the non-compete
undertaking by the Covenantors during the year ended 31 March
2017.

Tax Relief and Exemption

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the percentage of sales attributable to the largest
customer and the five largest customers of the Group is 0.5% and
1.7% respectively.

During the year, the largest supplier and the five largest suppliers
of the Group accounted for approximately 57.0% and 79.2% of the
total purchases of the Group respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

Subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Details of the principal subsidiaries, associates and joint venture of
the Company are set out in Note 11, Note 12 and Note 13 to the
financial statements.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing
Rules during the year and up to the date of this report.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 13 November
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review and supervise the financial reporting system and to review
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Ma Siu Kit (chairman), Mr. Poon Chun Wai
and Mr. Fu Chung. The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

Competition and Conflict of Interests

During the year, save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the
Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company or any of their
respective associates has engaged in any business that competes
or may compete with the business of the Group.

Corporate Governance

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company is set out on pages 19 to 37 of this annual report.

Auditor

The term of appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) as
auditor of the Company shall expire at the conclusion of the 2017
AGM. A resolution will be submitted to the 2017 AGM to re-appoint
PwC as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
eprint Group Limited
She Siu Kee, William
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EPRINT
GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of eprint Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 100
to 215, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2017,

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended,;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BAZ BN R

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised as follows:

° Impairment assessment of goodwill and property, plant and
equipment of banner printing segment
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Key Audit Matter
BERETEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B RS

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNET N MEEERETSE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and property,
plant and equipment of banner printing segment

Refer to Note 2.9, Note 5, Note 16 and Note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s banner printing segment has goodwill and
property, plant and equipment amounting to HK$43
million as of 31 March 2017, representing approximately
13% of the Group’s total assets.

The banner printing segment suffered loss amounting
to HK$14 million for the year ended 31 March 2017,
which represented an impairment indicator of goodwill
and property, plant and equipment within the banner
printing segment. In this regard, management performed
an assessment on impairment of goodwill and property,
plant and equipment of the banner printing segment
by using value-in-use calculation to determine the
recoverable amount and concluded that there was
no impairment as its recoverable amount exceeds its
carrying amount.

This assessment was based on management cash
flow forecast and involved significant judgements and
estimates about future business performance including
revenue growth, gross profit margin and discount rate
and accordingly, this was an area of our audit focus.
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In assessing the appropriateness of the management’s
impairment assessment of goodwill and property, plant
and equipment, the following audit procedures have
been performed by us:

° We evaluated management’s financial budget and
future cash flow forecast by understanding the
process by which they were drawn up, and testing
the mathematical accuracy of the underlying
calculation;

° We assessed the reasonableness of the key
assumptions used in the cash flow forecast by
(i) comparing the projected revenue growth and
gross profit margin growth to the historical sales
performance and historical profit margin of the
Company (i) benchmarking these key assumptions
against other comparable companies in the
industry and (i) checking these key assumptions
against actual results in the period subsequent to
the year end;

° We evaluated the discount rate by assessing the
cost of capital of the Group and referencing the
cost of capital of other comparable companies in
the industry; and

° We obtained and evaluated management’s
sensitivity analysis of the cash flow forecast by
considering downside scenarios against reasonable
possible changes to the key assumptions.

Based on the procedures described, we found that
the key assumptions, judgements and estimates made
by the management in respect of the impairment
assessment were supported by available evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BAZ BN R

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AZ BN S
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BAZ BN R

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Kam Chiu, Raymond.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 June 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

B RS RER

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_T—+F=-A=1+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Revenue W 5 B 390,638 382,768
Cost of sales 555 AR 8 (251,328) (247,665)
Gross profit EF 139,310 135,103
Other income N 6 6,119 13,327
Other losses — net HmEE — F58 7 (7,807) (6,617)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX 8 (42,769) (36,318)
Administrative expenses TEHHAX 8 (80,507) (82,403)
Operating profit & E R A 14,346 23,092
Finance income & WA 466 2,186
Finance costs B & A AR (1,579) (1,186)
Finance (costs)/income — net BE(RA) WA — F8E 10 (1,113) 1,000
Share of losses of associates FE(LEE & A ElEE 12 (1,746) (321)
Share of profit of joint venture FEfh & & A A A 13 1,257 851
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ (489 ........580
Profit before income tax BR Pt 18 B¢ A 2 12,744 24,622
Income tax expense FR{E B F 2 14 (3,525) (2,815)
Profit for the year FEREF 9,219 21,807
Other comprehensive income: Hinime ks .
Item that may be reclassified to AJBEE# P E 1R AR B -
profit or loss:
Currency translation differences N =4 (1,705) (479)
Total comprehensive income FRGEEWZEAEE
for the year 7,514 21,328
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Hiza lam &

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE_T—+F=A=1+—HILFE

2017 2016
—g—t&E  —2-AF

HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx TET

Profit for the year attributable to: T &EEGER T :

Equity holders of the Company ARARIERFEA 17,321 26,053
Non-controlling interests FEPE A R 2 (8,102) (4,246)

9,219 21,807
Earnings per share for profit FRAXARERIEE AEM

attributable to equity holders of HFINERZF|
the Company during the year
Basic and diluted (expressed in HK  E 7R R #58 (IR G RREILE)

cents per share) 15 3.15 4.90
Total comprehensive income DTHEELER
for the year attributable to: mEWEBE
Equity holders of the Company RAa=EFE A 15,857 25,574
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR R = (8,343) (4,246)
7,514 21,328

The notes on pages 108 to 215 are an integral part of these &R FE108E 2155 K [t 5 B #EK & 681
consolidated financial statements. BwmEH—ED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BOFF BRI R

As at 31 March 2017
R-E—tHF=A=1+—H

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FATT
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - W= KRG 16 157,189 113,467
Intangible assets BV EE 17 1,442 1,872
Held-to-maturity investments BRI EHEE 22 15,000 40,295
Financial asset at fair value through &Rz A A BEIIED
profit or loss TREE 23 12,319 11,950
Investments in associates REEZ N AR E 12 2,962 4,196
Investment in a joint venture & &N aHIEE 13 6,205 5,655
Deferred income tax assets REFTISHE E 30 3,259 2,311
Deposits and prepayments & RTEN B 21 4,940 4,732
203,316 184,478
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 19 5,409 5,191
Trade receivables B 5 MW IE 20 4,518 3,571
Deposits, prepayments and Ee  BARER
other receivables H b fE 5K I8 21 15,500 7,458
Held-to-maturity investments BRI EHKEE 22 10,000 —
Current income tax recoverable & B Al Y B pT S F 17 282
Amounts due from related companies J&U% 788 A & 718 36 5,849 7,883
Cash and cash equivalents BehIBE€EEER 24 68,220 90,295
109,513 114,680
Total assets EEHAR 312,829 299,158
Equity fE=
Capital and reserves attributable ZFRATERZTEFA
to the equity holders of the EEELRRFE
Company
Share capital & A 25 5,500 5,500
Share premium % 5 m B 25 132,921 132,921
Other reserves Hh {# @ 26 71,814 68,607
210,235 207,028
Non-controlling interests FE 12 AR A 2 (2,715) (197)
Total equity ERAEE 207,520 206,831
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A I EARRE

As at 31 March 2017
R-E—tHF=A=1+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
Liabilities 8E
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Obligations under finance leases MEMEEBETHNEMT 29 7,045 8,417
Deferred income tax liabilities BREFSHEE 30 9,477 11,754
16,522 20,171
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables B 5 ENRIE 27 7,948 15,274
Accruals and other payables FE 5T 3R IE K H b FE 1T 58 27 28,298 26,775
Borrowings (== 28 38,343 17,840
Obligations under finance leases MEREBETHMET 29 7,013 9,448
Amount due to a related company FEf —fE 8 A R RUR 36 9 15
Amounts due to directors R EE IR 36 245 265
Current income tax payable FERTE BRFTS A1 6,931 2,539
88,787 72,156
Total liabilities BEHEE 105,309 92,327
Total equity and liabilities EEREaEEEE 312,829 299,158

The notes on pages 108 to 215 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 100 to 107 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2017 and were

signed on its behalf.

Mr. She Siu Kee William

RBEKE

Director

EFE

F1BE2I5EMEBKRAHIBHRERZ
MBS ©

FI10E107TEFMEHAEHTERRER =
E—t+ENAZT=REEETSH L -
YHTIHEERRES

Mr. Lam Shing Kai
MERERE

Director

EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EOEREE R

For the year ended 31 March 2017
(E-E—tF=-A=1+—HLFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

A PN
Non-
Share Share Capital Other
capital premium reserve reserve reserve eanings H interests
R RiriaE ARG Afbffs il
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000

Exchange Retained controling

HK§ 000

HKS'000
TERL ThRL TER T TR THEL TER

HK$'000 HK8'000

Balance at 1 April 2015 RZF-TEMA-REH 5,000 80,357 6,593 21) (141) 69,817 161,005 60) 160,999
Comprehensive income aehi
Proft for the year i - - - - - 26,059 26,05 (4.249 21,807
Other comprehensive income ~ EftE A%
Currency translation oifferences B 28
~ Group — 128 - - - - (199) - (199) - (199)
— Joint venture and associates  — AEANREEAR - - - - (280) = (280) = (280)
Total comprehensive income ~ GAUBHAE - - - - (479 26,053 25,574 (4,246) 21,328
Transactions with owners ERRERRANERARS

recognised directly in equity
Capital injection from FERERIE

non-controlling interests - - - - - - - 2,390 2,390
Non-controling interests arising ~~ £BAFELHIEERER

on business combination (Note 35)  (¥F3£35) - - - - - - - 1670 1670
Changes in ownership interestsina 7SR EESBMERT

—e

subsidiary without change RHEEARMEENEY

of control - - - - - - - () ()
Issue of ordinary shares (Note 25)  E77 &I (Ff3k25) 500 52,564 = - = - 53,064 = 53,064
Dividends (Note 31 Y GED) - - - - - m65) (261 - (32,615)
Total transactions with owners,  EBREREZH

recognised directly in equity ~ EEEARZAE 500 52,564 - - - (32,615) 20,449 4055 2,504
Balance at 31 March 2016 R-B-AE=B=t-RALH 5,500 132,921 6,593 21) (1,220) 63,255 207,028 (197) 206,831
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
At REE

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-ZT—t+tF=-A=-1T—HIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
AATREREARE
Non-

Share Capital Other Exchange Retained controlling Total

interests equity
B4R At HERS RERH Mt FERER EafE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin Thn Thn Thn Tin

reserve reserve reserve

capital Share premium

kx  R#ER

earnings Sub-total

Balance at 1 April 2016 RZF-REMA-BEH 5,500 132,921 6,593 1) (1,220) 63,255 207,028 (197) 206,831
Comprehensive income GehE
Proit fo the year ERER - - - - - 17,321 17,321 8,102) 9210
Other comprehensive income ~ Eftis A%
Currency tranglation differences B 28
- Group —KEE - - - - (519) - (519) (241) (760)
— Joint venture and associates  —ABRAREE R - - - - (045) - (045) - (045)
Total comprehensive income LAhREE - - - - (1,464) 17,321 15,857 (8,343) 7,514
Transactions with owners EERNERRANERARS

recognised directly in equity
Capital infection from FRRERNTE

non-controlling interests - - - - - - - 5,825 5,825
Dividends (Note 31) e (1) - - - - - (12,650 (12,650) - (12,650)
Total transactions with owners, EEREREZH

recognised directly in equity HEEARGEE - - - - - (12,650) (12,650) 5,825 (6,825)
Balance at 31 March 2017 R-B-tEZB=1-B&t 5,500 132,921 6,593 1) (2,684) 67,926 210,235 (2,115) 207,520

HNEFE108 =215 5 WK s AKX & Bt
BHREH—HD -
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The notes on pages 108 to 215 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BOREETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2017
(E-E—tF=-A=1+—HLFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF

HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx TET

Cash flows from operating activities & ZBELNESRE

Cash generated from operations KEMEHRE 32 27,481 24,515
Interest paid RENEINSS (1,579) (1,186)
Income tax paid B FEH (2,093) (2,007)
Net cash generated from operating KRB EERIRG F5E

activities 23,809 21,322

Cash flows from investing activities REZBHELANBEESRE

Purchase of property, BEYE BB MRE

plant and equipment (46,900) (17,932)
Prepayment for purchase of property, BEYE  BERE&EN

plant and equipment TE FRIB (48) (1,244)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BEMREN

plant and equipment P15 5018 32 6,911 3,369
Purchase of held-to-maturity investments &8 B 5 & | 3% & 22 (15,000) (39,951)
Proceeds on redemption and disposal of f&[E & &SR EIEE 2

held-to-maturity investments FT 1S k38 28,781 —
Interest income from held-to-maturity BEIHRE T EWA

investments 3,955 1,256
Purchase of financial asset at fair value B E:FBERIEALEE

through profit or loss JIRN SR EE - (12,000)
Investments in an associate REEERRNEE 12 (750) (4,565)
Advances to an associate BRTEHE QA (2,500) (2,496)
Interest received 2 F 2 191 1,850
Acquisition of non-controlling interests W B JE 1 AR #E 25 - (5)
Net cash acquired from business XA GER SR

combination 35 - 2,074
Net cash used in investing activities KEEHFTAR S FE (25,360) (69,644)
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Cash flows from financing activities

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

B EERER
For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-Z—+F=-A=1T—HILFE

2017
—g—t%

2016
—E—RF
HK$’000
FAT

HK$’000
Fi

METHELENRSRE

Proceeds from placing of ordinary shares B¢ & & & % Ffr 15 5018 25 - 53,064
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares to [a] JF 12 B% 8 25 35 1T

non-controlling interests LT BRAFTS A 5,825 1,100
Proceeds from borrowings BEMSHRIE 12,940 18,390
Repayments of borrowings EEER (15,637) (4,360)
Repayments of obligations under finance EENR AR EE K

leases B (11,031) (15,001)
Dividends paid AR 8 31 (12,650) (32,615)
Net cash (used in)/generated BMEEE (A EE
_from financing activities | WReR®E ... (20553 . 20,578
Net decrease in cash and cash HEeERREEHEEHR

equivalents WL R (22,104) (27,744)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUReRRESEEEE

beginning of year 90,295 118,208
Effect of change in exchange rates EXS BN 29 (169)
Cash and cash equivalents FRASRRLEEEE

at end of year 24 68,220 90,295
Non-cash transaction RERS

The Group entered into finance lease arrangements in respect
of machinery with a total capital amount at the inception of the
lease of HK$7,260,000 for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016:
HK$7,077,000).

The notes on pages 108 to 215 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

2T —+F=A=+—HIFE "

AEERHBBTURERERH - Fig
FTAAET LR Ay & 7 48 %8 & 7,260,0007% 7T
(ZZ— /"% : 7,077,000 7T) °

HNE108 2215 A MM B A 651
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B RRME

2.1

108

General information

eprint Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 10 January 2014 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman lIslands. The Company’s address of its registered
office is 4th Floor, Harbour Place, 103 South Church Street,
George Town, P.O. Box 10240, Grand Cayman KY1-1002,
Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the provision of printing services and solutions on
advertisement, bound books and stationeries, to a diversified
customer base in Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

Summary of significant accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accounts (“HKICPA”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of financial asset at fair value through profit or loss, which are
carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.

eprint Group Limited Annual Report 2016/17

2.1

—REHR

eprintse B A R A AI([ARRQ AL B
—E-NE-ATAREREH
SERAEHA(RE) RASHSEM
BRI RERRBRAGT - ARAH
i 9% == BR #b 4k /A 4th Floor, Harbour
Place, 103 South Church Street,
George Town, P.O. Box 10240, Grand
Cayman KY1-1002, Cayman Islands °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Bt BRI
2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEESHBEEREw»
pOIiCies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE )
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures AN BT HREHRIBESEE
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group (@ AEELDERNZ G RAEIEE
A
The following new and amended standards have been ATRAEER T —RFNH
adopted by the Group for the first time for the financial A—BagziRmBcMBEE
year beginning on or after 1 April 2016: IRER#N 2 3 a] R 85T 48 -
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative
BEAGEERF1R 2T BEHR
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation
and amortisation
EEGFTERIE165 K BEMEREHEZ AIERFE
R G ERIEI8R 2 EET
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: bearer plants
EEGFTERIE165 R BE HEHED
BERGFTERNE4RE ZEET
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity method in separate financial statements
BBEGEERIFE27HR 2EEFT BRI BRE 2 ERAE
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities: applying consolidation
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 exception

FEPHERELAEI0N BFEMBRESEL REBR : EAKEAKRZOIMER
F12 M BB G ERIF285% 2 ER]

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint
operations

BB EREERIEIR ZEET WEEEREEB R 5t RIE

HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts

BB EERIE145 EERIERE

Annual Improvements Project Annual improvements 2012-2014 Cycle

FEBEER T FET-NFREBACFENRE

The adoption of the above new and amended standards BEAN DA 3 5T 2 & & 5T 2 Bl =

did not have a significant impact on the Group’s NREEBNEHTBREREKE AR

consolidated financial statements. 2 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CXa bt e
2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FESTHERE»
pOIiCieS (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEm)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures A B BREREEEEH )
(Continued)
(b)  New and amended standards have been issued but are (b) E R {E AR E XK A K EN
not effective and have not been early adopted by the EE IR Z FTET RAZAE 5T
Group R
The following new and amended standards are not TH ] &£ =&
effective for financial year beginning on 1 April 2016, and —RNFEMNA—BZEBHBENE
have not been applied in preparing these consolidated EHEMARER  BRREL
financial statements: EMBHRERTFRRER

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after
RUTHHHZ2E
RN FERBLER
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure initiative 1 January 2017
BEAGEERFTR 21EET BEHR —E—+F—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of deferred tax assets 1 January 2017
for unrealised losses
BB G ERIE125 2 &5 BRAEHEBZREHIEEE —E—+F—H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and measurement of 1 January 2018
share-based payment transactions
ERBMBRERRERE 2B BENRRZZOERE —E-NF—HA—H
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2018
BRI G EERIFER TERTH —E-NF—HA—H
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
BB G EERIFE155 REREPZ&HKE —E-NF—H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Classifications to HKFRS 15 1 January 2018
ERMBWMEEANEISHK2EF] BAVBREENE1SHR 28 —E-NF—HA—H
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
BRI B ELERIE165 HE —E-hhF—H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or contribution of assets between To be determined
HKAS 28 an investor and its associate or joint
venture
BB EREERFE105 & REEMHEBENFIHEE QR ZHEA =FE
BB G ERIE285% 2 EET BELEIEE
The Group is in the process of assessing the financial ANEFFT(GE M EFHETER K
impact of the adoption of the above new standards and BETERHNEB B2 2 « NEE
amendments to standards. The Group will adopt the new 1 2T 2 Bl [ & =T 2 Bl A 27K

and amended standards when they become effective. BELMN o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards have been issued but are
not effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

A number of new standards and amendments to
standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after 1 April 2016 and have not
been applied in preparing these consolidated financial
statements. None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group, except the following set out below:

(i)  HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’

The new standard addresses the classification,
measurement and derecognition of financial assets
and financial liabilities, introduces new rules for
hedge accounting and a new impairment model for
financial assets.

The financial assets held by the group include:

o debt instruments currently classified as held-
to-maturity investments

o equity investments currently measured at fair
value through profit or loss which would likely
continue to be measured on the same basis
under HKFRS 9, and

Accordingly, the Group does not expect the new
guidance to have a significant impact on the
classification and measurement of its financial
assets.

B GRS R MY

2 FESTHHERBEx

21 MEEE )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT BERRME

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(®)

New and amended standards have been issued but are
not effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

(M

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ (Continued)

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting
for financial liabilities, as the new requirements only
affect the accounting for financial liabilities that are
designated at fair value through profit or loss and
the Group does not have any such liabilities. The
derecognition rules have been transferred from
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement and have not been changed.

The new hedge accounting rules will align the
accounting for hedging instruments more closely
with the Group’s risk management practices. As
a general rule, more hedge relationships might
be eligible for hedge accounting, as the standard
introduces a more principles-based approach. While
the Group does not involve any hedging, it does not
expect a significant impact on the accounting for its
hedging relationships.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards have been issued but are
not effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

U)

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ (Continued)

The new impairment model requires the recognition
of impairment provisions based on expected credit
losses rather than only incurred credit losses as
is the case under HKAS 39. It applies to financial
assets classified at amortised cost, debt instruments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income, contract assets under HKFRS 15, ‘Revenue
from Contracts with Customers’, lease receivables,
loan commitments and certain financial guarantee
contracts. While the Group has not yet undertaken
a detailed assessment of how its impairment
provisions would be affected by the new model, it
may result in an earlier recognition of credit losses.

The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in
presentation. These are expected to change the
nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures about
its financial instruments particularly in the year of the
adoption of the new standard.

HKFRS 9 must be applied for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. Based on
the transitional provisions in the completed HKFRS
9, early adoption in phases was only permitted
for annual reporting periods beginning before 1
February 2015. After that date, the new rules must
be adopted in their entirety. The Group does not
intend to adopt HKFRS 9 before its mandatory
date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT BERRME

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(®)

New and amended standards have been issued but are
not effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

(i)

HKFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the
recognition of revenue. This will replace HKAS 18
which covers contracts for goods and services and
HKAS 11 which covers construction contracts. The
new standard is based on the principle that revenue
is recognised when control of a good or service
transfers to a customer. The standard permits
either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach for the adoption.

Management is currently assessing the effects of
applying the new standard on the Group’s financial
statements and has identified the following areas
that are likely to be affected:

° revenue from service — the application of
HKFRS 15 may result in the identification of
separate performance obligations which could
affect the timing of the recognition of revenue.

° accounting for certain costs incurred in fulfilling
a contract — certain costs which are currently
expensed may need to be recognised as an
asset under HKFRS 15, and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B GRS R MY

2 FESTHHERBEx

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCies (Continued)

21 REHEHXE
QAN EHRESDRKBESE )

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) (4%)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(b)  New and amended standards have been issued but are (b) E R {E K ERKA WK ER
not effective and have not been early adopted by the EE IR 5T RACIEET
Group (Continued) EAl (4#)

(i) HKFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ iy BEREMBHRESEAFA

(Continued) GiaN F&K Q BEFEAEH Z JW

=] #)

e  rights of return HKFRS 15 requires separate e REHEFN—FEH
presentation on the balance sheet of the right B E LR E155% R
to recover the goods from the customer and FAEEHmMEBERPKEE
the refund obligation. mZENRBEREE

EEEBBRABYL
275

At this stage, the Group is not able to estimate the R R NEBEEAG

impact of the new rules on the Group’s financial ST BN &£ E B S R

statements. The Group will make more detailed RZEE - KEBER K

(i)

assessments of the impact over the next twelve
months.

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. At this
stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.

HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being
recognised on the consolidated statement of
financial statement, as the distinction between
operating and finance leases is removed. Under
the new standard, an asset (the right to use the
leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are
recognised. The only exceptions are short-term and
low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly
change.

(i)
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B HANRE -

B WK HE R E1557

BER —FE-NF—H—
B &k 2 1& 2 W U5 T2 98 )

AR o RNUREER  AEE

THEERNH £ A AR A
|

u/<—'—/ J

BEW B HREERE165
[THE]

BREMBHRELERF16
B EMETHARER
BHMBEHRRAER &
SHERREME 2SI D
B WM ER - RIBEZ AT E

- EEZHEEREN
ERAEELNES 22

BB (E AR o HE—PIHN
EREHMEEEEE -

HEBEAZETREED
eFEANE o

2016/17F# eprint E@MER LT 115



—e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT BERRME

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(®)

New and amended standards have been issued but are
not effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

(i)

HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’ (Continued)

The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for Group’s operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$37,092,000, see Note
34. However, the Group has not yet determined
to what extent these commitments will result in
the recognition of an asset and a liability for future
payments and how this will affect the Group’s profit
and classification of cash flows.

Some of the commitments may be covered by the
exception for short-term and low value leases and
some commitments may relate to arrangements
that will not qualify as leases under HKFRS 16.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2019. At this
stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.

116 eprint Group Limited Annual Report 2016/17

2 FESTHXRBEEs

21 REEEE®)
I EHREHRIRESTHE )

®)

BB E 5 KL R% A K ER
EF IR IR Z FT 5T R A5
EA )

(i)

BB MW E R 165
[MRE &)

=
+\’ 4
P

EARETRFEAKHE
ReMHEZERAE

Al BN JH 2 &8 & 0 & & E
37,092,0007% 7C - R MY 5
34 R AEB{IAE
EZEEREREREEM
BERARRNHERZIE
B UREnAgERe
B2 A HEMRETENHE -

B8 o0 4 A] BE A A B N (K
BEEEMERL - M
D ERERREE BT ®
HFEBEI6HE T A BIRIE
REEMAIEARE -

BHETEMBEE -F
—hF-—A—RBzEz®
i 2 HFEERM - B
Al AEBEEFFAEELE
R E HI AR AR I R R



2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2

221

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

(@) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(@) Business combinations (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising
from such re-measurement are recognised in profit or

loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not re-measured, and its subsequent settlement is

accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is
less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B GRS R MY

2 FESTHXRBEEs

22 B QR
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(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without (b)

change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets
of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in

equity.

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

()

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at
the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
It means that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/

permitted by applicable HKFRSs.
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2

2.2

Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

2.3

120

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’'s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition. The group’s investments in associates include
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any difference between
the cost of the associate and the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwiill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

eprint Group Limited Annual Report 2016/17

2

2.2

FESTHRBE

Lol =N D)

222 B B W&

2.3

R HY /B 2 ) ) % B 1R A AN F0BR OBl (E
W% KABEERFBREMA
ff /B8 2 A Y AR B AR R AR B UK
BN EWRIANG -

R YCER B B A R & B B BB - 4n
REBBAEKKREHAMNE LR
BizelaE  NNEBYMBE®REK
MEERAEBBR Y BHRERT
RRERRFEE(BREE) VK
HE - RBI LAY NE QR REER
BRI -

BE QT

%%@ﬂ%%ﬁ$ﬁlﬁﬁﬁék

FEHNMEZEHENETE B %W
58 20%-50%1% Z 7 1y IR AE o
““Tmﬁéu%*géﬁkﬁ

REEZEE  REVIBUKAK
AR T BR 1B B 48 00 SO 2 DA B
AREEZARREERNUBEH
‘rOBERMNE SEXRBEANK
EERUBRESRN EE - PRI
%ﬁ%QTZ%E%%¥ - B =
NI A RN RN E Rk N
ZT%%éF&EEZ STEEF
BIEMEZEBARSEHE -

Wit E AR M ER A HERED
RBEATEN REELHEHEZ
AREMEARSPTRRNEEE
NoEEER(NEE) -



2.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

Associates (continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to ‘share of profit of investments accounted
for using equity method’ in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group’s financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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122

Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements.
Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending
on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor.
The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements
and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are
accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses and movements in other comprehensive income.
The Group’s investments in joint ventures include goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership
interest in a joint venture, any difference between the cost of
the joint venture and the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the joint venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted
for as goodwill. When the Group’s share of losses in a joint
venture equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures),
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the
joint ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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2.5

2.6

(a)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCies (Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as
the chairman and executive directors of the Group that make
strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Group operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which
is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in statement
of comprehensive income within ‘Other losses — net’.

2.5

2.6

(a)

(b)
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2.6

(c)

(d)

124

Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Current
translation differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over
a joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency translation
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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2.6

(d)

2.7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BTSRRI
Summary of significant accounting 2 FEEFHEREw
pOIiCies (Continued)
Foreign currency translation (continueq) 26 MNEBRE )
Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal d HESEHNEBERIBIHEE @)
(Continued)
In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the e D B E T2 BB AN E KL
Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign BEEINER KB A a) 2 #
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated currency ZEAEL =B ENLM AEFR
translation differences are re-attributed to non-controlling FETIHERERETERNIERE
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other B oMIBEMIELEE(BIANEEF
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership REEE N Bk A &N [l Z A #ERE
interest in associates or joint ventures that do not result in =BEFTRNE  ET B AERK
the Group losing significant influence or joint control), the EBAFE L RIEFIE) 0 Rt
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is EEN =22 BB ET S ESE
reclassified to profit or loss. B e
Property, plant and equipment 27 N¥E BERZE
Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. THEREFIEBSIRERAE -
Leasehold land classified as finance lease and all other D AEMEHENHEL MR AE
property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost EMYE - BMEREZEAES KK
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is WITE 25 o FF A TR EE B
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. BEEERENRY -
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount HEEHIEH A B R KK ERN A ge
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when MANEER  ANIBEEBKARER S
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with HER HEKAT @ AEEDN
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be EEESERAEBLEE(WER) -
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is EEXLO>MEEERKIEER - T
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged EEMEELRERER Y EELSHME
to in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income HNEHGEalRmEzP L o

during the period in which they are incurred.
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2.7

126

Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest becomes
available for its intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land
classified as finance lease and depreciation on other assets
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Buildings

Plant and machinery

LLeasehold improvements
Computer, furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles

30 to 50 years
5 to 15 years
5 years

5 years

5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing

proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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2.8

(a)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing
the goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets represent source codes acquired which
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Source
codes have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of source codes over
their estimated useful lives of three years.
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2.9

Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible
assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.10 Financial assets

2.10.1 Classification

128

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
category: held-to-maturity investments, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(@) Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the Group’s management has
the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
If the Group were to sell other than an insignificant
amount of held-to-maturity financial assets, the whole
category would be tainted and reclassified as available
for sale. Held-to-maturity financial assets are included in
non-current assets, except for those with maturities less
than 12 months from the end of the reporting period,
which are classified as current assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCies (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2.10.1 Classification (Continued)

(b)

()

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
either financial assets classified as held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition. These financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value of these financial assets are
recognised in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or expected to
be settled more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group’s loans and receivables comprise
‘trade receivables’ (Note 20), ‘other receivables’ (Note
21), ‘amounts due from related companies’ (Note 36) and
cash and cash equivalents’ (Note 24) in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Loans and receivables
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 FESTHXRBEEs

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (continued) 210 e MEE »)
2.10.2 Recognition and measurement 2102 ARG E

e

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category
are presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income within ‘Other losses — net’ in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as part of other income
when the group’s right to receive payments is established.

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting

pOIiCieS (Continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a loss event) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a floating interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient,
the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT BERRME

2 Summary of significant accounting

pOIiCieS (Continued)

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. The cost of inventories comprises materials to be
consumed in the rendering of services. It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
See Note 2.10.2 for further information about the Group’s
accounting for trade receivables and Note 2.12 for description
of the Group’s impairment policies.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks and bank overdrafts. In the consolidated statement of
financial position, bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings
in current liabilities.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting

pOIiCieS (Continued)

2.17 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligation to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as
a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT BERRME

2

Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

2.19 Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

(a)

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised directly
in equity.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to
the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognized using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill;
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Qutside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements only to the extent that it
is probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT BERRME

2

Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(c)

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are
recognised when: the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time
is recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting

pOIiCieS (Continued)

2.22 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Such financial guarantees are given to banks on
behalf of subsidiaries or related parties to secure loans and
other banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given.
The fair value of a financial guarantee at the time of signature
is zero because all guarantees are agreed on arm’s length
terms and the value of the premium agreed corresponds
to the value of the guarantee obligation. No receivable for
the future premiums is recognised. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees
are measured at the higher of the initial amount, less
amortisation of fees recognised in accordance with HKAS
18, and the best estimate of the amount required to settle
the guarantee. These estimates are determined based on
experience of similar transactions and history of past losses,
supplemented by management’s judgement. The fee income
earned is recognised on a straight-line basis over the life of the
guarantee. Any increase in the liability relating to guarantees
is reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivables, and represents amounts receivable
for the render of services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities, stated net of returns, rebates and discounts.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities as described
below. The Group bases its estimates of return on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the
type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(@ Revenue from the provision of printing services and app
solutions is recognised when services are rendered.

(b) Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

(c) Rental income of office and machinery are recognised
on a straight-line basis over the terms of the respective
leases.

(d) Management fee income, information technology (I.T.)
related service income, pre-press processing and
customer services income are recognised when the
related services are rendered.

(e) Scrap sale income is recognised when the scrap
materials are delivered to the customers.

2.24Employee benefits

(a)

Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.
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2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be settled within 12
months and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when they are settled.

Pension obligations

The Group operates defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes for its employees. Contributions are made based
on certain percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are recognised as employee benefit expense as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the schemes.
The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and
(b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that
is within the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment of
termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to accept the
offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of
the reporting period are discounted to their present value.
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2 Summary of significant accounting

pOIiCieS (Continued)

2.25 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and the present value of the minimum lease
payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges. The corresponding rental obligations, net
of finance charges, are included in other long-term payables.
The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the
asset and the lease term.

2.26 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.
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3.1

(a)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow
and fair value interest rate risk.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the
Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial structure and
the current operations of the Group, no hedging activities are
undertaken by management.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates principally in Hong Kong with most of the
income and expenditures of the Group denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. Hence, the Group does not have significant
foreign exchange exposure. The Group does not hedge its
foreign exchange risk as its exposure is low.

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from cash and cash
equivalents, held-to-maturity investments, trade receivables,
other receivables and amounts due from related companies.
The carrying amounts of these balances represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.
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3.1

(b)

(c)

142

Financial risk management (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Most of the Group’s sales are settled by cash or credit
cards. Trade receivables of the Group are mainly due from
credit sales. The Group’s exposure of concentration risk is
insignificant as no external customers contributed over 10% of
the Group’s trade receivables.

The Group assesses the credit quality of the issuers of the
held-to-maturity investments, taking into account their financial
positions, past experience, and other factors and considered
that the credit risk of the investments is low.

Based on the Group’s historical experiences in collection of
trade receivables, other receivables and amounts due from
related companies, the directors consider the Group’s credit
risk of these receivables to be low.

The Group considers that adequate provision for unrecoverable
trade receivables and amounts due from related companies
has been made in the relevant accounting periods after
considering the Group’s experience in collection of trade
receivables and amounts due from joint ventures.

Management does not expect any losses from non-performance
by these counterparties.

Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by maintaining
sufficient cash flows of banking facilities, bank deposit and
cash and cash equivalents, which are generated from the
financing activities and the operating activities, respectively.

Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
directors do not consider that it is probable that the banks will
exercise their discretion to demand immediate repayment.

The directors believe that such borrowings and obligations
under finance leases will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groups based on the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements with the consideration of
the effect of repayment on demand clause.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT B HRER N T
Financial risk management (continued) 3 BBEKREEG»
Financial risk factors (continued) 31 B¥REEBEE®
Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) RBESRA 2
Between Between
Within 1 and 2 2 and 5
1 year years years Total
— R —ZWME ZZFZHEF ot
HK$000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$000
TF&TT Tt FBTT THTT
As at 31 March 2017 R-_TE—+F
=A=+—H

EERMEMAX

Borrowings and interest

expenses 38,343 - - - 38,343
Obligations under BMEREETH

finance leases and EERFMERAX

interest expenses 11,741 2,123 233 - 14,097
Trade payables Z 5N A - 7,948 - - 7,948
Other payables' H b < A — 1,826 - — 1,826
Amounts due to FE —FREREE

a related company UNEIE ] - 9 - - 9
Amounts due to directors &< E& H %18 - 245 - - 245
As at 31 March 2016 RZT—+F

=B=+—H

Borrowings and interest & & F| 25X

expenses 17,840 = — — 17,840
Obligations under BMEMEETH

finance leases and BEERMERX

interest expenses 11,332 4,960 1,612 106 18,010
Trade payables Z 5N RE = 15,274 — — 15,274
Other payables' E b j& < IR — 6,701 — - 6,701
Amounts due to e —FREREE

a related company UNEIE- ] = 15 — - 15
Amounts due to directors JE < & 53X 18 — 265 — — 265

1 The balance excludes advanced receipts from customers and accrued 1
expenses.

EHTEBEBAREPWFARESER -
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CXab i i

3 Financial risk management (continueq) 3 BXERERE»

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 B¥EBEZE®)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) RBEZRMR®
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into TEXIMAEBRMN SR EE ViR
relevant maturity groups based on the scheduled repayment BERBRAMSTECERDBHTE -
dates set out in the loan agreements and the effect of any WETAFEMBREREZEGRIOT
repayment on demand clause is ignored. LB AMEHEDEER -

Between Between
Within 1and2 2and5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total

—FR —EWMF WEILF HAFUL #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$E000 HKE000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TEET

As at 31 March 2017 R-ZE—+tF

=R=+—8H

Borrowings and interest & & & &5 %

expenses 14,579 3,971 4,408 21,023 43,981
Obligations under BMEREETH

finance leases and BEERFERX

interest expenses 7,384 5,410 1,831 - 14,625
Trade payables Z 5N IE 7,948 - - — 7,948
Other payables' H 4th i < FREe 1,826 - - - 1,826
Amounts due to FE —REREE

a related company UNETE Q] 9 - - - 9
Amounts due to directors JFE{J & = IB 245 - - - 245

As at 31 March 2016 MRZE—NF

—A=+—H

Borrowings and interest EE & F| 25X

expenses 14,834 2,130 1,503 — 18,467
Obligations under BEREETH

finance leases and BEERMERX

interest expenses 9,803 5,184 3,593 — 18,580
Trade payables Z 5 NI 15,274 — — — 15,274
Other payables' E A J& - ;IR 6,701 — — — 6,701
Amounts due to e —FREREE

a related company UNEIE- ] 15 = — - 15
Amounts due to directors J& & =318 265 — — — 265
1 The balance excludes advanced receipts from customers and accrued 1 EATNBEERE PN SIBE R ESER -

expenses.
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(d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings,
obligations under finance leases, held-to-maturity investments,
bank deposits and cash at banks.

As at 31 March 2016 and 2017, the Group’s interest-bearing
assets were bank deposits and held-to-maturity investments,
which are of fixed interest rates, and cash at banks, which
bears variable interest rates.

The Group’s income and cash flows from operations were
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates
as the significant interest-bearing assets were either fixed or
not expected to fluctuate significantly.

As at 31 March 2016 and 2017, borrowings at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk which is
partially offset by cash and cash equivalents held at variable
rates.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s profit before income
tax would have been approximately HK$281,000 lower/higher
(2016: HK$108,000 lower/higher). The sensitivity analysis has
been determined assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the balance sheet date. The 100 basis point
increase/decrease represents management’s assessment of
reasonable possible change in the interest rate which has the
most impact on the Group over the period until the next annual
balance sheet date.

As at 31 March 2016 and 2017, bank deposits,
held-to-maturity investments and obligations under finance
leases at fixed rates expose the Group to insignificant fair value
interest rate risk as the fixed rates approximate market interest
rates.
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AU SR M e
3 Financial risk management (coninued) 3 HEXEREEw
3.2 Capital risk management 32 EXREKRER
The Group’s objectives on managing capital are to finance AEBMEAEEBAEZE  BRIAEB
its operations with its owned capital and to safeguard the A §$fﬁ%§;§1ﬁ FE 7N B BE 4
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order BEE L/U%Hxﬁh1 @] 7R &%E
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other fih 335 10 & A5 R A 28
stakeholders.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group BHEEBENABRENGERE  KNERETA
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders and FAERMNTFREZRESCERRE
return capital to shareholders. fREHE K o
Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors $’§ BIZ1TEE0  c BEBEEEEE
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated b REEIREARIKF o Z L K THILE
as total debt divided by total equity. Total debt is calculated as ﬁ% B AR BT E c BEISE
borrowings and obligations under finance leases. BOBRBEELRMEEMEETHNE
FEtE -
The gearing ratios as at 31 March 2016 and 2017 were as RZE—XRNERER-_ZT—+F=AHA
follows: = t+t—HHNEEBBELXZINNAT :
As at 31 March
R=B=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FAET
Borrowings (Note 28) & & (fE28) 38,343 17,840
Obligations under finance lease BMEHEETHNREE
(Note 29) (Bt 5E29) 14,058 17,865
Total debt BERRE 52,401 35,705
Total equity SR 207,520 206,831
Gearing ratio EEBEALX 25% 17%
The increase in the gearing ratio during 2017 resulted primarily BEABBLLER - —+tFERN LT
from additions of borrowings by the Group. FTEHRASEBEEILMETE ©
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3.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (continued)

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current financial assets,
including cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other
receivables and amounts due from related companies, current
financial liabilities, including trade payables, other payables,
amounts due to a related company and directors, obligations
under finance leases and borrowings approximate their fair
values due to their short maturities, and non-current liabilities,
including obligations under finance leases and borrowings as
their interest rates approximate market interest rates.

The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at
the current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instrument
carried at fair value as at 31 March 2017 by level of the inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs
are categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as
follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).
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BRI

3 Financial risk management (coniinueq) 3 HMBRKBEE:

3.3 Fair value estimation (coniinued) 33 AAEEMA @
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that TRIFIARNEBRR -—_ZE—+EFER =
are measured at fair value at 31 December 2017 and 2016. E—RNE+-_A=+—HBELIAAE

BEHENERMEE

2017
—E—tF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

E—& e F=& et
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET FER FER

Assets BE
Financial asset at fair value #8851 A A EE
through profit or loss FEZEMEE - - 12,319 12,319
2016
—E-RF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EFE—H =i} EFE=H HRET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
TAT FA7T FA7T FAT
Assets BE
Financial asset at fair value &:@iBz=IRA L EE
through profit or loss TRz & REE — — 11,950 11,950
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(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B ORI R
Financial risk management (coninueq) 3 BXEREEREw
Fair value estimation (continueq) 3.3 RABEME
Financial instrument in level 3 (@ FE=#HsmIT H
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments TREVNWNEE-_E—+tHF=A=1+—
for the year ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016. ARE—FT—~"F=ZA=+—H1t

FEE=RITAZEF -

2017 2016
ZE—tF ZERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHE T
At beginning of the year R 4]) 11,950 -
Addition NE - 12,000
Gain/(loss) recognised in RIBEFERHEAEF,
profit or loss (Note 7) (E518) (FI5E7) 369 (50)
At end of the year RER 12,319 11,950
Total gain/(loss) for the year FREBZEERTA
included in profit or loss for sk (B51B) Bt A
assets held at the end of the year, Ba o JETHMEE —
under other losses — net FEE 369 (50)

Changes in unrealised gain/(loss) for ~ RFELRFABFZZER

the year included in profit or loss at KBRS (BE) &85

the end of the year 369 (50)
Critical accounting estimates and 4 BRETGET R HE
judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are et R Y EES RS  TER
based on historical experience and other factors, including BELBNAEMEE  BIEESE
expectations of future events that are believed to be BT EAREZHZTEE

reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the REBEHRAKEL G RERE - I
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, ENve G RER)ELMEE
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and NEBERER - B NEMBEEE
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material NEESIHMEENBERE@MEAE
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities AR ZEBXNRER 2T RERE
within the next financial year are addressed below. SR o
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BT BERRME

(a)

(b)

(c)

150

Critical accounting estimates and
jUdgementS (Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations require the use of estimates (Note 17).

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair value of financial instruments recorded in the
statement of financial position cannot be derived from active
markets, they are determined using valuation techniques
including the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference
to other instruments that are substantially the same, and
discounted cash flow analysis. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this
is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing
fair values.

Estimated provision for impairment of
receivables from third parties and related
companies

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables from
third parties and related companies based on an assessment
of the recoverability of these receivables. Provisions for
impairment are applied to these receivables where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not
be recoverable. The identification of doubtful debts requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying amounts of receivables and doubtful debt expense
in the period in which such estimate is changed.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the provision for
impairment of other receivables was HK$240,000 and there
was no provision for trade receivables (2016: provision for
trade receivables was HK$34,000). If the financial conditions
of customers and related companies of the Group were to
change, resulting in an impairment of their abilities to make
payments, additional provision may be required.
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(e)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Critical accounting estimates and
jUdgementS (Continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management determines the estimated lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment.
Management will revise the depreciation charge where useful
lives are different from those previously estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Useful lives of intangible assets

Management determines the estimated lives and related
amortisation charges for its intangible assets. Management will
revise the amortisation charge where useful lives are different
from those previously estimated.

Income taxes

The Group is principally subject to income taxes in Hong Kong.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain for the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying values in the financial
statements. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences and the carry
forward of unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised,
based on all available evidence. Recognition primarily involves
judgement regarding the future financial performance of the
particular legal entity or tax group. A variety of other factors
are also evaluated in considering whether there is convincing
evidence that it is probable that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will ultimately be realised, such as the
existence of taxable temporary differences, group relief, tax
planning strategies and the periods in which estimated tax
losses can be utilised.

(d)

(e)

(f)

B GRS R MY

B 58 & 5T b 5 K& H )

ME BERERBEZITRFH

EEEETHENE BELEREHN
B RERRBABERNERX - &
BEESRAAFHANRNBENG
B2 5T 97 B B 5T 3k A% 1 8H S UR
EREENRHEMRM EBRKIE
BESIEEE ©

BREEZTREHY

EEEBETHETLEEN G AR
FHNARBFEER - WA RFEH
BRINE LA e EE - AIEEER
EREEER -

Frig®t

AEBETEAUIBTRENEGHR - 1
BEMESHEERRIEHERAE -
REFXHERTPEENAZEEAR
RETHBENRZ RFAE - AKE
RIEE S A BN B IR 2 H A9 1 51
MR BETETEERAE - i
ZEEENERRBERB IR K
VmEnerE AR BTER
FHEENKHANE B RELERE
MEERARE -

EXRBABBBEIRNEERAELZ
MEERERERFBHRRD 2KRE
BEEREZRELER - BETEHIA
BEREBEMANBZREESAE
B1FZ R IERBE M B 7] HR 2
ERZR REAEAZRAAHREA
BEETTEMRBEA EREHEZE
B MTUAER BELERBEEEL
MREBEPEREBEIAEERBIBMH
AR R R BRI 2 HIE - 2R
HMARREZIETAFGE REE
EEFERNZEBEZBRLOHE
MELERBEEESKREATGLESE
BRmMEFERRNGR 58 - 28
R~ B H B EE & 7] 8 A&t
B R B -
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(f)

Critical accounting estimates and
jUdgementS (Continued)

Income taxes (continued)

The ultimate realisation of deferred tax assets recognised for
certain of the Group’s businesses depends principally on these
businesses maintaining profitability and generating sufficient
taxable profits to utilise the underlying unused tax losses. It
may be necessary for some or all of the deferred tax assets
recognised to be reduced and charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income if there is a significant
adverse change in the projected performance and resulting
projected taxable profits of these businesses. Judgement is
required to determine key assumptions adopted in the taxable
profit and loss projections and changes to key assumptions
used can significantly affect these taxable profit and loss
projections.

Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
Board of Directors of the Group. The chief operating decision-
maker has determined the operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the Board of Directors of the Group, that
are used to make strategic decisions and assess performance.

The chief operating decision-maker has determined the
operating segments based on these reports. The Group is
organized into two business segments:

(@ paper printing segment (mainly derived from the brand
“e-print”); and

(b)  banner printing segment (mainly derived from the brand
“e-banner”).

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Segment information (continueq)

Management assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of gross profit less distribution
costs, administrative and selling expenses, and other
operating expenses that are allocated to each segment. Other
information provided is measured in a manner consistent with
that in the financial statements.

Sales between segments are carried out at arm’s length basis.

The subsidiary incorporated in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) provides I.T. support services within the Group.
The subsidiaries incorporated in Malaysia and Australia
generated immaterial external revenue during the year. Since
the Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the Group’s
assets are mainly located in Hong Kong, no geographical
segment information is presented.

Information relating to segment liabilities is not disclosed as
such information is not regularly reported to the chief operating
decision-maker.

During the year ended 31 March 2016 and 2017, no external
customers contributed over 10% of the Group’s revenue.

B GRS R MY

%ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%%%%z
DA TR E S H R R
1%%§ﬁ¥ﬁﬁ%“%%ﬁ %
REHENEMEMZAEEPBERE

—ﬁ°

DEEZHE VIR FEEETT -

RPFEARAME(HE]) S BEFE
it B 32 &Y B B R B FE AN SR [ N BB 2
HEAR R ERS - RERAE
N OB 5E Ml B AZ B B B R B A
EEXELENBRA BRAEET
ERBBEEAAGRENEETE
UREE  SHEMESLERZS

BENHABZEMAL AT ARE

Eﬁﬂﬁﬁéﬂl*i%ﬁi%M
BRREWE -
Bz R"ErR-_Z—+F=AH1

St HLEFE BEIFEFPE
RRER B 10%H) N & B I 2% -
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5 Segment information (continueq) 5 2HWER
The following tables present revenue and segment results TREVWAEFBFREDLEHE_Z
regarding the Group’s reportable segments for the years —t+tER_E—REF=HA=1+—H
ended 31 March 2017 and 2016 respectively. EFEZW=mRDEBELE -

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-Z—tF=ZA=+—HLEFE
Paper Banner
printing printing Eliminations Total

REED R " & EN Rl i et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

FEx FEx FER FER

Segment revenue palk: 1L E
Revenue from external KEINIBEFE U

customers 314,486 76,152 — 390,638
Inter-segment revenue 7 2B Uk 55 426 91 (517) -
Total s 314,912 76,243 (517) 390,638
Segment results DEBELR 28,845 (14,499) 14,346
Finance income RPN 466
Finance costs b & A AR (1,579)
Share of losses of JER B & N RIS 1B

associates (1,746)
Share of profit of a joint FEiE—HEE%Aa

venture i Al 1,257
Profit before income tax B BT 15 5 A1 g A1) 12,744
Income tax expense FriS R 2 (3,525)
Profit for the year F N 9,219

Depreciation of property, ¥% - B & &

plant and equipment e 11,750 6,600 18,350
Amortisation of intangible 2 & 2 i

assets —_ 430 430
Impairment loss on M - HWE R

property, plant and WEBE

equipment - 699 699
Capital expenditure B 52,678 23,838 76,516
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5 Segment information (continueq) 5 S%EL =

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BHE_ZT—R"E=A=T—RHILFE

Paper Banner
printing printing  Eliminations Total
#R & EN Rl ng = BN B 85 HRET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAT TAT AT FAT
Segment revenue ol 116
Revenue from external RENIEFE W=
customers 331,033 51,735 — 382,768
Inter-segment revenue 73 BB A Uk & 389 459 (848) —
Total s 331,422 52,194 (848) 382,768
Segment results DEELE 33,260 (10,168) 23,092
Finance income RPN 2,186
Finance costs & AR (1,186)
Share of losses of JE(GEEZ R R E5 1B
associates (321)
Share of profit of a joint EiR—HEAE%EAa
venture s Al 851
Profit before income tax B AT 15 51 B & A 24,622
Income tax expense FIeHim% (2,815)
Profit for the year NP 21,807
Depreciation of property, %1% - M= k& E
plant and equipment e 11,859 4,132 15,991
Amortisation of intangible — # JiZ & 2 i 4
assets — 143 143
Capital expenditure EARFAL 7,952 16,156 24,108
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5 Segment information (continueq) 5 2HWER
The following tables present segment assets as at 31 March TREI R —+t R —_FT—XF
2017 and 2016 respectively. =A=+—H Z DEBEE °

As at 31 March 2017
R=-ZF—tHF=A=+-—H
Paper Banner
printing printing Total

REED R & 2 EN Rl et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FEx FER FER

S
Dvllt
s
W

Segment assets 175,192 55,253 230,445

As at 31 March 2016
R—ZE—RF=ZA=+—H

Paper Banner
printing printing Total
AE Bl ng = E #Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET FTHET
Segment assets D af & E 159,616 36,899 196,515
Segment assets for banner printing segment mainly BENROH O AEEZTERS
represented property, plant and equipment and goodwill %8 542,287,000 T (=& — /N4 -
amounting to HK$42,287,000 (2016: HK$26,992,000) and 26,992,000 % JT) & 725,000 7% (=
HK$725,000 (2016:HK$725,000). T — N4 725000 B IT) By ¥ .
BERREALEE -
A reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is provided DEEEHBEEYERENT :
as follows:

As at 31 March

MR=BA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF T — N
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FATT
Segment assets S EE E 230,445 196,515
Investment in associates éﬁ LBNTNEE 2,962 4,196
Investment in a joint venture S8 NEEE 6,205 5,655
Cash and cash equivalents Eﬁ%&fﬁ% = {EIE B 68,220 90,295
Other unallocated segment assets EMADBE D EEE 4,997 2,497
Total assets REE 312,829 299,158
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Other income 6 HA
2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
|.T. license fee income BABERFATERA 228 4,799
Scrap sales BER & 1,581 3,839
Interest income from held-to-maturity 3% % | #33% & > | 8 g A
investments 3,226 3,205
Machinery rental income HeSi S WA 892 1,288
Sundry income HMEIF UL A 192 196
6,119 13,327
Other losses — net 7 HMEE —FH

2017
—E—iF

HK$’000
FER

Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEW ¥ - HE KR EEIE

equipment (6,397) (3,751)
Exchange gains/(losses) — net BE 3 W as (E518) — B8 4 (2,816)
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial asset & @18 &5 1% A /o B (E 71 Bk

at fair value through profit or loss ZEMEENANEE

W, (E18) 369 (50)

Loss on disposal of financial assets HESREERERE (1,803) —
Others HAh 20 —
(7,807) (6,617)
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BHEEsENMAX

8 Expenses by nature 8

—e

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution
expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

BREEEXAE - HE RN HF XA
RITBAXEARANREIANET

2017
—E—tF
HK$’000
FET
Cost of materials M BB AR 53,269 82,921
Auditor’s remuneration % Z BN B &
— Audit services — B AR 1,521 1,452
— Non-audit services — TR 198 534
Employee benefits expense EEEAMAX 84,001 86,892
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BMEREETE
equipment 18,350 15,991
Amortisation of intangible assets EmEE#E 430 143
Impairment loss on property, plant and %1% - & & & &R E
equipment B8 699 -
Outsourced customer support IR IERX
expenses 19,351 20,529
Subcontracting fee SN A 129,739 90,451
Operating lease rental of premises and ¥ ¥ R RBENKEHE
equipment He 23,327 21,169
Repairs and maintenance HiERRE 4,274 5,141
Distribution costs Sal = 1D 13,697 13,662
Utility expenses NARB 4,281 5,498
Provision for impairment of other A 7 YA R T8 R (B B
receivables 240 =
Provision for impairment of trade B 5 W GRIE R E R
receivables - 34
Write off of trade receivables HisH 2 5 e KA 23 —
Recovery of trade receivables WESERIMENE S
previously written off JE W K18 (24) (24)
Others ﬁﬁﬂ 21,228 22,093
Total cost of sales, selling and HEKAR  HER
distribution expenses and DA AR
administrative expenses THF L @58 374,604 366,386
Others mainly represent credit card handling charges, HMWFTEHREHARFEE EEF KL

advertising and promotion expenses and telecommunication

expenses.
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Employee benefits expense (including
directors and senior management’s

B O ERRM

BERARAX(BRES
REREEEBFHMHN)

emoluments)
2017 2016
—E—tF TR

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TF&TT
Salaries and allowances H4 NoERL 71,723 76,719
Bonuses and commissions P AN 6,991 4,139

Pension costs — defined contribution R K& AR —
plans (Note a) FEAR G B (B 7Ea) 3,997 4,235
Welfare and other benefits &8 H & B = 1,290 1,799
84,001 86,892

Notes:

(@

Pension costs — defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its employees to join the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution
scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme,
each of the Group’s subsidiaries (the employer) and its employees make
monthly contributions to the scheme generally at 5% of the employees’
earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation.
The monthly contributions of each of the employer and the employees
are subject to a maximum contribution of HK$1,500 (2016: HK$1,500)
per month and thereafter contributions are voluntary. The Group has no
further obligation for post-retirement benefits beyond the contributions.

The Group is also required to contribute to an Employees Provident
Fund Scheme in Malaysia. Each of the employer and employee make
monthly contributions to the scheme generally at 13% and 11% of the
employees’ salaries respectively. The Group has no further obligation for
post-retirement benefits beyond the contributions.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group contributes
to state-administered retirement plans for employees in the PRC. The
employees contribute up to 8% (2016: 8%) of their basic salaries,
while the Group contributes approximately 13% to 14% (2016: 13%
to 14%) of such salaries. The Group has no further obligations for the
actual payment of pensions or post-retirements benefits beyond these
contributions. The state-administrated retirement plans are responsible
for the entire pension obligations payable to the retired employees.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the amount of the Group’s employer
contributions to defined contribution plans was HK$3,997,000 (2016:
HK$4,235,000). There were forfeited contributions to the MPF Scheme
of HK$2,339,000 (2016: HK$2,952,000) which has been utilised for the
year ended 31 March 2017. As at 31 March 2017, contribution payable
to the MPF Scheme amounted to HK$479,000 (2016: HK$527,000).

RS RA — O H KRGS

AEBELHEESELMBHEQTE
S E((EEEE]) M&ZTE AR
—ZBURTEATEN —EREMRK
T8 - RERESHE  AKEHNEM
WERAR(EX)REEEHAERARZ
B - MBIRAR S ERTESEG -
HAREE -—RAEBKRANSY - &E
EREENT AHERNRERA1,500% T
—F—XNfF 15008 7m) c BE LR
ZHERE BB - BRERIN - KEE
b 4 H 4th 5 BR IR K& B A B AT -

AEBETAHBSREEINEREAES
AEEHER -EEXREEEA KD
PR (B B % © B913% % 11%% iz =1 & /£
MR o R F N - REELEE
RN ERE N2 BAE

MR BEG ROERFTAE  AEE
BAEHTBEEERNBABEREEMNENK
AEER - BEEREEFFERZ8% (=
T — N 1 8%) 2 MASEEAE
BBEH L O13%E14% (—F — N 4F ¢
13%E14%) {EHH R - REZZFHEIN -
AEEBTHEEMBERER SRR S
HRKEEMNZEME - BRAKEEZHBR
REEEHBEREENBRNRTEIFAE -

 E 22—+t EFE=A=+—BIt&E
T AEEEAREETRRTEH® KRG
£ 33,997,000 T(Z & — /N F
4,235,000 L) c HEZT—LF=A
S+ HLEFEEHANER KRR
% 5t &4 3% 42,339,000 T (=T — 7~
G 129520008 L) c RZT — £ F
—A=+—H - ERaBEerEHXK
479,000 7t (= T — /X F : 527,000%
JT) ©

o B

g
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9 Employee benefits expenses (including
directors and senior management’s
emoluments) (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for
the year include one director (2016: three directors), whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 38. The emoluments payable
to the remaining four (2016: two) individuals are as follows:

EEEAMBMZ(BEES
EEREEERHEM) »

L)
) HEFEEFAL

FA - AEENAERSFALBE—
BEE(ZZ—RF: =ZREF) %E
BENFHME N8R B DT
R - ERERTHZAL(ZF—RF -

MB) T BT
2017 2016
—E—tf —2— A%
HK$’000 HK$’000

THxT

Salaries and allowances e &R 3,345 1,828
Discretionary bonuses BB e AL 90 302
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BREKRE — REHERTE 84 32
3,519 2,162

The emoluments of these individuals fell within the following bands:

ZEANTHHMN FATHE :

Number of individuals

AB

2017 2016
—g—t5 —T x5

HK$500,000 to HK$1,000,000 500,0007% 7T Z 1,000,0007% 7T 3 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T & 1,500,0005% 7T 1 2
4 2

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors or other
members of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join,
upon joining the Group, leave the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.
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10 Finance (costs)/income — net

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O ERRM

10 @& (RE), WA

Vgl

2017 2016
= —TRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FHET
Finance income BE WA
— Interest income from bank — RITHERF BUA
deposits 184 1,850
— Unwinding of discounts on held- — BEIHKERS
to-maturity investments £ [o] 282 336
466 2,186
Finance costs BhE R A
— Finance charges on obligations — EAREHEET
under finance lease EENRMEER (676) (934)
— Interest expenses on borrowings — EEFEHX (903) (252)
_______________________________________________________________________________________ (,579)  _(1,186)
Finance (costs)/income — net ME(KAR) WA — FE (1,113) 1,000
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11 Subsidiaries

The following is a list of the subsidiaries at 31 March 2017:

Name of company

Directly held:
BEERA:

Promise Network
Holding Limited

eprint Digital Holding
Limited

E-print Group Limited

eprint Holdings
Limited

e-print Trading
Limited

Place of incorporation
and kind of legal entity

2k 1 B 32 s B IR
ERERRR

The British Virgin Islands
(“BVI”), limited liability
company

RERAHEAREEAT

The BVI, limited liability
company

RERUME
((EBEZES])
BEREAAH

The BVI, limited liability
company
EERAHEERELAR

The BVI, limited liability
company
EBRUHEBREMRA

The BVI, limited liability
company

RERABEEREELT

162 eprint Group Limited Annual Report 2016/17

Particulars of
issued share capital

ERTRAHE

2,887 ordinary shares of

US$1 each

2,887 B RAEEIZETH

1 ordinary share of
US$1 each

11 B2 =)

R-B—tF=A=+—8 KE

ARREMT :

Proportion

Proportion
of ordinary
shares held
by the
Group

(%)

of ordinary
shares held
by non-
controlling
interests

(%)

FEBR

FRERE
EBRLA
(%)

100%

100%

REREEIETHEBR

50,000 ordinary shares of

US$1 each

50,0008 &R E{E1ETTH

1 ordinary share of
US$1 each

100%

100%

1REREEIZTHEAR

1 ordinary share of
US$1 each

100%

REREEIXTHEBR

BilA
EBRLA

(%)

Principal
activities
and place of
operation

FEXBEDR
EXHH

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
BEREER

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
BREREEKR

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
BEREER

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
BREREER

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
BEREER
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11 B 2 ")

11 Subsidiaries (Continued)

The following is a list of the subsidiaries as at 31 March 2017: NR—_ZE—F+F=A=+—H " B
(Continued) NRIBEWT : (#)
Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary
of ordinary shares held
shares held by non-  Principal
by the controlling activities
Place of incorporation Particulars of Group interests  and place of
Name of company  and kind of legal entity issued share capital (%) (%) operation
FER
XEEEE BEEE
LA L 3 B IR TEREA TEREA FEERIBR
EEERED EETRAFE (%) (%) &
Indirectly held:
BERE !
Promise Network Hong Kong, limited liability 2,886 ordinary shares of 100% —  Provision of
Printing Limited company HK$1 each printing services
R 56 48 L EN BEBEREMAT 28860k B AR E 17 T H) in Hong Kong
e NG EER EBBRE
ENRI AR 7%
Invoice Limited Hong Kong, limited liability 1,000 ordinary shares of 100% —  Provision of
EHRORERAA company HK$1 each printing services
BEBBREMAT 1,000/ B R E 17 T ) in Hong Kong
EEK EEBRMY
ENRI AR 7%
Kimley Technology Hong Kong, limited liability 2,775 ordinary shares of 100% — Investment holding
(HK) Limited company HK$1 each in Hong Kong
ERBE (FRE) ERREREMEAA 2,775 B R E 17 T BRRERR
el NG LRk
Dajinlai Technology ~ The PRC, limited liability 1,000,000 ordinary shares of 100% —  Provision of
(Shenzhen) Limited' ~ company RMB1 each I.T. services
AERBR(RY)  HEBEREEAF 1,000,000 & R E (& in the PRC
BRAR ARBATH L AR EhERE
BB RS
Lucky Gainer Limited Hong Kong, limited liability 2 ordinary shares of 100% —  Provision of
HERERARF company HK$1 each management
BEREBREMERA R EREEIETOL AR services
in Hong Kong
ERBRHE
ERRE
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11 B 2 ")

R=Z—LF=A=+—0 KB
ARREMT : (20

11 Subsidiaries (Continued)

The following is a list of the subsidiaries as at 31 March 2017:
(Continued)

—e

Name of company

Indirectly held: (Continued)

CE:32E )

Place of incorporation

and kind of legal entity

2k 1 B 32 s B IR
ERERRR

Particulars of
issued share capital

ERTRAHE

Proportion
of ordinary
shares held
by the
Group

(%)

FRERE
EBRLA
(%)

Proportion
of ordinary
shares held
by non-
controlling
interests
(%)

FER
BEEE
EERLA
(%)

Principal
activities
and place of
operation

FEXBEDR
EXHH

Design Easy Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability 2,775 ordinary shares of 100% —  Provision of
%t 5 (B%) company HK$1 each printing services
BRARA BEBEREMAT 2,775 BIREETBTH in Hong Kong

Ak EEBRE
ENRI AR 7%
eprint Investment The BVI, limited liability 1 ordinary share of 100% —  Property
Limited company US$1 each investment in
EERZHEARETLR 1REREAEIXTHLRR Hong Kong
BEMERE
eprint Property The BVI, limited liability 1 ordinary share of 100% —  Property
Investment Limited company US$1 each investment in
EERUHEAREMARLR 1REREGEIETHLERK Hong Kong
ERNERE
e-banner Limited Hong Kong, limited liability 24,133,000 ordinary shares of 51% 49%  Provision of digital
company HK$1 each printing services
EREREMERA 24,133,000(k B iR E (E17% in Hong Kong
TH & AR EEBREHT
ENRI AR 7%
App One Esolution Hong Kong, limited liability 10 ordinary shares of 70% 30%  Provision of
Limited company HK$430,000 each app solutions
BEBERALAR 10/ & AR E 430,000 1T in Hong Kong
N R EEBREER
BABARR
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11 Subsidiaries (Continued)

The following is a list of the subsidiaries as at 31 March 2017:
(Continued)

Particulars of
issued share capital

Place of incorporation
and kind of legal entity

Name of company

o iR B L 3 B
EEERED EETRAFE
Indirectly held: (Continued)

BEEE: &)

B O ERRM

11 B 2 ")

R-FB—tE=A=+—H B8
REBEWMT « (#)

Proportion
of ordinary
shares held
by non-

by the controlling
Group interests

(%) (%)

FER

XEEEE BEEE
EBERLA EBERLA
(%) (%)

Proportion
of ordinary
shares held Principal
E S
and place of
operation

FEXBEDR
EXHH

Digital Printing
Centre Limited

ERHS R
BRARA

Ebanner Australia
Pty Ltd!

Ebanner Solution
Sdn. Bhd.

E-BOSS CO. LIMITED

Hong Kong, limited liability
company
EREREMERA

Australia, limited liability
company
BNEREEAR

Malaysia, limited liability
company
SRATAREELA

Hong Kong, limited liability
company
EREREMERA

10,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
10,0008% & A% [ {E17% 7 £9

1 ordinary share of Australia
dollar (“AUD") 1 each
1REREEDRT(RT])
VE @R

400,000 ordinary shares of
RM1 each
400,000 B R EE1L H

1 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
IREREEIETHERK

100%

100%

100%

100%

—  Investment holding
in Hong Kong
BREREEKR

—  Provision of
printing services
in Australia

RN R
EY ol B 75

—  Provision of
printing services
in Malaysia

SRR RME
EN 7l AR 75

—  Dormant

LR

1 These companies are not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.

(@) Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interests as at 31 March 2017 is
HK$2,715,000 (2016: HK$197,000), in which the whole
amount is attributed to e-banner Limited and its subsidiaries
(“e-banner Group”).

i %% R A Y IE AR X ROKE B AT AD =
BRTEZ ©

() EXFERER

WR-_ZE—+HE=/F=+—8 3
YRS HE 25 48 B8 A 2,715,000 T (=
=T — XN 197,000 % r) 0 & =6
J& e-banner Limited & H [t B A &
([e-bannere & |) »
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BRI ERR M

11 B 2 ")
(@) EXFERER D)

BREEAFEREZNNEBLF
2 BERPE

11 Subsidiaries (Continued)

(@) Material non-controlling interests (continued)

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries
with material non-controlling interests

Set out below is the summarised financial information for TYHFHINEAERMSBEANNE
the subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests that are BIEEREZONB AR ZHBEE
material to the Group. BEE -

BB RBEE

Summarised statement of financial position

e-banner Group
e-banner£ ®

—e

2017 2016
—EB—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Current B
Assets BE 11,033 7,953
Liabilities afE (35,830) (33,808)
Total current net liabilities ME)BEFEERE (24,797) (25,859)
Non-current IR B
Assets BE 26,777 31,028
Liabilities =R (6,939) (6,808)
Total non-current net assets EREBEEFEATE 19,838 24,220
Net liabilities BEEHE (4,959) (1,639)
Summarised statement of comprehensive income PEW I E

e-banner Group
e-bannerf B

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE T FET

Revenue W 25 76,243 52,194
Loss before income tax ¥k BT 1S 15 Bl B 18 (15,666) (10,838)
Income tax credit Frig i & 948 2,311
Loss for the year FAEIE (14,718) (8,527)
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CXaibir el
12 Investments in associates 12 REtE RN BINKRE

2017 2016

—B—tF ZT—RF

HK$’°000 HK$’000

FET FHET

At beginning of year NG 4,196 —
Additions (Note i) ANE (MF5ED) 750 4,565
Share of losses of associates FEAG B2 A R E 1B (1,746) (321)
Currency translation differences bEH Z5 (238) (48)
At end of year RER 2,962 4,196

Notes: Bt FE -

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2017, e-print Trading Limited, a wholly- [0)
owned subsidiary of the Company, invested in the associate, Giant State
Limited at a consideration of HK$749,612.

(i) The investment in Able Sure Corporation Limited has been disposed (ii)
on 1 August 2016 at a consideration of HK$30. A gain on disposal of
HK$30 was recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 March 2017.

HEZZ—+HE=A=1+—HILEFE -
KA TE’J%é‘WE Ale-print Trading
Limtedizx Bt & R A EHABER AT - &
BEREAR7496128 7T -

REEARARZBERZZ—XREFN
A—RBHE REA0BT - HEKE
B THREBEE_TE—+tF=A=+—
HIEFEZAHEEKRSERFER -

Details of the Group’s investment in associates are as follows: RNEFBNRBESATHNEEFIBFHOT ¢

Place of
business/country Effective interest
Name of company of incorporation held as at 31 March

EBwE S R=A=+-—8H

DEER LB R BREERER
2017 2016
—E—tfF —T—RF

Principal Measurement
activities method

FEED TR

Shenzhen Yi Yun Hu PRC 30% 30%
Wang Tong Technology A El
Company Limited 2

AYMEEEHBREK

BRAAE
Able Sure Corporation Hong Kong - 30%
Limited B
EREBRAT
Giant State Limited The BVI 30% 30%
EXBERRAA REBREXEHS

AREERAR

1 The financial statements of these companies are not audited by 1
PricewaterhouseCoopers

2 English translation is for identification purpose only.

Provision of Equity
cloud printing & A
services

R EENRI RS

Investment Equity
holding in the ~ #Ez87%
PRC

SRIETEE - R

Investment Equity
holding in %
Hong Kong

BEBEREER

% %5 2 Al 2 Bf 85 9K 3 3F R BB SR oK
ERAMEHAER
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BRI ERR M

12 Investments in associates (continued)

(@) Commitments in respect of associates

The Group has commitment to investing in one of its associate,
Shenzhen Yi Yun Hu Wang Tong Technology Company
Limited of HK$4,228,000.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s
interest in the associates.

(b) Summarised financial information for material
associate

Set out below are the summarised financial information for
Shenzhen Yi Yun Hu Wang Tong Technology Company
Limited which is accounted for using the equity method.

Summarised statement of financial position

12 REBEEATNREw

(a)

(b)

B 4 2 =0 B AR
AEBEAFRE —HEE QAR
NEEEABEBEERARAKE
4,228,000/ 7t °

AEBRBEAT 2aflEXR
BifE -

EEMELNTYRENBE
TXHINRYEZEFEBRKAER
RANPTBENRE - WA X
N

MBRRRBEE

Shenzhen Yi Yun Hu Wang Tong
Technology Company Limited
RYNBEEFRBREARLF

2017 2016
—E—tfF =

HK$’000 HK$’000

THExT TETT

Non-current assets IERBEE 3,460 4,888

Current assets mEEE 6,504 13,735

Current liabilities mEBE (92) (4,636)

Net Asset BEFRE 9,872 13,987
Summarised statement of comprehensive income SolkBEREBE

Shenzhen Yi Yun Hu Wang Tong
Technology Company Limited
FYNEBEEEFBENEERLA

Revenue Wz

Loss from continuing operations REELEE
Income tax expense FrigBif
Total comprehensive loss e EEERE

2017 2016
—E2—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TEx THET
161 4

(3,320) (1,060)
(3,320) (1,060)
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12 Investments in associates (continued)

(b) Summarised financial information for material
associate (continued)

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the
financial statements of the associate, and not for the Group’s
share of those amounts, adjusted for differences in accounting
policies between the Group and the associate.

Reconciliation of summarised financial information
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information
presented to the carrying amount of its interest in the

associate.

Summarised financial information

B O ERRM

12 REBEE QTN ERE

b) EEBRLELATNHHRERNBE»)
A _E &R R B 2 D B/ B RS 3Rk
NEF|H)EEE - WIEAE B FT(5 8
oUW ASEEEEENGE 2 M
SRR EEFEHAE -
BRERBENYH R
HHRENBENEEZY EREE
NEIRERREE -

MBERBRE

Shenzhen Yi Yun Hu Wang Tong
Technology Company Limited
RYBEERBERNFARAR

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Opening net assets FHEEFHE 13,987 —
Issuance of share capital % 2N 8217 - 15,206
Loss for the year FRNEIE (3,320) (1,060)
Currency translation differences EH =% (795) (159)
Closing net assets FREEFHE 9,872 13,987
Interest in associate REEE N AR 30% 30%
Share of net assets JEIEEEFH 2,962 4,196
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B ORISR R
13 Investment in a joint venture 13 REELQNTINIKRE
2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FHET
At beginning of year R E ] 5,655 6,401
Disposal (Note 35) & (MYsE35) - (1,362)
Share of profits of joint venture X NI b 1,257 851
Currency translation differences fE X Z5 (707) (235)
At end of year E 4R 6,205 5,655
Details of the Group’s joint venture is as follows: REBZEZERNRIFBHET :
Place of
business/country Percentage of Principal Measurement
Name of company of incorporation ownership interest  activities method
E3 31
NCIEE: B 3z B =R EEASL TEEBED FHERFE
2017 2016
ZE-LF ZTRF
e-print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 30% 30%  Provision of Equity
BRAEE printing ‘%
services

A EN R AR 75

(a) Commitments in respect of joint venture (@) E&DNAWEIE
The Group has no commitments relating to its joint venture. REFBWELSBFSL DA RE o
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s MEASEAEERNAS L AT EZ
interest in the joint venture. KRB B o
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B O ERRM

13 Investment in a joint venture (continueq) 13 REE QTN KREw

(b) Summarised financial information for joint venture (b) &% A T MK ER M E

Set out below is the summarised financial information for e-print T X # %le-print Solutions Sdn. Bhd.
Solutions Sdn. Bhd. (“e-print Solutions”) which is accounted [ e-print Solutions ] &) 81 7 & KL E -
for using the equity method. W AR E AR ©
Summarised statement of financial position AR R E

e-print Solutions

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Current assets RBEE
Cash and cash equivalents HekR&EEEE 5,919 5,523
Other current assets (excluding cash  HEMnEBEE (TBEHES
and cash equivalents) kBE&EEIER) 6,635 6,422
Total current assets MEEERR 12,554 11,945
Current liabilities REBEE
Financial liabilities (excluding trade cHEE(TBIEES
payables) FE T3R8 (7,858) (7,117)
Other current liabilities (including trade Ef i aE (BEE 5
payables) FE T 3RIE) (10,151) (8,796)
Total current liabilities mEBERRE (18,009) (15,913)
Non-current assets FREBEE
Assets BE 46,515 39,333
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Financial liabilities TEAaE (19,001) (15,258)
Other liabilities Hi B & (1,544) (1,446)
Total non-current liabilites  _______FnBEmE®#EsE (20545  (16,704)
Net assets EEFE 20,515 18,661
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AU SR M e
13 Investment in a joint venture (continued) 13 REERQTNERE
(b) Summarised financial information for joint (b) EERANBKERBE

venture (continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income 2HNFZERBEE

e-print Solutions

2017 2016
—B—tF  —TXE
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FHET
Revenue W5 76,206 68,427
Depreciation e (3,846) (3,249)
Finance cost B & Ak AN (1,317) (1,410)
Profit before income tax B P45 25 AL A A 4,645 3,653
Income tax expense FriSfi 2 (453) (816)
Net profit and total comprehensive wAFRE R AR e WS B RE
income 4,192 2,837
The information above reflects the amounts presented in the N EEBR RS Z N T H B S HRER
financial statements of the joint venture and not for the Group’s N2 EEE - I IEANE BTG E
share of those amounts, adjusted for differences in accounting WK AEFES SN T Z[
policies between the Group and the joint venture. S@ARBEHNEBELTTE
Reconciliation of summarised financial information BMEERBENYSER
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information BEERHMENEEZNAEREE
presented to the carrying amount of its interest in the joint NEIHEZREEE -
ventures.
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Bt BRI
13 Investment in a joint venture (continued) 13 REERQTNERE
(b) Summarised financial information for joint (b) EERAAIMBERBE 2

venture (continued)

Summarised financial information BEERBE

e-print Solutions

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FATT

Opening net assets FYEEFRE 18,661 16,592
Profit for the year F N A 4,192 2,837
Currency translation differences [E % =%8 (2,338) (768)
Closing net assets FREEFH 20,515 18,661
Interests in joint venture REE QRN ER 30% 30%
Share of net assets JE{R & E F58 6,155 5,598
Goodwill GRS 50 57
Carrying amount BRI B 6,205 5,655

14 Income tax expense 14 FISBiMxX
2017 2016
—EB—tF T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current income tax EHFSH

— Hong Kong profits tax — BEABRNERH 7,989 4,439
— PRC corporate income tax — RN EMER - 1,182
Overprovision in prior year F—FEBEEE (1,239) (77)
6,750 5,544

Deferred income tax RAEFTISHL (3,225) (2,729)
Income tax expense Fr {5 %% f 52 3,525 2,815
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BT BERRME

14 FREBIRE 2o

14 Income tax expense (continued)

—e

Subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to
Hong Kong profits tax at a rate of 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profits for the year (2016: 16.5%). Subsidiary
incorporated in the PRC is subject to PRC corporate income
tax based on the statutory income tax rate of 25% for the year
(2016: 25%) as determined in accordance with the relevant
PRC income tax rules and regulations. The Company has not
been subject to any taxation in the Cayman Islands as it does
not have any assessable profit since its incorporation.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the
consolidated entities in the respective jurisdictions as follows:

REBEMALEH B R F B E
F 2 b ET SR BE M 1216.5% ) B K
(ZZE—RF 16.5%) BN EENE
Bt o TA R B RE A AR 2 B9 B BB R R R
BREABERBEMASHERRER
BENFREIEEMSHNER25% (=
T—RNF 25%) M BEREMF
B oo B B H R AL A R AT
I ERT OGN - AR A HRAMN
EMRSESHEA -

Th AN 5% B /0 BR P 15 A5 AT 4R A 1 28 88
A0 B0 T TR SR IR A A AR A2 70 4 R A
AR R S O B 88 /i A B hnAE
OREFENERESBAEMTR
AEgEBRmT

2017 2016
—E—tF —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHT
Profit before income tax &R BT 15 %54 Al i £ 12,744 24,622
Tax calculated at a weighted average &7 [@ AR R 89 INAE F 15
tax rate in different tax jurisdiction MERTEIE 981 4,513
Tax effects of: ATEENHRIBLE -
— Share of loss of associates — BB E A RIEE 288 53
— Share of profit of joint venture — EhHEERRREF (207) (140)
— Income not subject to tax — BAHH KA (683) (729)
— Expenses not deductible for — NAHBAX
tax purposes 2,250 214
— Utilisation of previously — BRI RERE
unrecognised tax losses HIBEE - (563)
— Recognition of previously — MR UL AT R MR A
unrecognised tax losses IS (97) (1,059)
— Tax losses and other temporary — W ERERIEL
differences for which no Fr 15 %% &9 15 18 B 18
deferred income tax was R CE fth B 5
recognised 2,232 603
— Over-provision in respect of — F—FEBERE
prior year (1,239) (77)
3,525 2,815
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15 Earnings per share

(a)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15

Basic (a)
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue for the years ended

31 March 2016 and 2017.

B O ERRM

BRAER
Ex

BEREABFDIREBEAQRREDHE
BEAREZANGUABEE —T—~F
F_E—+tHF=ZAZ=Z+—HLEFE
ERTEBRRMEFLSETE -

Profit attributable to equity holders of

ARE ST A ARG E

the Company (HK$’000) (%) 17,321 26,053
Weighted average number of ordinary = 377 & 8 A% h1# ¥ 5 8¢

shares in issue (thousands) (F %) 550,000 532,104
Basic earnings per share (HK cents)  G&RERZEF L) 3.15 4.90

Diluted (b)
Diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings

per share for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2017 as

there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding
during the years.

BE

BE_Z—R"EFE_FE—tF=A4
—+—HLEFE SRESERFHE
ERERZFER  THREAFE
WERBEIINBEE ST EE -
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BRI ERR M

16 Property, plant and equipment

16 W% BEERE

Computer,
Leasehold Plantand furniture and Motor
Buildings improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
e Bl FE
Bx NELE  BEREM K% "E @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TAT TAR TAR TET TAT
At 1 April 2015 R=B-ZEMA-A
Cost KA - 9,183 135,316 11,811 1,278 157,588
Accumulated depreciation 2iE - (6,277) (46,680) (6,227) (804) (59,988)
Net book amount RRFE - 2,906 88,636 5,584 474 97,600
Year ended 31 March 2016  HBZ=-F—- 1%
SR=t-RLEE
Opening net book amount ENREEE = 2,906 88,636 5,684 474 97,600
Additions RE - 3,908 15,636 2,406 868 22,818
Acquisition of a subsidiary g el L) NG - 486 14,545 891 276 16,198
Disposals (Note 32) & (fit3£32) - (137) (6,561) (144) (278) (7,120)
Depreciation (Note 8) & (M3s) = (1,354) (12,156) (2,131) (350) (15,991)
Currency translation differences [ =% - - 6) (33) 1 (38)
Closing net book amount FRERFE - 5,809 100,094 6,573 991 113,467
At 31 March 2016 RZE-XE=A=1-H
Cost B - 13,160 152,354 14,529 1,728 181,771
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE = (7,351) (52,260) (7,956) (737) (68,304)
Net book amount REFE - 5,809 100,094 6,573 991 113,467
Year ended 31 March 2017  HZ=F—-+#%
ZR=t-RLEE
Opening net book amount ENRAFE - 5,809 100,094 6,573 991 113,467
Additions NE 67,850 2,771 3,274 1,592 1,029 76,516
Disposals (Note 32) & (Mi7E32) = (630) (12,499) (76) (104) (13,303)
Depreciation (Note 8) & (Fizks) (922) (1,873) (183,072) (2,223) (260) (18,350)
Provision for impairment RERE = = (694) () - (699)
Currency translation differences  [& 5 =% - (62) (270) (107) ) (442)
Closing net book amount EREEEE 66,928 6,015 76,839 5,754 1,653 157,189
At 31 March 2017 R-E-t§=B=1-H
Cost AR 67,850 14,605 124,288 15,732 2,043 224,518
Accumulated depreciation REHE (922) (8,590) (46,789) (9,973) (390) (66,664)
Accumulated impairment Z:RE - - (660) () - (665)
Net book amount ERKAFE 66,928 6,015 76,839 5,754 1,653 157,189
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CXaibir el
16 Property, plant and equipment (coninues) 16 W%  BERXE=

Note:

As at 31 March 2017, buildings with the carrying amounts of HK$66,928,000
(2016: Nil) were pledged to banks to secure bank borrowings of HK$22,815,000
(2016: Nil).

Depreciation of the Group’s property, plant and equipment has
been charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as follows:

B &E

R—_ZE—+tF=ZA=+—H KEEAE
66,928,000/ T (ZT— & : T)WEFDIE
T R1T - MR © 58 £22,815,0007% 7T (=
T—NF o T)WRITEK -

AEENYE BELRREBEZINE
ERE RGeS R P HE ¢

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

THx FHE T

Cost of sales Fi=i- DN 14,309 13,477
Selling and distribution expenses HEMDHEAY 1,720 666
Administrative expenses TR 2,321 1,848
18,350 15,991

Property, plant and equipment includes the following amounts
where the Group is a lessee under finance leases (Note 29):

ME BMELRXEBEBEIATHAAE
EREREHERARABAZEE
(Ft3E29) :

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE-RF

HK$’°000 HK$’000

FHET AT

Cost — capitalised finance leases KA —EXRLREHE 35,942 68,620
Accumulated depreciation i (12,160) (17,700)
Net book amount 8RS E 23,782 50,920

The Group leases various machinery under non-cancellable
finance lease agreements. The lease terms are two to five
years, and ownership of the assets lie within the Group.

AEBEREBETAIMERERE HZ
HiEZBgss - BRAMFERF -
BEERARBNAKHE -
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BRI ERR M

BEE

17 Intangible assets

—e

Other
intangible
Goodwill assets Total
BHE HMEFREE et
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
TBTT T T
Year ended 31 March 2016 BHE-Z—X<=H
=+—HILEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE - - -
Addition NE 725 1,290 2,015
Amortisation charge (Note 8) e R (ME8) — (143) (143)
Closing net book amount FEXRE@EE 725 1,147 1,872
At 31 March 2016 R-ZB—XREF
=A=+-—H
Cost DN 725 1,290 2,015
Accumulated amortisation RtE#E = (143) (143)
Net book amount R FE(E 725 1,147 1,872
Year ended 31 March 2017 BE=-ZE—+tHF
=A=1+—RHLEE
Opening net book amount FREEFEE 725 1,147 1,872
Amortisation charge (Note 8) e A (M sEs) = (430) (430)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 725 717 1,442
At 31 March 2017 R-ZE—tF
=A=+-—H
Cost [P 725 1,290 2,015
Accumulated amortisation 2ty — (573) (573)
Net book amount AR HEE 725 717 1,442
For the year ended 31 March 2017, amortisation expense of BE_ZZ—+tF#=A=+—H8 1t
HK$430,000 (2016: HK$143,000) has been charged to ‘cost of FE B 8H R X 430,000 (=&
sales’ in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. — N 143,000 ) B R A FF 47
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17 Intangible assets (coniinueq)

Impairment test for goodwill

Management reviews the business performance of the Group
based on the products and services the respective business
provide. Goodwill is monitored by management at the
operating segment level. The Group’s goodwill was arisen from
the acquisition of additional 11% equity interest of e-banner
Limited on 1 April 2015 and it is allocated to the banner
printing operating segment.

Management reviews annually whether the carrying amount of
a CGU is higher than the recoverable amount which results in
impairment of goodwill. The recoverable amount of a CGU is
determined based on value-in-use calculation. The calculation
use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budget
approved by management covering a five-year period with the
first year growth rate of 13% (2016: 38%) and ranged from 5%
to 8% (2016: 5% to 10%) for the subsequent four years. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the
estimated growth rate of 2% and discount rate of 15%.

Management determined the revenue growth rate based on
past performance and expectations on market and operational
development. The discount rate applied by the Group is rate
that reflect current market assessment of the time value of
money and the risk specific to the CGU.

Impairment assessment was performed on the goodwill and
the recoverable amount of the CGU in which goodwill has been
allocated is higher than the carrying amount as at 31 March
2017. As a result, no impairment loss was charged for the year
ended 31 March 2017.

If the forecast revenue was lowered by more than 10%, with all
other variables held constant, the recoverable amount of the
CGU would be less than its carrying amount.

B GRS R MY

7 BEEE®

[k RRER

EEEENSEBREZERMNAR
BKEHNASBEKEE EBER
BEEZ McEmE AEEHER
—F A% M H — B i He-banner
Limited8 7N 11% 2 i% 10 & 15 I & 5
MEEEEENRLLEDEL -

EEESFRVNESCELEMNER
BEEEmR A Y6 € 58 meEmE
BE BEeEALABUMNAIKE S
REREENEET ZTEKA
EREEEBM AN REAFHBEH
FHREEZRE FI13% (T — /< F
38%) R EBNUEN F5%E8%(=F
— 7N 5% E10%) Ky 1 K K 1E H
HaiRernEEl - ZAFHHEZ
BHRERERAGHTIEREER2%R
AL IH RA5%HEE o

AEBERTHMESHR AT
XENHEBEERAEERE - A&
BEAZTNERREERHEE
ZEM MG ERREEL EMR

oo o
A

MEMEREAELR-_F—tF
A=+t HRBESELBUZER
FRHEZ O RAEKSEET &
R REBE_T—ttF=ZHA=1+—
BlEFEREMRREERRE -

fiei Y8R U 25 08 > 83 10% - 1 P A

MEBERFIE  AIRSELEN
A E eSS ERNEREE -
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BRI ERR M

18 REAEITHNEMTA

18 Financial instruments by category

—e

Assets at
Held-to- fair value
Loans and maturity through
receivables investments profit or loss
BEXRR DAREE
BWHE BHRIAHRE JIRZEE et
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
TAT TAT TAT R
Assets BE
As at 31 March 2017 RNZE—LF
=A=+—H
Trade and other receivables & 5 K& H b el 5k 18
(excluding prepayments) (TBEEMZE) 8,158 — — 8,158
Amounts due from related JE U B8 3 2 B 5R0R
companies 5,849 — — 5,849
Held-to-maturity investments 5 &= ZI| 8138 & = 25,000 = 25,000
Financial assets at fair value #EBERIZALEE
through profit or loss NERZERMEE = — 12,319 12,319
Cash and cash equivalents 4 KB4 ZEER 68,220 — - 68,220
82,007 25,000 12,319 119,546
As at 31 March 2016 RZE—RF
=A=+—H
Trade and other receivables & 5 & H b e Utz 1B
(excluding prepayments) (TBIEEMNRE) 7,876 — — 7,876
Amounts due from related i NGIE ]
companies 7,883 — — 7,883
Held-to-maturity investments — # Z 3| #i1& & — 40,295 — 40,295
Financial assets at fair value ~ EiBEZRIEANBE
through profit or loss Rz o mEE — — 11,950 11,950
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RESZEER 90,295 - - 90,295
106,054 40,295 11,950 158,299
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B O ERRM

18 REAEAITHNEMT A

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

Z 8 A

18 Financial instruments by category (continuea)

SRz &M E
HK$’000

Liabilities

As at 31 March 2017

&E
R-FE—tF=A=+—H

T

Amounts due to a related company JE 1< B 3 A B 5RE 9
Amounts due to directors FETE E 5B 245
Borrowings (excluding finance lease liabilities) BE(TEEREHERE) 38,343
Obligations under finance leases MEHERBBEBETINEL 14,058
Trade and other payables (excluding advanced B RAEMENFIE(TEE
receipts from customers and accrued expenses) EWERFPRERETHAT) 9,774
62,429
As at 31 March 2016 RZE—R"FE=ZA=+—H
Amounts due to a related company JE 1~ B3 A B 5K I8 15
Amounts due to directors FERTEEFIE 265
Borrowings (excluding finance lease liabilities) BE(TEEREHERRE) 17,840
Obligations under finance leases MEHEBBRBETHEME 17,865
Trade and other payables (excluding advanced B REMEBENRE(CIEE
receipts from customers and accrued expenses) FEREFHIEREFTRX) 21,975
57,960
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CXab i i
19 Inventories 19 #&
2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FA7T
Raw materials R4 ¥t 4,685 4,589
Work-in-progress E2 5 143 122
Finished goods RIAY oy 581 530
Inventories T8 5,409 5,191
The cost of materials recognised as an expense and included Hz-Z—t+tFE=A=1+—HI=F
in ‘cost of sales’ amounted to HK$53,269,000 for the year E R AR WY AT E KA |
ended 31 March 2017 (2016: HK$82,921,000). B M A 2N 553,269,000 T (= &

— /N4 : 82,921,000/ 7T ) ©

20 Trade receivables 20 ESEWRIE
2017 2016
—E—tF —TRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THT
Trade receivables H 5 e 58 4,533 3,586
Less: provision for impairment of B B S RBRIERERE
trade receivables (15) (15)
Trade receivables — net S EWRIE — F5E 4,518 3,571
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying KRR EEZREESERKIERER
amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair values. mMEEEAALBEES
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20 Trade receivables (continueq)

Payment terms granted to customers are mainly cash on
delivery and on credit. The average credit period ranges
from 30 days to 60 days. The ageing analysis of the trade
receivables based on invoice date is as follows:

B O ERRM

20 EZEWHKIE

MEFPRENNRERETEREST
NZEEEE - FHEEHN TF30AB
Z60H - EHREAHEAINESE
WHRTBRR DT :

2017 2016

—B—tF —E-RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAET

0-30 days 0&30H 2,983 2,488
31-60 days 31£260H 713 438
Over 60 days B0 H 822 645
4,518 3,571

As at 31 March 2017, trade receivables of HK$1,886,000
(2016: HK$1,250,000) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to certain customers with no recent history of default.
Based on historic low default rate, the Group believes that
no impairment provision is necessary. The past due ageing
analysis of these receivables is as follows:

R-_ZE—+tF=A=+—H &5
JE Ux 7K 78 1,886,000 T (= & — /X
& 1,250,000 JT) B i 5 (B £ R
BB EEBREENE T
EFEH - ERBERFEBREXSE
& ANEBEREEAEDRERS -
ZERWIBRBIBRESTOT

2017

—E—tF

HK$’000

THET
1-30 days 1230H 990 518
31-60 days 31260H 605 316
Over 60 days B0 H 291 417
1,886 1,250

As at 31 March 2017, no trade receivable was considered
to be impaired. As at 31 March 2016 trade receivables of
HK$34,000 were considered to be impaired and have been
fully provided for. These trade receivables were past due for
over 90 days.

The maximum exposures of the Group to credit risk are the
carrying value of trade receivables mentioned above.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables of the Group are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

R-_E—+&F=ZA=+—H &
ESRKFEBEREEESSHE B
—E—XE=ZAF=+—H 34,000
BITHE S EWRIBBHER AR EL
EENBESEE ZEEFRUK
TH i HR B @90 A o

AEBAZNRERKEERRT Lt
B RUYREMREE °

AEEEZRUFKENEREER
B TTETE °
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BRI ERR M

20 Trade receivables (continued) 20 ESEWNFRIE

The Group does not hold any collateral as security for trade
receivables.

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

AEBEYERE HEBHAFEE
CEEEELL I

85 RUGERERBENESHNT

2017
—E—tF
HK$’000
FE T
At beginning of year R E 1) 15 —
Provision for impairment of 2 5 REWHIRRERE
trade receivables (Note 8) (KF7E8) - 34
Receivables written off during the year 4 A2 #fl 5 A& T 8] Ug @]
as uncollectable SKIB 2 FE W SRIE - (19)
At end of year FR 15 15

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables
have been included in ‘administrative expenses’ in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Amounts
charged to the allowance account are generally written off,
when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The maximum exposures of the Group to credit risk are the
carrying value of trade receivables mentioned above.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables of the Group are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The Group does not hold any collateral as security for trade
receivables.
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Bt BRI
21 Deposits, prepayments and other 21 € FENRERHME
receivables WK IE
2017 2016
—E—tF =N
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
Deposits and prepayments & RIENRIE 16,801 7,591
Other receivables H b fE W SR I8 1,317 2,356
Deferred expenses IEER 2 1,102 294
Interest receivables from held-to- BZEIHEERKA S
maturity investments 1,220 1,949
20,440 12,190
Less: non-current portion B FERE S
Deposits and prepayments B A RIE (4,940) (4,732)
Deposits, prepayments and e  ENREREMW
other receivables — current portion JEUGRIE — R H 15,500 7,458
Amount mainly represents rental deposits, and prepayments ZEMIEREBEERS ARARS
for utility, insurance expenses and sub-contracting fee. EMZE  ReRAXEIBER -
Deferred expenses represent capitalised expenses to be EEEBIEREHEERERNBEATE
recognised in cost of sales upon the revenue recognition from B ARZBNRIEEK AERD
the provision of app solutions. BEAR{ER -
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying RNARESRE  HMEWHIEKR
amounts of other receivable sand prepayments approximate BENRENEREESEAE QA AEEH
their fair values. H e
The carrying amounts of the Group’s deposits, prepayments REBWILZS - FENZIEREME
and other receivables are mainly denominated in Hong Kong WA EmE T EUE TEE
dollars.
22 Held-to-maturity investments 22 FZFHKRE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—ARF

HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx TET

Unlisted bond securities at amortised 3E LT EHE S
costs (B S P ASET) 25,000 40,295
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B ORISR R
22 Held-to-maturity investments (coniinueq) 22 HFEIHEE»
The movement in held-to-maturity investments is summarised HEREE ANt T
as follows:
2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
At beginning of the year R E 1) 40,295 —
Additions NE 15,000 39,951
Disposal and redemption & KB (30,584) —
Unwinding of discount on held-to- RED IR ERARE
maturity investments (Note 10) (F$3E10) 282 336
Currency translation differences E H =R 7 8
At end of the year RER 25,000 40,295
There were no provision of impairment of held-to-maturity RZEBE—RNFR_FTE—+ttF=A
investment as at 31 March 2016 and 2017. =+—HB UYAREHBEINHREE
HORE R -
The fair values of unlisted securities are based on cash flows HEr—_ZE—+tE="HA=+—HItF
discounted using a rate based on the market interest rate and B IELTMEBEASENAALBEIIIERE
the risk premium specific to the unlisted securities at 9% (2016: A E )3'/\ mEANEEIEFH g/}f E=3 E!’J
11.9%) for the year ended 31 March 2017. BETREBHEEBHOHE ZEI%(ZE— KX
F 11.9%)E££ﬁﬂl‘jfﬁ 372 /}ILEE-I—E °
Held-to-maturity investments are denominated in the following SRR H B IR A TN E S {E
currencies:
2017
—Z2—+tF
HK$’000
TERT
HK dollar BT 25,000 30,000
US dollar eV - 10,295
25,000 40,295
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date RIEBHZAEERE AEDIEA
is the carrying value of the debt securities classified as BEDHIEENERB5ERE -

held-to-maturity investments.

— 186 eprint Group Limited Annual Report 2016/17



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O ERRM

23 Financial asset at fair value through profit 23 FERBIEFRIE A A EBEIIEE

24

or loss

RERENANEER

i

Fair value of insurance policy
investment

CEMEE

2017
—E—+tF
HK$°000
FTERT

2016

HK$’000
TET

12,319 11,950

The insurance policy investment is an insurance contract provided
to a director with underlying investment on a capital fund.

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss is presented
within investing activities in the consolidated statement of cash
flows.

Changes in fair value of financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in ‘other losses — net’ in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income (Note 7).

The fair value of the insurance policy investment is based on

the unobservable inputs and classified within level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy (Note 3.3).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represents cash and short-term
bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

24

RERESMEFREZRREH -
BEXRNESHNHEBARE -

BREBERANBEIEZERE
ER2IRAaHRERERZIKER
$A -

BRBERAABEIKZERE
ENARBEESHHNAHEE W
@R[ EMEE — FEIRN(MHE?) -

RERENRREEBTIRED AR

R ARBAEARERN A REE
& R r) = A (FIEE3.3) °

BekBEEEEEE

HelkfieFEREB=AXN
TREF MR REHRITER

2017
—E—tF

HK$°000
TR

RITBERFRAS
8 HRIR 1T 77 3K

Cash at banks and on hand
Short-term bank deposits

45,670
44,625

36,161
32,059

RekReFERHA

Cash and cash equivalents

68,220 90,295

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposits rate.

The conversion of Renminbi denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies
denominated bank balances and cash out of PRC are subject
to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

RITREVRBEE B RITHERF RIZ
T R GREA B

R AR ETE & & 3 AN
Kz EN B ENRTESR LB
SELPE - HAETHEBTR
B 1R A N EE & AR BRI BOR AR e
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BRI ERR M

25 Share capital and share premium 25 BARBHBEE

Nominal value
Number of of ordinary Share
shares shares premium Total

RH#E EEREE RO &E At
(thousands) HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(TH) TET TET THT

Authorised capital — ordinary EERA —

shares of HK$0.01 each R-ZZE—REF
At 31 March 2015, 1 April 2016 =A=+—H -
and 31 March 2017 —E-X"EmMA—H
E_T—+F
ZA=t+-H
SREE0.01E T
LR 10,000,000 100,000 — 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRER
As 1 April 2015 RZE—RF
mA—A 500,000 5,000 80,357 85,357
Issue of ordinary shares (Note) BT (Fiish) 50,000 500 52,564 53,064

As 31 March 2016, 1 April 2016  R=ZT—7F

and 31 March 2017 =A=+—8"
—T-RFEA-H
)i S o3
—A=+—H 550,000 5,500 132,921 138,421
Note: B3
On 10 August 2015, an aggregate of 50,000,000 placing shares were issued at R-_Z—AFN\A+H 4 50,000,000k i
HK$1.122 each. Net proceeds amounted to HK$53,064,000. ERNDIAGAR1.1228 T IT - TS RIEE 5

7253,064,0005 7T °
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B O ERRM

26 Other reserves 26 HfzE

Capital Other Exchange Retained
reserve Reserve reserve earnings

EXfR HtEE HERE RKREBRA

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000

FAT FAT FHET FHAT
At 1 April 2015 RZT—AF
mA—A 6,593 (21) (741) 69,817 75,648

Profit for the year E N g Al = = = 26,053 26,053
Currency translation 5 EE

differences

— Group — A& H — - (199) — (199)

— Joint venture — BERA = = (280) (280)

Dividends (Note 31) (32,615)  (32,615)

55
c
—
=
p=111E
'_H
w
e
-

|

|

|

At 31 March 2016 RZT—RF
=A=+—H 6,593 (21) (1,220) 63,255 68,607
At 1 April 2016 RZE—RF
MA—H 6,593 (21) (1,220) 63,255 68,607
Profit for the year F R — - - 17,321 17,321
Currency translation b ERE
differences
— Group — KREE — — (519) — (519)
— Joint venture SN WNE] = — (945) (945)

(12,650  (12,650)

X2
tII[}|
—
=
m
wW
=
N2

|

|

|

Dividends (Note 31)

At 31 March 2017 RZT—+F
=A=+—8H 6,593 (21) (2,684) 67,926 71,814
27 Trade payables, accruals and other 27 ESEMANRE - BFFRIE
payables & H fth P& {3 FK B
2017
—E—+F
HK$’000
FHER
Trade payables 2 SR HRIE 7,948 15,274
Accruals and other payables JE 5T 3R I8 K E 4th & 5 BB
Accrued expenses JEETRX 15,879 13,496
Advanced receipts from customers TEE P I8 10,593 6,578
Other payables H b fE A RIE 1,826 6,701
28,298 26,775
Trade payables, accruals and other Z S EMNRIE - BRI RIER
payables E b FE AT 5RIE 36,246 42,049
Payment terms granted by suppliers are mainly on credit. The HERREENONRIERTEEEZE -
credit period ranges from 30 to 90 days. =E N F30HE0H -
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27 Trade payables, accruals and other 27 ESE(INIE BT RIE
payables (continueq) kHE f& JE‘ 1=_|- FRIE ()
The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice REZEHEZIYNE 5 ENNIEEE
date was as follows: BotfmT
2017 2016
—E—tF T
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
0-30 days 0%30H 5,476 5,856
31-60 days 31260H 2,175 2,972
61-90 days 61290H 277 3,726
Over 90 days i O =! 20 2,720
7,948 15,274
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables, accruals NEBWE SENRIE - Est A
and other payables are mainly denominated in Hong Kong FEMENREBENEREEZ NS
dollars. JLEHE °
28 Borrowings 28 £ &
2017 2016
—E2—+tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Current B #A
Trust receipt loans S WIEE R 1,058 6,655
Bank overdrafts RITEX 8,882 5,735
Bank loans RITE X 5,588 5,450
Mortgage loans ERE R 22,815 —

38,343 17,840
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28 Borrowi NJS (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s borrowings into relevant
maturity groups based on the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect of any
repayment on demand clause:

B O ERRM

28 EE =)

TEROMAKENEER  DREER
rATﬁz’;mFﬁ%ﬁEE}%ka HatE - I
B AMEMZEREERRINTE
DERBEBEIEER

2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Within 1 year —F R 13,904 14,335
Between 1 and 2 years —EMF 3,437 2,027
Between 2 and 5 years N F =R F 3,094 1,478
Over 5 years EFMNE 17,908 —
38,343 17,840
The carrying amounts of borrowings are secured and R—E—RER_E—+HF=AH
denominated in Hong Kong dollars as at 31 March 2016 and =+—H EEH EEE{E 2 {EH #H

2017.

The weighted average effective interest rates per annum were
as follows:

Trust receipt loans SRR E X
Bank overdrafts |ITEX
Bank loans RITER
Mortgage loans EHRER

j]:J//\/%TEu-I'TE °
MEFHERFENRNT -

2017
—E—tF

HK$’000
FTERT

The fair values of the borrowings approximate to their carrying
amounts as at 31 March 2016 and 2017 as all the borrowings
carry interests which are benchmarked against Hong Kong
Dollar prime rate and Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”), where relevant.

%R B E([EBRITAEREE])
(mEBEREE -
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BRI ERR M

28 Borrowi NJS (Continued)

29

192

The borrowings of the Group are subject to financial covenants
and the Group is in compliance with the financial covenants as
at 31 March 2016 and 2017.

As at 31 March 2017, the borrowings of the Group were
secured by personal guarantees provided by a related party
of the Group. Mortgage loans are secured by properties of the
Group of HK$66,928,000 (2016: Nil).

Obligations under finance leases

Certain plant and machinery of the Group were held under
finance leases. No arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental payments. The Group’s obligations under
finance leases were repayable as follows:

Minimum lease payments

28 EE =)

29

R-B-—R"EFER-_F—tF=A
=t+t—B AKENEEAXSR
ZHONRFAAEE-—EETER

24 -

RZTE—tF=A=+—H &&
EMEETBAASEENBAEF IR
HOBEAAERERKR - HEBEXR
EASEEHEER BEBEAR
66,928,000/ TL(ZZE—NF : &F) o

MEMEBRNSM®E

AEEETHEREEUARERE
BB ASEMEFZERMKAE
ENRBZE - ASERERERT
MEEAR THIHREERE

Present value of minimum
lease payments

REAESFR REHSATREE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—+iF T—NF —E—+tfF T—NF
HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET F&TT FET FETT
Amounts payable under MEMEBETH
finance leases: e FROE ¢
Within one year —E R 7,384 9,803 7,013 9,359
Later than one year but not ~ —F& BT BBERLE
more than five years 7,241 8,777 7,045 8,506
14,625 18,580 14,058 17,865
Less: Future finance charges & : KK FLE & F (567) (715) - —
Present value of lease HEEIHNRE
obligations 14,058 17,865 14,058 17,865
Less: Amount due within B mBE BT
twelve months shown R+=—@AR
under current liabilities B8 2 KA (7,013) (9,448)
Amount due after R+ =@ A%E 5
twelve months Z IR 7,045 8,417
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29 Obligations under finance leases (continueq) 29

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by
the lessor’s charge over the leased assets with net carrying
amount of HK$23,782,000 (2016: HK$50,920,000).

The weighted average effective interest rates per annum were
as follows:

Obligations under finance leases BMEHEETHNER

B O ERRM

MEMAEENET e

AEECHERAEBETETHERA
AHHEEE WL ERE - HIER
T % B 423,782,000/8 7T (— T — /X
£ : 50,920,000 7T) °

MEFAERFENEMT -

2017
—E—tF

2016
—E—RF
HK$’000
FAT

HK$’000
TR

3.55% 3.52%

As at 31 March 2017, the obligations under finance leases of
the Group were secured by personal guarantee provided by a
related party of the Group (Note 36(c)).

30 Deferred income tax 30

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is

RZE—+tF=A=+—HB &K
ERRmEEAEETHNEE IAALE
) B8 52 07 B2 4 A0 (8 A BB AR (BT AE
36(c)) fE R 3 o

I E P15 %0

BETEMEREEMBEECRBAERED

as follows: T
2017
—E—tF
HK$’000
THET
Deferred tax assets FEFRTEE E
— Deferred tax assets to be — BE+-_@EABKER
recovered after more than EEFTBHEE
12 months 3,259 2,311
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIAEEFE
— Deferred tax liabilities to be — BB+ —@EABKEAR
recovered after more than RS A s
12 months (9,477) (11,754)
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 9477)  (11,754)
Deferred tax liabilities — net BERBE — 558 (6,218) (9,443)
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B OF R M
30 Deferred income tax (continueq) 30 IBIEFFEH o
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as RIEFTETHRE MARZEHMT
follows:
2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET
At beginning of year RE] (9,443) (12,172)
Credited to the consolidated statement A& #f & W &5 & F 5t A
of comprehensive income (Note 14) (M 5E14) 3,225 2,729
At end of year RE (6,218) (9,443)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities B EHREENBBERERN(CKRE
for the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of BER— RN &) /&
balances with the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: mR

Accelerated tax depreciation

INEBIFTE
2017 2016
—EB—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHEEE
At beginning of year REFE ) (13,392) (12,627)
Credited/(charged) to the consolidated A& GH4R4 W aE &k &
statement of comprehensive income 5t A (F1B&) 2,039 (765)
At end of year NGRS (11,353) (13,392)
Tax losses
BIEE B
2017
—E—+tF
HK$’000
FHET
Deferred tax assets EEBEEE
At beginning of year REA) 3,949 455
Credited to the consolidated statement R& #H4E & Wz RF T A
of comprehensive income 1,186 3,494
At end of year R 5,135 3,949
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30 Deferred income tax (continued) 30

31

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry-
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The Group
did not recognise deferred income tax assets of HK$3,155,000
(2016: HK$724,000) in respect of tax losses amounting to
HK$14,236,000 (2016: HK$4,556,000). Tax losses amounting
to HK$1,516,000 (2016: Nil) will expire within 1-5 years and
the remaining the tax losses have no expiry date.

Dividends 31

The dividends paid in 2016 was HK$32,615,000. A dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2017 of HK1.60 cents
per share, amounting to a total dividend of HK$8,800,000, was
proposed by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2017 and to be
recommended to the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. These financial statements do not reflect this
dividend payable.

Interim dividend paid of HK cents: nil 2 % B &%

B O RS R R M
ELEFRESH e

BEMSHREENRABEBEHRIEEIE
ERESBERBRRERM S EEM
RAAEE B EEBELER - A
& B 37 4% 1 SR B 7% 18 /B $814,236,000
BIL(ZZ —/NF 4,556,000 7T)
B B8 B IR & BT 15 B & £ 3,155,000%
TT(ZF — /N F 724,000 % JT) °
1,516,000 T (Z T —/NF : T)H
BEEEN-—ZRFERNIBHEAET
HEEBEBYEIHZA -

@S

RZE—XNERNFZBRED A
326150008 - EEERN T —t
FRNA-_T=ZHEZRNHEZE_Z=
—+tE=ZA=+—HBItFEFK1.60
Bl 2z B B 0 25T % 88,800,000
T WHRBIERTZBREAFRE
FRREEZ ZEWEHRRLE
RBRZEM RS ©

2017 2016
—B—+F —EREF

HK$’000 HK$’000
FER TET

(2016: HK2.40 cents) TBABAL - T
per ordinary share ZE—NF 0 2.40%1l) - 13,200

Proposed final dividend of HK1.60 ERAEREER

cents (2016: HK2.30 cents) A1 .6078 11
per ordinary share ZE— N4 1 2.30/1) 8,800 12,650
8,800 25,850
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BRI
32 Cash generated from operations 2 REMBAESE
2017
—E—tF
HK$’000
FET
Profit before income tax B FT 45 B A1 s ) 12,744 24,622
Adjustments for: BATSHETHFE
Depreciation of property, plant and 4% - = NHEZITE
equipment 16 18,350 15,991
Amortisation of intangible assets L ER 17 430 143
Loss on disposals of property, LEME  BERRE
plant and equipment m &5 18 7 6,397 3,751
Loss on disposal of financial assets H &4 gl & &E /) &2 7 1,803 —
Provision for impairment of property, #1% - &= &R 2/ E
plant and equipment B 15 699 —
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial FREBEREAAEE
assets §|JEEZ@|¢E,§?E’J
at fair value through profit or loss AR EBE (M=) /EE 7 (369) 50
Write off of inventory WETE 5 -
Provision for impairment of 2 5 REWHIBERERE
trade receivables 8 - 34
Provision for impairment of H b fE W SR IE R B
other receivables 240 =
Recovery of trade receivables WEIERIMIENE S
previously written off J& WK I8 8 (24) (24)
Trade receivables written off 85 3 AT Bl FRIE 2
as uncollectable 2 5 WA 23 —
Interest income from HiiJHﬂTxéfE’ﬁlJ%%U\
held-to-maturity investments 6 (3,226) (3,209
Finance income BhE WA 10 (466) (2,186)
Finance costs A& A AR 10 1,579 1,186
Share of losses of associates X e RN B = 12 1,746 321
Share of profits of joint ventures fEihA & QT Z5m 13 (1,257) (851)
Changes in working capital: BEECEE
— Inventories —KFE (223) (933)
— Trade receivables — 8 5 EWIE (946) (110)
— Other receivables and * E’rﬁlﬁﬂﬂlmﬁ&
prepayments SRR /T>)\ (8,489) (1,811)
— Amounts due from related — FEY = I8
companies 4,277 (4,771)
— Trade payables — B SR RIE (7,326) (11,451)
— Accruals and other payables — [E:t 3 Iﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂ
FER 7R 1,523 3,829
— Amount due to related — EfTEEE IE
companies 11 15
— Amounts due to directors — ENESHRE (20) (85)
Cash generated from operations KESIRE 27,481 24,515
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33

34

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Cash generated from operations (continueq)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise:

B O ERRM

32 REFMBEEw

REHBESRERT  LEWE
s KR BHSHRARLRE

2017 2016

—B—tF —E-RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FAT

Net book amount (Note 16) BREFE (Mi5E16) 13,303 7,120

Loss on disposal of property, plant and HE¥ % - HE L& EEIE

equipment (Note 7) (B 5E7) (6,397) (3,751)

Currency translation differences E H =5 5 =

Proceeds from disposal B E TS RIE 6,911 3,369
Contingencies 33 IASEH

Other than those financial guarantee contracts as disclosed
in Note 36(c), the Group and the Company did not have any
material significant contingent liabilities.

Commitments

Capital commitment

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the year but
not yet incurred is as follows:

Bk B 5 36(c)FT % 58 19 % & Bt IS & AR
BRI NEE KA R B I EAIA
ERSARRE-

34 EiE

(a) BAREE

ERDINENREENEARY
mF -

2017 2016
—E—tF TR
HK$’°000 HK$’000
THET AT
Property, plant and equipment ME  BENEKE 224 2,650
Investments in an associate R NEE] B =y 4,228 4,508
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34 Commitments (continved)

(b) Operating lease commitments — Group as
lessee

The Group leases various stores and premises under
non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease terms
are between 1 and 5 years. The future aggregate minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as

34 EE )

(b) ELHERE —FREERE
HA

AEBEREBETAIMESERE HZ
HMREHEEMRENR - HEHRRMA
—ERAFEAF  RRKEHEEREA
BEWMT

follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FATT
Not later than 1 year —F AN 17,752 23,768

Later than 1 year and not later —FPAE - BAFUT
than 5 years 18,997 42,385
Later than 5 years BEEE - 187
36,749 66,340

The Group leases machinery, office equipment and billboard
under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease
terms are between 1 to 5 years. The future aggregate minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as

AEERBEIAIBMECEHE =
A BLRERBRESE -
HENF—ZEZ0F  REBETAEH
LEMRE RERENZEHSER

follows: (TN
2017 2016
—E2—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT AT
Not later than 1 year —F AR 268 374

Later than 1 year and not later —FU - BEFENT

than 5 years 75 174
343 548
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34 Commitments (continvea)

(c) Operating lease rental receivables — Group as
lessor

The Group leases out machinery and a property under non-
cancellable operating lease. The lease terms are between 1 to
2 years. The future minimum lease payments receivable is as

B O ERRM

34 A

(c) KEHERREHE —FKEA
HAE A

AEBRBEIAABELERELA
e - HEA—ZEZWMF - REEHK
ZEREHEENFTELT

follows:
2017
—E2—+tF
HK$’000
THET
Not later than 1 year —FE R 108 892
Later than 1 year and not later —FAE - BAFUT
than 5 years 108 —
216 892
35 Business combination 35 XK S 0F

As at 31 March 2015, e-banner Limited was a joint venture of
the Group, in which the Group and the other shareholder, TBC
Group Limited, held 40% and 60% equity interest respectively.
e-banner Limited is engaged in developing, producing,
marketing and sale of banners, display stands, posters and
display partitions and other related products in Hong Kong.

On 30 March 2015, eprint Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an Equity Transfer
Agreement with TBC Group Limited (the “Seller”), under which
eprint Holdings Limited agreed to purchase additional 11%
equity interest in e-banner Limited from the Seller for a cash
consideration of HK$1,100,000.

W-—F—H£=A=+—-8"
e-banner Limiteds &~ £ B & & A
| - A& B & E A AR RTBC Group
Limited?> 5l # B H 40% & 60%#) AR
¥ ° e-banner Limited?E & 6 #t F£
BoBE - HMERMBEFRIIES -
BAE REZEKGHREEMIERH

Em

RZE—RAF=A=+H ' ARQH
% & W B A Fleprint Holdings Limited
HATBC Group Limited ([ & 77 1) ] 2
f% % &8 3 17 5% - 4% ibeprint Holdings
Limited& & M & 77 B Ze-banner
Limited®) 88 SM 1%k - RE KB AR
1,100,000/ 7T °
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BRI ERR M

35 ¥¥&6tw

35 Business combination continueq)

—e

Upon the completion of the acquisition on 1 April 2015, the
equity interest in e-banner Limited held by eprint Holdings
Limited was 51% and the Group exercises control by
appointment of majority of directors to the board of e-banner
Limited. As a result, e-banner Limited became a subsidiary
of the Group. The acquisition is expected to create synergy
effect with the Group in terms of customers and technologies,
and represent an opportunity for the Group to further widen
its earning base and enhance its capital utilisation efficiency.
At the date acquisition, goodwill of HK$725,000 has been
determined based on the net identifiable assets of e-banner
Limited.

The goodwill of HK$725,000 arises from a number of factors
including expected synergies through combining a highly
skilled workforce and obtaining greater production efficiencies
through knowledge transfer; obtaining economies of scale by
cost reductions from sharing resources; and unrecognised
assets such as customer relationship and the workforce. None
of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.

The following table summarises the purchase price allocation
at the acquisition date.

R—ZZFE—AFMNA—HZEKKE
1% - eprint Holdings Limited#Ee-banner
Limited#s B 51%H) IR # - T A & F
% i % {fe-banner LimitedE F£ € 1)
BFEBEEETHEEHE B
e-banner Limitedi & 7~ & B i B &
Al e ZWEBEHRBERR, REMA
HEAEEELEHRBE REE
AEEE—TREARBFER KIER
BEAFABENKE - RIEE B 5
2 1B #e-banner Limited#y 7] 2 & /%
BEBET7250008 THEE o

72550008 T EERZEREE
£ BIEBHAUERES B RIS
BORERANSEREENERE
EMEMERNBRKE : BB
Z &R H R B A K R AR R AR
RABRNEE(WMEFBAERERSY
7)) - BMEE R BE A ENR
FRiSfi A% -

TREPANUEE B BB E SR -

As at 1 April
2015
R=ZFT—RF
mH—H
HK$’000
FHET
Purchase consideration WHERE

Cash paid ENRE 1,100

Equity interest held as a joint venture of the Group ~ R Utk H i B EAEE
at acquisition date (Note 13) A& AR R RE (T FE13) 1,362
Total purchase consideration WERERSE 2,462
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Recognised amounts of identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O ERRM

35 ¥ E6w

BANTHBEENAENE
BENERREHE

As at 1 April
2015
R-ZZE—RF
mH—H
HK$’000
FET
Machinery and equipment N 16,198
Other non-current assets HMIEREEE 2,607
Inventories T8 1,029
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEMEEE 3,174
Other current assets HimeE&E 1,621
Other non-current liabilities HM3EREBAEE (8,867)
Other current liabilities Hin#BaE&E (5,661)
Trade and other payables and accruals B 5 & H b JE A~ 5RIB M E 5T IR (6,694)
Total identifiable net assets AREFEERTE 3,407
Non-controlling interest FE 1 AR A 2 (1,670)
Goodwill GEES 725
2,462
Acquisition-related costs (included in administrative ~ WEEHRBK AR GFASHE2E
expenses in the consolidated statement of W R ITHRAX)
comprehensive income statement) 67
Outflow of cash to acquire business, net of cash WEE # IR &R
acquired (R FT UK EEIR £)
Cash consideration ReNRE (1,100)
Cash and banks in subsidiary acquired Fir s BE Bt /B A B B9 3R & R AT 3R 3,174
Cash inflow on acquisition Wi 2 /e m 2,074

The Group has chosen to recognise e-banner Limited’s
non-controlling interest at their proportional share of e-banner

Limited’s fair value of total identifiable net assets.

K& E B # B & T {he-banner
Limited®) A] i F EEBR BN AR
{8 B 19 58 # Re-banner Limited#y 3F
TR AR o

The acquired business contributed revenue of HK$51,232,000 HE_—_ZE—RNE="A=+—HIt=®

and net loss of HK$5,298,000 to the equity holder and
non-controlling interest of the Company for the year ended 31

March 2016.

B B ESAARAERZES
A K JE 4 BS #E 25 B BA51,232,000% 7T
W 25 55,298,000 7T ;% B 18 o
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BT BERRME

36 Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the party
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to exercise control or
significant influence over the Group in making financial and
operating decisions, or vice versa. Related parties may be
individuals (being members of key management personnel,
significant shareholders and/or their close family members)
or other entities and include entities which are under the
significant influence of related parties of the Group where
those parties are individuals. Parties are also considered to be
related if they are subject to common control.

The directors of the Company are of the view that the following
individuals and companies were related parties that had
transactions or balances with the Group:

Name of related party

EAKEER

BT A8

Relationship with the Group

36 BEAIRXS

fidl 25 — 77 B B #% 2K A 3% 7 1F I BE %
REERARBRPEANEEITRIE
BEXBAFESD  ARZTEAN
SEEWE R2MA-BEHA
REANIETEEREAE FTER
R/ HMENERRERE ) HE
it & 58 - a%i%%ﬂkm$$@
BETERY ‘E’%@°x/\ﬂi1
ﬂmxﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ@

AANBEERAS  THEAKRARF]
AUHEARNEFETR S HIFELS S
BRER -

Ms. Cheng Kin Mei
B+

Mr. Chan Kong Hung Chris
PSR Rl 7 5 A=

Mr. Foo Pei Pan

Spouse of non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of the Group (Note i)

7N SR [ B B8 A A SRR A e 2 o 4B (BT RED)

Non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of the Group (Note i)

AREEM B AR R ER T A A (B &)

{55 R 0. 55 £

Mr. Wong Tsz Hin
BETHELE

Mr. Yau Kin Hung
R {1 52 4

Mr. Cheng Sze Tok
HRELRE

Ms. Wong Man Yee
ITHELLE
AppOne Mobile Solution

BSSF Group Limited

CTP Limited

Non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of the Group

AEEMBARMNIFEBRESTAA

Former non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of the Group (Note ii)

RS E KB A R A AT IR IR A s 5 A A (BT i)

Non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of the Group

AEEMBARMNIFEBEESTAA

Non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of the Group

AEEMBARMNIFEBEESTAA

Non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of the Group

AEEMBARMNIFEBRESTAA

Controlled by non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of the Group

P N % 5 PR 8 2 ) A S 4 A R e 4

Controlled by non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of the Group

P N 5% 5 PR B 7 ) A S 4 A R e 4

Controlled by the directors of the Company
HARAEFES
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36 Related party transactions (coninueq) 36 BEIFRXZ

Name of related party

)=y

e-print Solutions Sdn. Bhd.
eprint Limited
Giant State Limited

ERBRQE

King Profit International Limited

ENERERAT]

Profit More Rich Limited
REZHR A

Promise Properties Limited

RBEFMEBR AT

Shenzhen Yi Yun Hu
Wang Tong Technology
Company Limited

RINEEEPEBEREBERA

TBC Group Limited

The Avengers Limited

VVV Limited

Wab2 Group (HK) Limited

Fitness World (Group) Limited
fEEXRM (EE) BR QA

FW (HK) In Lo Wu
Development Center Limited

BEARERMBENERIE
BRAA

Fitness World (Shenzhen)
Limited
SR ORI BR D

Relationship with the Group
HEASEEBAR

Joint venture of the Company

Z'K TE"‘]/\M/‘\

Ultimate holding company (Note iii)
B AR AR A &) (Bt &iii)

Associate of the Company

/NI o) RN

Controlled by the directors of the Company
AR A& =7

Controlled by the directors of the Company
B D B E =T

Controlled by the directors of the Company
AR A E S

Associate of the Company

VNN RN

Non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of the Group

RER B A AR FR IR A A

Former non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of the Group (Note ii)

7N 55 [ 4 B8 2 R RO BT SRR A 2k (B Rl

Controlled by the directors of the Company
2NN o= =By vl

Controlled by non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of the Group

F AN S5 (B B8 2 A O SRR AR A 12

Controlled by an associate of the Company

2 NYNSID: X BN R ek
Controlled by an associate of the Company

AN BB R R4

Controlled by an associate of the Company

ZRANYNGIE e N
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36 Related party transactions (continuea)

(a)

Notes:

Ms. Cheng Kin Mei resigned as a director of e-banner Limited on 11
December 2015 and disposed of 100% interest in TBC Group Limited on
1 January 2016. Mr. Chan Kong Hung Chris is the spouse of Ms. Cheng
Kin Mei. Mr. Chan Kong Hung Chris acquired 30% interest in TBC Group
Limited, which is non-controlling interest of a subsidiary of the Group
since May 2016.

The Avengers Limited transferred 49% of interest in Digital Printing
Centre Limited to e-banner Limited on 18 December 2015. Mr. Wong
Tsz Hin is the director and shareholder of The Avengers Limited. Since
then, he is no longer the non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of the
Group.

The Company is controlled by eprint Limited, which owns 56.9% of the
Company’s shares as at 31 March 2017 and 2016, and is beneficially
owned by Mr. She Siu Kee William, Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki, Mr. Lam
Shing Kai, Mr. Leung Wai Ming, and Mr. Leung Yat Pang. The directors
consider eprint Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI, being the
immediate and the ultimate holding company.

Transactions with related parties

The following transactions were undertaken by the Group with
related parties. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the related party transactions were carried out in the normal
course of business and at terms negotiated between the
Group and the respective related parties.

204 eprint Group Limited Annual Report 2016/17

36 BEBEAIRS

(a)

/Zm‘

B &E

RZZE—RE+ZA+—B ®REEX
=+ B {fe-banner Limited£ %= * ¥R - &

— 7% — B — A { £TBC Group Limited
MEEEDS - REELE RS EELL
B B 48 o BRI 4 5% & B W BETBC Group
Limited®)30%# = * Z A Al B ZZF —~
FRABRAAEE —MHNBRARME
ERERITAA

i. RZZE-—FEF+ZHA+/\B  The
Avengers Limitedi; BEABERIH LB R
A 8] K) 49%7E 7= Te-banner Limited ° &
F & 5 4 AThe Avengers LimitedZ & %
HRRE B BTIERAAEENRBER
A2 FERERFEEA ©

ii. 7K X &) Heprint LimitedZ & - B — &
—+tFR=ZFE-—R"F=A=+—8"
eprint Limited# 5 2 A 7] 2 56.9% & 5
WHABELE  HRHIE - HEE
S RERATERRBLEESE
B o EE R Aeprint Limited (A 3 B & &
HEFMRYZzAR) AEEZERERE

RAT °
HEBEETNRS
ARBERBESBETUATRS -

ARBEERE BEARSRIE
BEXBRETEAEEESHEES
P& TE B IR R HEAT ©
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36 BEFRF @

36 Related party transactions (continueq)

(a) Transactions with related parties (continued) (@) HBAEFNRS @)
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
Rental expense of plants and EASENREERN
machinery, premises, stores and B Kies ~ EHT -
carparks in Hong Kong payable or BEEREESHAERX
paid
— CTP Limited — CTP Limited 6,160 4,590
— Profit More Rich Limited — BEZERAT 600 544
— Promise Properties Limited — RERMERR QA 1,654 1,502
— VVV Limited — VVV Limited 2,401 2,288
— King Profit International Limited — ZFEBRBR QA 396 358
— Wab2 Group (HK) Limited — Wab2 Group (HK)
Limited 822 208
— e-print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. — e-print Solutions
Sdn. Bhd. 83 29
12,116 9,519
Emolument payable or paid JE - 3% B A5F 357 B
— Ms. Cheng Kin Mei — HfEEL L - 1,147
— Mr. Chan Kong Hung Chris — PR % & 701 397
— Mr. Foo Pei Pan — BEREE 738 185
— Mr. Wong Tsz Hin — EBTHEE - 170
— Mr. Yau Kin Hung — BRI A 498 165
— Ms. Wong Man Yee — FHEL L 266 —
— Mr. Cheng Sze Tok — BBELEAE 646 —
2,849 2,064
Consideration paid for the acquisition 2 U FE1= IR 425 2 KB
of non-controlling interests
— TBC Group Limited — TBC Group Limited - 1,100
— The Avengers Limited — The Avengers Limited - 3
- 1,105
Outsourced retail store services ERsE R INHZEIE
expense payable or paid AR X
— e-print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. — e-print Solutions
Sdn. Bhd. 1,468 885
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36 Related party transactions (coninueq) 36 BEAFRZ =
(@) Transactions with related parties (continued) (a) EHEAEFNR S &)
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx FHET
Subcontracting fee expense s E AN B A
payable or paid
— AppOne Mobile Solution — AppOne Mobile
Solution - 14

Consultancy fee expense payable or  Effsl 2 AR &
paid
— BSSF Group Limited — BSSF Group Limited 120 71

Expenses paid for purchase of goods EffHEESREX
— e-print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. — e-print Solutions
Sdn. Bhd. 32 31

|.T. license fee income receivable or FE W sk B W B R L

received SRR E WA
— Shenzhen Yi Yun Hu Wang Tong — FYIllEE 5 @@
Technology Company Limited B ABR A A - 4,594
— e-print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. — e-print Solutions
Sdn. Bhd. 228 205
228 4,799
Revenue from sales of goods and RSB WEEE MK
services receivable or received AR 7% W 2=
— AppOne Mobile Solution — AppOne Mobile
Solution 52 87
— e-print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. — e-print Solutions
Sdn. Bhd. - 9
52 96
Purchase of properties BB
— CTP Limited — CTP Limited 62,000 —
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36 Related party transactions (continueq)

(b) Key management compensation

(c)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36

(b)

Details of the key management compensation are disclosed in
Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

Guarantees and securities provided by a related

party

(c)

Guarantees and securities provided by related parties for
borrowings (Note 28) and obligations under finance leases

(Note 29) were as follows:

Guarantees provided by a director of

BMAEE—FHNBEARZ

B O ERRM

BEIRXI =
TEEBAESHM

TEEBABTFMZEBHEERA
GHEF S SR R BT RE38 ©

BAE T PR R B R MK 17

MESREE(HFE2)MBERE
/T & 1E (K 5£29) P 52 1 42 4R A0 K
T

2017
—E—+tF

2016
—E—REF
HK$’000
FHE T

HK$’000
FTERT

a subsidiary of the Group EERHEER 47,460 35,500
Guarantee provided by a director of BHAEER 7 EFREEER
the Group 354 737
Guarantee provided by a spouse of 7N 55 B B B A B FE 5 AR i
non-controlling interests of a mZ BB HER
subsidiary of the Group 19,025 —
66,839 36,237
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36 Related party transactions (continueq) 36 BEIRZ
(d) Balances with related parties (d) EHEAE R &R

2017
—E—tF

HK$’000
FER

Amounts due from related companies F& Ui B8 E 2 T 5K E

Amount due from associates JE Wt B8 & A R SRR
Shenzhen Yi Yun Hu Wang Tong FIEEE R BRI

Technology Company Limited BRARA - 4,508
Giant State Limited EHER QA 4,997 2,496
Amount due from a joint venture B & & AR FRIB
e-print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. e-print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. 829 843
Amount due from a related party /& Wk B B 5 R OR
AppOne Mobile Solution AppOne Mobile Solution 23 36

5,849 7,883

Certain directors of the Group and the following related AEEETEETRATHAELRF
companies are in common. Pursuant to the Hong Kong ZEE - IREBEEBQAEHFE383(1)
Companies Ordinance Section 383(1)(d), the maximum amount O ZAREERELT :

outstanding are as follows:

2017 2016

—E—+tF —TE—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET THTT

Giant State Limited ERER AT 4,997 2,496
Shenzhen Yi Yun Hu Wang Tong FHIEETER BRI

Technology Company Limited BRA A 4,508 4,508
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36 Related party transactions (continueq) 36 BBEARXZ »
(d) Balances with related parties (continued) (d) EEEERE&R2)
The amounts due from related parties are unsecured, EWRBEEARRBEREERR 2B
interest-free and are repayable on demand. The fair values of RIRBERKEE ZEHEBHNAAE
these balances approximate their carrying values. BEHEEKREMERS °

2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF

HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT TET

Amounts due to a related company J&{fE3E 2 7 KB

BSSF Group Limited BSSF Group Limited - 15
Fitness World (Group) Limited fEEX(EE)
BRATA 9 _
9 15
Amounts due to directors ENESRE
Mr. She Siu Kee RAEGE 50 50
Mr. Fung Hong Keung ISR & - 20
Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki HEHEAE 35 35
Mr. Lam Shing Ki MRAE S E 35 35
Mr. Leung Wai Ming R LA 35 35
Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen % 5 A 22 30
Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah BEEERL — 30
Ms. Luk Mei Yan e B+ - 30
Mr. Poon Chun Wai & R B 0 A 30 —
Mr. Ma Siu Kit BN E 30 -
Mr. Fu Chung HAEEAE 8 —
245 265
The payable balances with a related party and directors BE T MEES BN ERITNAB
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, unsecured, interest TEtE BERAEER 2ERERE
free and are repayable on demand. The fair values of these KEER ZEEHHNAALEBEEHEE
balances approximate their carrying values. IREEMEE °
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37 Balance sheet and reserve movementof 37 AAGESEEBREEHE

the Company = &)
Balance sheet of the Company AQNREEEEBXR
2017
—E—+F
HK$’000
FTHBxT
Assets BE
Non-current assets EMBEE
Investments in subsidiaries WEBRRMIE 73,897 73,897
Financial asset at fair value through FEiBEZ=ZR AL EE
profit or loss SRRz R E E 12,319 11,950
Prepayments SCENE/ S5 45 72
86,261 85,919
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables &1 338 & H #b & I 718 90 111
Amount due from a subsidiary JE W — & FfS B & R IE 19,528 19,527
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries J& Uk B Z M B A 5 218 117,776 115,977
Cash and cash equivalents HeMkIReEEIER 246 242
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 137,640 135857
Total assets EEHE 223,901 221,776
Equity and liabilities EEREaE
Equity attributable to owners RATEEAELERS
of the Company
Share capital R& 2 5,500 5,500
Share premium f&% 9 = B 132,921 132,921
Other reserves H b zE & a 84,543 82,396
Total equity ERAE 222,964 220,817
Liabilities =i
Current liabilities nREEE
Accruals FEEt I8 463 649
Amounts due to directors FENESEHIE 245 265
Current income tax payable FERHE HAFT 1S FR 229 45
Total liabilites ~~~~~~~~~~ &&##® 937 959
Total equity and liabilities EaREEEHE 223,901 221,776
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the ARRIBEEBBERENR_ZE—LtF
Board of Directors on 23 June 2017 and were signed on its NEZ+-HBEEESHE T H
behalf: THEEREERE :
Mr. She Siu Kee William Mr. Lam Shing Kai
KBEEE MAE L E
Director Director
EH EE
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37 Balance sheet and reserve movement of

the Com pany (continued)

Note:

(@

Reserve movement of the Company

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O ERRM

B8

(@ ARAFEEED

37 A RREERBEREREE

Capital Retained
reserve earnings Total
BEX#HE REEF ast
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T T
At 1 April 2015 RZZE—RFMHA—H 73,508 8,236 81,744
Profit for the year F 5 F = 33,267 33,267
Dividends (Note 31) A% 2 (B E531) — (32,615) (32,615)
At 31 March 2016 MNZE—X
=HA=+—8” 73,508 8,888 82,396
At 1 April 2016 R=-ZT—X"EMA—H 73,508 8,888 82,396
Profit for the year £ 17 % A — 14,797 14,797
Dividends (Note 31) & 8 (FtE31) — (12,650) (12,650)
At 31 March 2017 RZT—tF
=H=+—8” 73,508 11,035 84,543
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI ERR M

38 Benefits and interests of directors 38 EENEZRER

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EE%H M
Mr. She Siu Kee William is the chief executive officer of the SBEEEBREBRMITHRAEE -
Group. The emoluments of each director of the Company for ARNaBE_E—tHtFE=A=+—
the year ended 31 March 2017 is set out as below. HEFERESZHEMEINAT -

Other

emoluments

paid or

receivable

in respect

of director’s

other

services in

connection

with the

Estimated  Employer's management

money contribution of the affairs

value of toa of the

other  retirement Company or

Performance benefits benefit Share-based its subsidiary

Salaries bonuses (Note i) scheme  payments undertaking

RESER

N

AREAH

EBSEN

HpENN {5 Aft i

HitReEE  RAEA BGELL
He ¢ RERL (&)  wEfs BRERX HHANS @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TER

Executive Directors HTESE
Mr. She Siu Kee William SBEEE 600 2,580 942 86 18 - - 4,226
Mr. Fung Hong Keung (Note vi) BREELE (M) 134 444 - - 9 - - 587
Mr. Lam Shing Kai (Note ix) WARE R (W) 420 111 - - 4 - - 535
Non-executive Directors FHTESE
Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki PR 0 420 - - - - - - 40
Mr. Deng Xiaen YERLH - - - - - - - _
Mr. Leung Wai Ming DERHEE 420 - - - - - - 420
Independent Non-executive BUEHTES

Directors
Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen (Note x) 308 5 (Ff 35x) 112 - - - - - - 112
Ms. Luk Msi Yan (Note vii Bes B 2+ (fi shvi) 90 - - - - - - 90
Mr. Poon Chun Wai (Note v) EREEE (Hsy) 75 - - - - - - 75
Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah (Note v) EEERT (M) 45 - - - - - - 45
Mr. Ma Siu Kit (Note vii) B (i) 3 - - - - - - 3
Mr. Fu Chung (Note ) BRA4 (i) 8 - - - - - - 8

2,355 3,135 942 86 31 - - 6,549
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38 Benefits and interests of directors (continueq)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Mr. She Siu Kee William is the chief executive officer of the
Group. The emoluments of each director of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2016 is set out as below.

Performance
Fees Salaries bonuses

B O ERRM

38 EENNEZRER
(@) EEFHFM

KBS ERARENTRAR -
ARABRE-F-—AF=A=+—
LA EEREE 2 FHAIIMT -

Other

emoluments

paid or

receivable

in respect

of director's

other

services in

connection

with the

Estimated ~ Employer's management
money  contribution of the affairs

value toa of the

of other  retirement Company or
benefits benefit  Share-based its subsidiary
(Note ) scheme  payments  undertaking

BREFX # t

we H&  RERA J
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TAL T AL T AL
Executive Directors rES
Mr. She Siu Kee Wiliam fEERE 600 2,580 943 85 18 = = 4226
Mr. Fung Hong Keung (Note vi) BEAR %A (M) 240 = = - - - 1215 1455
Mr. Tsui Pak Wai (Note i) BIBEEE (M) 40 = - - - _ 1207 1,247
Non-executive Directors 78S
Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki aEss 420 - _ _ _ _ _ 400
Mr. Deng Xiaen YERLH = = - - _ _ _ _
Mr. Lam Shing Kai (Note i AR (i) 40 = - . - - - 40
Mr. Leung Wai Ming DERLL 490 _ - _ _ _ _ 00
Mr. Leung Yat Pang (Note i) 2B 5 (st 70 = = - - - - 70
Independent Non-executive BUFHEE
Directors
Mr. Chan Chi Yu (Note ii) TR (B s 50 - - . _ _ _ 50
Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen (Note x) 30 B % 4 (i 3x) 120 = - - - - _ 120
Ms. Luk Mei Yan (Note vi) BEEBLL (i) 120 - — - - - - 120
Dr. Lung Gheuk Wah (Note iv) EEEEL (K 120 = - - - - - 120
2,620 2,580 943 85 18 - 2,422 8,668
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT BERRME

38 Benefits and interests of directors (continuea)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Notes:

0

(i

(i)

(V)

(Vi)

(i

(viii)

(ix)

)

(xi)

Other benefits include insurance premium and medical allowances.

Mr. Tsui Pak Wai and Mr. Leung Yat Pang resigned as executive director
and non-executive director respectively on 28 May 2015.

Mr. Chan Chi Yu resigned as independent non-executive director on 3

August 2015.

Mr. Lung Cheuk Wah resigned as independent non-executive director
on 15 August 2016.

Mr. Poon Chun Wai was appointed as director as independent non-
executive director on 15 August 2016.

Mr. Fung Hong Keung resigned as executive director and chief financial
officer respectively on 30 September 2016.

Ms. Luk Mei Yan resigned as independent non-executive director on 30
December 2016.

Mr. Ma Siu Kit was appointed as independent non-executive director on
30 December 2016.

Mr. Lam Shing Kai was appointed as executive director on 18 November
2016.

Mr. Chi Man Shing, Stephen was resigned as independent non-executive
director on 8 March 2017.

Mr. Fu Chung was appointed as independent non-executive director on
8 March 2017.

No Directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments in any
of the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.
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38 EENERER
(@ E=HFM

(i)

(i

(iii)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

(ix)

)

(i)

Hip s @IE R E RBERM

RZZT—HEFRA=-TN\RB - HHEEL
EHERATEERR B EERFEFE
HITES -

RZZE-—RFNR=H  BREWREEE
EBLIFRITES -

RZBE-—XRFNATER - EEELLE
BHEBYIFMITES -

RZZE-—RFEFNATHEB  BRBEE
EEERBUIFHITES -

RZZE-RFAA=+H  BEREE
DHBERBTEERARYBEE -

RZZB-—RFEF+-_HA=+H EXBX
TRHEBLIFNTES -

R-ZZT—XR"E+-_A=+8  BEA%
SRETRBLIFERITES -

RZZE—R"FE+—A+NB ' HhEEE
SREERBATES -

R-ZE—tF=AN\B X EELE
ERBILIFATES -

R_ZE—tF=ANB  BHLELEER
ERBIUFNITES -

HE-_ZT—XXFER=_ZT—+tF=A
=+—BLEAERNEFE BMEESNK
ERRBMEEMME -



38

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Benefits and interests of directors (continueq)

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

No Directors’ retirement benefits or termination benefits were
paid during the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available Directors’ services

The Company did not pay consideration to any third parties for
making available Directors’ services during the years ended 31
March 2017 and 31 March 2016.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of Directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
Directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings were made available
in favour of Directors, body corporates controlled by and
connected entities with such Directors subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the years ended 31 March 2017
and 2016.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

B O ERRM

38 EENZNER

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

ESRNEARNESK LR
& Al

HE2_ZT2—t+t&EK_ZE—XRE=AHA
T+t HLEFE BEINEMFE
FERUNBA X EETXRIEREEF o

BRRERHEERBEEAF=SXHM
HRE

BE_Z—+tF=A=+—Bk=
T—RNF=ZA=+—BLEFE " &
ARV ERRBRESRBEANE=FH
X AHEMARE -

Ex TREESEHNEA
EEEZEESNHEETERZ
EX EERREMXZZE
*Sl, o

BE_Z—tFE_F—XRF=A
= t+t—HIEFEANERNFERIFLE
B UWERESE IZZESEH
REABBEZEESNHEETE
REEEMNER  EERMELEM
R5 o

EERRS  RPFEISHFH
EXER

A A B4R BT S R Bk AR B
B - WP RAKE 2 EH A
NEEFEEAAEREETERE
AERZIERRS  RHREH -
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Five-year Financial Summary

A FRBEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
ZE—+tF - RF ZT—HF ZT—MOF —_T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT FAET FAT FAT
Results E5
Year ended 31 March HZ=HA=+—H
LtFEE
Profit attributable to RARERAFERA
equity holders of the JE (5 % A
Company 17,321 26,053 32,335 21,577 42,438

Assets and liabilites YEREE

As at 31 March R=A=+—H”

Total assets EEE 312,829 299,158 237,849 253,070 191,956
Total liabilities waE (105,309) (92,327) (76,850) (88,276)  (120,031)
Net assets FEE 207,520 206,831 160,999 164,794 71,925

The results and summary of assets and liabilities for the year B ARG AP AT —=F+—A
ended 31 March 2013 which were extracted from the Company’'s —+HHRBRERHEE_T—=F=A
prospectus dated 20 November 2013 have been preparedona =1+ —HIFEMNEERBENEER
combined basis to indicate the results of the Group as if the Group #tZ JhiZ & HFEERE - LUIERA R 7 &
structure, at the time the Company’s shares were listed on the Main R BT ER E TR 2 £ B R BEARN
Board of the Stock Exchange, had been in existence throughout this FA—BEFEZ BEBE N AEBELE -
year.
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